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Willow Hammock Community Development District 
OFFICE OF THE DISTRICT MANAGER 

2300 Glades Road, Suite 410W●Boca Raton, Florida 33431 
Phone: (561) 571-0010●Toll-free: (877) 276-0889●Fax: (561) 571-0013 

January 15, 2025 

Board of Supervisors 
Willow Hammock Community Development District 

Dear Board Members: 

The Board of Supervisors of the Willow Hammock Community Development District will hold a 
Regular Meeting on January 22, 2025 at 6:00 p.m., at the Willow Hammock Community 
Association Amenity Center (Pool Deck), 4002 Willow Branch Place, Palmetto, Florida 34221-
2784. The agenda is as follows: 

1. Call to Order/Roll Call 

2. Public Comments 

3. Administration of Oath of Office to Newly Elected Supervisor, Jennifer Hicks [Seat 4]  
(the following to be provided in a separate package) 

 A. Required Ethics Training and Disclosure Filing 

  • Sample Form 1 2023/Instructions 

 B. Membership, Obligation and Responsibilities 

 C. Guide to Sunshine Amendment and Code of Ethics for Public Officers and 
 Employees 

 D. Form 8B: Memorandum of Voting Conflict for County, Municipal and other Local 
Public Officers 

4. Consideration of Resolution 2025-01, Canvassing and Certifying the Results of the 
Landowners’ Election of Supervisors Held Pursuant to Section 190.006(2), Florida 
Statutes, and Providing for an Effective Date 

5.  Consideration of Resolution 2025-02, Declaring Vacancies in Seats 1 and 3 of the Board 
of Supervisors Pursuant to Section 190.006(3)(b), Florida Statutes; and Providing an 
Effective Date  

6. Consider Appointment of Qualified Elector to Fill Vacant Seat 1; Term Expires November 
2028 

• Administration of Oath of Office to Appointed Supervisor 

ATTENDEES: 
Please identify yourself each 
time you speak to facilitate 
accurate transcription of meeting 
minutes. 

FOR BOARD MEMBERS AND STAFF TO ATTEND BY 

TELEPHONE 
CALL-IN NUMBER: 1-888-354-0094 
PARTICIPANT PASSCODE: 866 922 
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7. Consider Appointment of Qualified Elector to Fill Vacant Seat 3; Term Expires November 
2028 

• Administration of Oath of Office to Appointed Supervisor 

8. Consideration of Resolution 2025-03, Electing and Removing Officers of the District and 
Providing for an Effective Date 

9. Consideration of Muscle Fence Proposal/Contract for Willow Hammock Community 
Association, Inc., Playground Fence Installation [$4,000] 

10. Consideration of Devil Dog Landscaping & Tree Estimate/Invoice for Removal of 
Trimming of Two (2) Trees - 5022 Willow Breeze Way [$2,000] 

11. Authorization of Request for Qualifications (RFQ) for Engineering Services 

12. Ratification of Willow Hammock Community Association, Inc., Quick Claim Deed [Tract 
504 and Portions 304] 

13. Acceptance of Unaudited Financial Statements as of November 30, 2024 

14. Approval of Minutes 

 A. August 28, 2024 Public Hearing and Regular Meeting 

 B. November 5, 2024 Landowners’ Meeting 

15. Staff Reports 

 A. District Counsel: Kutak Rock LLP 

 B. District Engineer: ZNS Engineering, L.C. 

 C. District Manager: Wrathell, Hunt and Associates, LLC 

• NEXT MEETING DATE: April 23, 2025 at 6:00 PM 

o QUORUM CHECK 

SEAT 1   IN PERSON  PHONE  NO 

SEAT 2 CHRISTINA ZIMMERMAN  IN PERSON  PHONE  NO 

SEAT 3   IN PERSON  PHONE  NO 

SEAT 4 JENNIFER HICKS  IN PERSON  PHONE  NO 

SEAT 5 JOSH DELANCEY  IN PERSON  PHONE  NO 

16. Board Members’ Comments/Requests 
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17. Public Comments 

18. Adjournment 

Should you have any questions or concerns, please do not hesitate to contact me directly at 
(561) 517-5111. 

Sincerely, 

Kristen Thomas 
District Manager 
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THE AMERICAN INSTITUTE OF ARCHITECTS 

I 
A/A Document A3 I 0 

Bid Bond Bond No: 480558 

KNOW ALL MEN BY THESE PRESENTS, that Besch and Smith Civil Group Inc. 345 Cumberland Industrial 

Court St Augustine, FL 32095 as Principal, hereinafter called the Principal, and Merchants Bonding 

Company (Mutual) PO Box 14498 Des Moines, IA 50306 a corporation duly organized under the laws of 

the State of IA as Surety, hereinafter called the Surety, are held and bound unto Greenbriar Community 

Development District as Obligee, hereinafter called the Obligee, in the sum of 

Five Percent of Bid Amount Dollars( 5% 

for the payment of which sum well and truly to be made, the said Principal and the said Surety, bind 

ourselves, our heirs, executors, administrators, successors and assigns, jointly and severally, firmly by 

these presents. 

WHEREAS, the Principal has submitted a bid for 

Pinewalk Greenbriar Road Widening 

NOW, THEREFORE, if the Obligee shall accept the bid of the Principal and the Principal shall enter into a 

Contract with the Obligee in accordance with the terms of such bid, and give such bond or bonds as may be 

specified in the bidding or Contract Documents with good and sufficient surety for the faithful performance 

of such Contract and for the prompt payment of labor and material furnished in the prosecution thereof, or 

in the event ofthe failure of the Principal to enter such Contract and give such bond or bonds, if the Principal 

shall pay to the Obligee the difference not to exceed the penalty hereof between the amount specified in 

said bid and such larger amount for which the Obligee may in good faith contract with another party to 

perform the Work covered by said bid, then this obligation shall be null and void, otherwise to remain in full 

force and effect. 

Merchants Bonding Company (Mutual) 

Signed and Sealed this 29th day of October 2024 

rife) 

(Seal) 

Tess Labitan 
(Witness) 

(Surety) 

(Title) 

(Seal) 

Robert T. Theus Attorney in Fact 

AIA DOCUMENT A310 • BID BOND• AIA"' • FEBRUARY 1970 ED• THE AMERICAN 

INSTITUTE OF ARCHITECTS, 1735 N.Y. AVE., N.W., WASHINGTON, D.C. 20006 



MERCHANTS 
BONDING COMPANYTII 

POWER OF ATTORNEY 
Know All Persons By These Presents, that MERCHANTS BONDING COMPANY (MUTUAL) and MERCHANTS NATIONAL BONDING, INC., 
both being corporations of the State of Iowa, d/b/a Merchants National Indemnity Company (in California only) (herein collectively called the 
"Companies") do hereby make, constitute and appoint, individually, 

Benjamin Powell; Fitzhugh K Powell Jr; Robert T Theus; Susan W Jordan 

their true and lawful Attomey(s)-in-Fact, to sign its name as surety(ies) and to execute, seal and acknowledge any and all bonds, undertakings, 
contracts and other written instruments in the nature thereof, on behalf of the Companies in their business of guaranteeing the fidelity of 
persons, guaranteeing the performance of contracts and executing or guaranteeing bonds and undertakings required or permitted in any actions 
or proceedings allowed by law. 

This Power-of-Attorney is granted and is signed and sealed by facsimile under and by authority of the following By-Laws adopted by the Board 
of Directors of Merchants Bonding Company (Mutual) on April 23, 2011 and amended August 14, 2015 and adopted by the Board of Directors of 
MerchantsNational Bonding, Inc., on October 16, 2015. 

"The President, Secretary, Treasurer, or any Assistant Treasurer or any Assistant Secretary or any Vice President shall have power and 
authority to appoint Attorneys-in-Fact, and to authorize them to execute on behalf of the Company, and attach the seal of the Company thereto, 
bonds and undertakings, recognizances, contracts of indemnity and other writings obligatory in the nature thereof." 

"The signature of any authorized officer and the seal of the Company may be affixed by facsimile or electronic transmission to any Power of Attorney 
or Certification thereof authorizing the execution and delivery of any bond, undertaking, recognizance, or other suretyship obligations of the 
Company, and such signature and seal when so used shall have the same force and effect as though manuaUy fixed." 

In connection with obligations in favor of the Florida Department of Transportation only, it is agreed that the power and authority hereby given to the 
Attorney-in-Fact includes any and all consents for the release of retained percentages and/or final estimates on engineering and construction 
contracts required by the State of Florida Department of Transportation. It is fully understood that consenting to the State of Florida Department 
of Transportation making payment of the final estimate to the Contractor and/or its assignee, shall not relieve this surety company of any of 
its obligations under its bond. 

In connection with obligations in favor of the Kentucky Department of Highways only, it is agreed that the power and authority hereby given 
to the Attorney-in-Fact cannot be modified or revoked unless prior written personal notice of such intent has been given to the Commissioner­
Department of Highways of the Commonwealth of Kentucky at least thirty (30) days prior to the modification or revocation. 
In Witness Whereof, the Companies have caused this instrument to be signed and sealed this 3rd day of February , 2024 

...•·~·,o°N'4•····· ..•;;6-;;·0;,,.. MERCHANTS BONDING COMPANY (MUTUAL) 
.,••~t-....•. •.. J. ~••• • ~(;>_ ..•••• -<"..b •• MERCHANTS NATIONAL BONDING, INC. 

...,,,, .··(:j~PO!f,f•·.. o\ ..~~.·~V.P0,9_.;·."'~·· d/b/a MERCHANTS NATIONAL INDEMNITY COMPANY 
5,-.;,_.-(j ~·.~';. •• ~ .-A' • ..L• ~ -~ :~ -o- o:c,. •C?: ~ fl" • • 

~;\- 2003 }:.i~ :i:..- 1-;3~ 
0 i~: ~ ~~ ••.,.. .i:, •• ,,_. .c:::-. By.... . ... . . .,..... : ::-,.

•• d,,··. .··~ : •."&-: ·· .......c::-.
•••.~i,.:·•······· ••:;~.••• • '.:J'V• . .. ••• \'\-..." President 

STATE OF IOWA ·•;:t * ...... •.. * ..•............... ...... 
COUNTY OF DALLAS ss. 
On this 3rd day of February 2024 , before me appeared Larry Taylor, to me personally known, who being by me duly sworn 
did say that he is President of MERCHANTS BONDING COMPANY (MUTUAL) and MERCHANTS NATIONAL BONDING, INC.; and that the 
seals affixed to the foregoing instrument are the Corporate Seals of the Companies; and that the said instrument was signed and sealed in behalf 
of the Companies by authority of their respective Boards of Directors. 

Penni Miller 
Commission Number 787952 

My Commission Expires 
January 20, 2027 

(Expiration of notary's commission does not invafidate this instrument) 

I, William Warner, Jr., Secretary of MERCHANTS BONDING COMPANY (MUTUAL) and MERCHANTS NATIONAL BONDING, INC., do hereby 
certify that the above and foregoing is a true and correct copy of the POWER-OF-ATTORNEY executed by said Companies, which is still in full 
force and effect and has not been amended or revoked. 

October , 2024 . 

p~~~-
Secretary 

POA 0018 (1/24) 



------------- --- --- --- ---

PARTIIPROPOSALFORM{A} 
ORGANIZATION INFORMATION OF PROPOSER 
PINEWALK GREENBRIAR ROAD WIDENING 

DATE SUBMITTED: b/o vembet 2 2 . 2024 

1. Proposer Be )r.h and srn,./-h C.; v,'/ G J-cuP Jnc /_/ A Individual 
(Company Name) 

J 
/_/ A Partnership 
/_j A Limited Liability Company 
litf A Corporation 
/_j A Subsid iary Corporation 

2. Proposer's Parent Company Name (if applicable) - ~H- 1/---"-A-4,--- - - ---------

3. Proposer's Parent Company Address (if applicable) 

Street Address --.....L..N..,___,,_/~ A,___ ___ _____ _____________ 

P.O. Box (if any) _ ___ ________ ___________ _ _ _ _ 

City _ _ ___ ___ _____ State _ ___ _____ Zip Code _ _ _ _ _ 

Telephone _ _ _____ ___ _ _____ Fax No. ___ ______ _ _ 

1st Contact Name _ _ _____ ______ _ Title _ ___ ___ ___ _ _ 

2nd Contact Name Title 

4. Proposer Company Address (if different) 

Street Address 3Lf 5 c umlxrlanJ bdustft'~·lf)<I cf 
P.O. Box (if any) ____________ ______ ___ _____ _ 

city 8+. Jµau s <J-1--i ~ Zip Code 31095 
u 

Telephone 9u4-26 o -?3 '13 Fax No. foll -JJ<;_,- D2 2.6' 

1st Contact Name ~}/. , _ _ _ _ B_ s~ ~ _ _ _ _ _ Title fre ,r /dfll 'f_·cu~/e = e~ c /,,, 

2nd Contact Name Ba r , 
} 
11 O e sch Title V/ c e p,-e,, ,d~.,'.J t 

5. List the location of Proposer's office that would perform the work. 

Street Address .3L( 5 C Ll.M he.i-- /o,.nd !ndus9-r .·aI C' t 
P.O. Box (if any) ___ ________ ____ _____ _______ 

City S . Aue. 16 s 1.'110 State fL ZipCode J 2-o"(5 
J 

Telephone 9oLJ - 2 6 c - {;J "13 Fax No. CfOlf - 33!, - o 2- 2 tJ 

1st Contact Name "'-}J· _ _ _l_ _ _ Bc✓ >_ ............ - Title Prr?. 5 ,' rfa ."7 f_ , c C· c ___ C h.----

2nd ContactName f3o~}- V J3esc h Title v( [ P p ~~s,·der,f 
I 
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6. Is the Proposer incorporated in the State of Florida? Yes (6 No (_) 

6.1 If yes, provide the following: 

Is the C..9IT1pany in good standing with the Florida Department of State, Division of Corporations? 
Yes 0 No(_) 

If no, please explain _________ ___ _ _ _ _ ___ _ _ ___ _ 

Date Incorporated Jeo kmber 2 , '2cl( Charter No. flloca:;Jt;)-;'£'0 .9J 
I 

6.2 If no, provide the following: //13 
The state in which the Proposer company is incorporated --=:...~ r,-,;__ -=--- - - -----'---"'-------"----

Is the company in good standing with the state? Ye* No(_) 

If no, please explain ____ _____ _ _____ _____ _ ___ _ 

Date incorporated ___ _ _ _ _ _____ Charter No. _ _ _ ___ _ ___ 

7. Is the Proposer company a registered or licensed contractor with the State of Florida? Yes (_) No (_) 

7.1 If yes, provide the following: 

Type of registration (i.e. certified general contractor, certified electrical contractor, etc.) 

unkr3rOcAM uf,'l :fy ~ l:Ycuv~f:on 

License No. Cu r / '2 '2- 4o'E 5 Expiration Date 8 / 31/2 6 

Qualifying Individual J\/ /co/P e~sch Title pres ·)r?,n f 
' 

List company(ies) currently qualified under this license _ _ _ _________ _ 

l>t;rh and SM i'fh Civi l Gro.Ap . I.A/[ 
7.2 Is the Proposer company a registered or licensed Contractor with St. Johns County? Yes {6No (_) 

7.3 Has the Proposer company performed work for a community development district previously? 
Yes (6 No(_) 

If yes, describe: Se.e £l t+n Che) ~nl'YJf'?t,I J1 ; J. i/ 
1d .r fr, cf- fro i e c '/:S "' ' 

8. Name of Proposer's Bonding Company <- rLhan+:5 

Address fO 8, ())( I~ ~ q 8 DL ~ mo1"r)c5 

Approved Bonding Capacities: Aggregate Limit 
Single Project Limit 
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COD Projects 

1. Project Name/Owner: Trailmark Phase 2A & 4C / Six Mile Creek Community 

Development District 

Reference Contact: Zach Brecht 

Contact Phone/E-Mail: (904) 265-3223 / Brechtz@ettninc.com 

Dollar Amount of Contract: $186,391.13 

Scope of Services for Project: Curb and concrete repairs, asphalt repairs, and final lift. 

Start Date: December2019 

Current Status of the Project: Completed as ofMarch 2020 

2. Project Name/0-wner: Trailmark Phase 7 & 8 / Six Mile Creek Community Development 

District 

Reference Contact: Zach Brecht 

Contact Phone/E-Mail: (904) 265-3223 / Brechtz@etminc.com 

Dollar Amount of Contract: $4,040,379.86 

Scope ofServices for Project: Demolition, storm drain, water main, gravity sewer, base, 

paving, curb and gutter, sidewalk., striping, signage, and grassing. 

Start Date: December 2017 

Current Status of the Project: Completed as of February 2019 

3. Project Name/Owner: SR 13 Roundabout/ Rivers Edge Community Development 

District 

Reference Contact: Greg Will 

Contact Phone/E-Mail: (904) 739-3655 / gwill@prosserinc.com 

Dollar Amount of Contract: $1,452,316.84 

Scope of Services for Project: Clearing and grubbing, earthwork, storm drain, base, 

paving, curb and sidewalk, striping, signage, and grassing. 

Start Date: July 201 7 

Current Status ofthe Project: Completed as of May 2018 

https://1,452,316.84
mailto:gwill@prosserinc.com
https://4,040,379.86
mailto:Brechtz@etminc.com
https://186,391.13
mailto:Brechtz@ettninc.com


COD Projects 

4_ Project Name/Owner: Whisper Creek Phase 3 Dolcetto Drive/ Six Mile Creek 

Community Development District 

Reference Contact: Scott Wild 

Contact Phone.IE-Mail: (904) 940-5850 / wilds@etminc.com 

Dollar Amount of Contract $390,448.60 

Scope ofServices for Project: Clearing and grubbing, storm drain, water main, gravity 

sewer, base, paving, striping, and signage. 

Start Date: April 2017 

Current Status ofthe Project: Completed as ofNovember2017 

https://390,448.60
mailto:wilds@etminc.com


0 tJ 

Total Current Contracts Bonded $ / CJ . .3f½)J~ 

9. Name of Proposer's Bonding Agency CeGi I LJ. P(}~r,; Ca,pifl:J 
Address 21 C\ .N I/e.,u)/'iOf') Sh-e.d- :foc k::DOv j /) < FL ~ J.c) ~ 
Contact Name Aob 7heu..,S Telephone 9 <Y-l ,,3 53-:3)8 J 

10. List the Proper's total annual dollar value of work completed for each of the last three (3) years starting 
with the latest year and ending with the most current year (21 ) / S:: 8 B:J 1 II ,3 
(22) 17J 3~~y ~ , (23) ,;)J/Yot.)941 . ) 

11. What are the Proposers' company's current insurance limits? 
General Liability $ Ll OCr> CC>() 
Automobile Liability $ I tx::>o do O 
Workers Compensation $ / .J ccid COO ,.....;-..-:J!;; "l _ 3 -;J.~ S j 5- -) C,-::COS--
Expiration Date 9 - J/ ~ 5" iO -19 -~ .J o< )

J 

12. Has the Proposer company been citt<:J>Y OSHA for any job site or company office/ shop safety 
violations in the past two years? Yes~ No U 
If y • • • • 
~ 

Wliat is t ser's current worker c . - ----~'---''--------

Has the Proposer experienced any worker injuries resulting in a worke~.~~i~g- more than ten (10) 
working days as a result of the injury in the past two (2) years? Yes(_) ~ 

If yes, please describe the incident: _ ____________________ _ 

~~~~~~-~ 

13. Please state whether or not your company or any of its affiliates are presently barred or sus~e~~d 
from bidding or contracting on any state, local, or federal-aid contracts in any state(s)? Ye~ NO 

(_) 

If so, state the name(s) of the company(ies) _ ________________ _ _ 

The state(s) where barred or suspended ____ ________________ 

State the period(s) of debarment or suspension ______ ____________ 

14. What is the construction experience of the proposed superintendent and project manager? 

PRESENT YEARS OF YEARS IN WHATMAGNITUDE AND INDIVIDUAL'S NAME POSITION OR CONSTRUCTION WITH FIRM CAPACITY?TYPE OF WORK EXPERIENCE 

r 
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15. Have you ever failed to complete any work awarded to you? Yes L) No ~ 
If so, where and why? ___ _ _ _____ ___ _ ____ .=:,_ _ _ _ _____ _ _:?\ 

16. Has any officer or partner of your organization ever been an officer, partner,'('r__,9)AH1er of some other 
organization that has failed to complete a construction contract? Yes L) N~ 

If so, state name of individual, other organization and reason therefore _ _ ___ ___ ___ 

17. List any and all litigation to which the organization has been a party in the last five (5) years. If none, 
please write "none." 

f\L'YH'~ 

Has organization or any of its affiliate~i v~ een either disqualified or denied prequalification status 
by a governmental entity? Yes L) N~ 

If so, discuss the circumstances surrounding such denial or disqualification as well as the date thereof. 

19. Within the past five (5) ye~rs,/sorganization failed to complete a project within the scheduled 
contract time? Yes L) No% 

If so, discuss the circumstances surrounding such failure to complete a project on time as well as the 
date thereof. 

21 



20. List all projects currently under contract, with a remaining contract amount of over $100,000.00 
(excluding retainage) and with an expected remaining contract duration in excess of 120 days (to 
substantial completion). 

i 'see a:lktbd cm+md-5 en turd 

21. Identify all subcontractors Contractor intends on utilizing for the project and describe the portion and 
percentage of work to be performed by each subcontractor. ./4

O 
6C,,cb ~ skm5 6/ /i/4rrh.etd=fL ~ .;:) I 

DuvtJ l 

(Remainder of Page Left Intentionally Blank] 

22 

https://100,000.00


------

The undersigned hereby authorize(s) and request(s) any person, firm or corporation to furnish any pertinent 
information requested by the District or their authorized agents, deemed necessary to verify the statements 
made in this application or attachments hereto, or necessary to determine whether the District should qualify 
the Proposer for providing a Proposal for its construction projects, including such matters as the Proposer's 
ability, standing integrity, quality of performance, efficiency and general reputation. 

Nicole Besch, President 

(Type Name and Title of Person Signing) 

This 2-2. "cl day of h/6V~hc< , 2024. 

(Corporate Seal) 

- day of Wove, /Y\ be-C , 2024. 
NOTARY PUBLIC 

STATE OF FLORIDA 
NO. HH319586 

MY COMMISSION EXPIRES OCT. 06, 2026 
------,,,q.y.'...:....!..1-:..._J,,,o~:..=.,_~~l"" , lOt{, 

(Seal) 

23 



NAME OF PROPOSER 

<,e 

FOR PARENT COMPANY (if applicable) 

POSITION OR TITLE CORPORATE 
RESPONSIBILITIES 

ffitc_e_ /Th, 

, n 
6 

en 

INDIVIDUAL'S 
RESIDENCE 
CITY, STATE 

~IL.( p)-ea ::bf)-t-

& h J C: ~ G ~O.J P~ ATE OFJf,ERS
Company Name o/ ace , Jm \--1-- ,v,r0..po c • Date / / - ~t9-;;J4 
Provide the followinq information for Officers of the Proposer and parent compahv. i. ~· .. . 

24 
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Company Name ?Y :zf ) L Ii t2\ ( ) I Y)t-ro ( I V JI b f~ _LI & . Date / I .-,;},;;}-;J'-/ 
What is the experience of the key management and supervisory personnel of thePrposer company for b_oth administration as wel I as operations? (Attach 
resumes of key personnel here) 

YEARS OF 
TOTAL YEARS DESCRIPTION OF DIRECT JOB EXPERIENCE IN INDIVIDUAL'S NAME PRESENT TITLE OF RELATED RESPONSIBILITIES PRESENT 
EXPERIENCEPOSITION 

~ 

/ I 5te_ a-I-I-ctArri I<'~ ,71 )l)1f<~ 
JI 

~ 

"~ 



PROPOSED SUPERINTENDENT AND PROJECT MANAGER 

Company Name: Besch and Smith Civ il Group, lnc. Date: 1:fo_vember 22111
, 2024 

What is the construction experience of the proposed superintendent and project manager? 
INDMDlJAL'S 

NAME 
PRESENT 

POSITION OR 
OFFiCE 

MAGNITUDE AND TYPE OF 
,, ,WORK . ' . 

" 

VEARSOF 
CON~TRUCTfON 

EXPERIENCE 

YEARS 
WITH 
FIRM 

INWHAT 
C.APAClTY? 

Nicole Besch 
(Resume attached) 

President Office and Field Management 22 years 13 years f re.s 0(!_/)f-
Barry Besch 
(Resume attached) 

Superintendent Supervisor of All Crews 35 years 13 years 
S~i()m 

Charles Hitchcock 
(Resume attached) 

Foreman Supervisor for Pipe Crews 38 years 22 years fur~rra.n 
F="ore.rriCJ.fDuane Moore 

(resume attached) 
Foreman Supervisor for Earthwork 33 years 33 years 

Joshua Crane 
(Resume attached) 

Survey Manager Survey Management and Asbuilt 
Drafting 

15 years 13 years 
5urLIUJ 

)on+-

(f'itin,e. 



BanyBesch 
414 Pleasant Colony Lane, Elkton FL 32033 Phone (904) 994-5171 

Supervision of civil construction projects including roadways, parking lots, parks, schools, storm-water management 
fucililies, asphalt repairs, erosion repairs & underground utilities. 

Profes.,ional Accomplishments 

Education 

• St Augustine High School (1998) 

C-eI1ifications 
• CPR/First Aid • 30-Hour Construction Safety and Health 
• FOOT Maintenance of Traffic OSHA 

• Trench Safety/Confined Space & 10 Hour • FDEP Storm water Erosion & Sediment.at:ion 
OSHA Control 

Rmployrnent History 

❖ Besch &Smith Civil Group Inc. (2011 l:o Current) 
St. Augustine, FL 

lob Duties: Field Mariagemenl for the following operations: erosion control clearing & _grubbing earthwork., pond 
liners graviLy sewer. lill stations, force-main, sto1m drainage, water-main, concrete base & paving, Lriping& ignage, & 
grassing. 

❖ Jacksonville Eighteen Construction Inc. (2004 to 2011) 
St. Augustine, FL 

lob Duties: Field Management for the following operations: erosion control, clearing & grubbing, earthwork, pond 
liners, gravity sewer, lift stations, force-main, storm drainage, water-main, concrete, base & paving, striping & signage, & 
grassing. Duties also included estimating, project management, project scheduling, submittal processing, material & 
supply orders. 

❖ Earthworks ofNo:rtheastF1orida (2001 to 2004) 
Jacksonville, FL 

Job Duties: Equipment Operation including: Bull Dozer, Loader, Excavator, Roller, & Pan 

❖ VJ Usina Contracting (1998 to 2001) 
Jacksonville, FL 

Job Duties: Equipment Operation including: Bull Dozer, Loader, Excavator, Roller, & Pan 

References 

Matt Lahti Gulfstream Design Group Inc. Phone: (904) 806-2898 

Dale Vaughn St Johns County Parks Phone: (904) 669-0391 



Nicole Besch 
414 Pleasant Colony Lane, Elkton FL 32033 Phone (904) 994-5172 

Operations Management in Civil Construction including roadways, parking lots, parks, schools, storm-water 

management facilities, asphalt repairs, erosion repairs, & underground utilities. 

Professional Accomplishments 

Educatlon 

• University of North Florida BS Criminal Justice (2001) 

• University of North Florida BS Psychology (2001) 

Cenifi.catlons 

• Florida Underground Utility & Excavation License CUC1224085 

• Florida Contractor V Firemain License FPC 11-000042 

F.mployment Histozy 

❖ Besch &Smith Civil Group Inc. (2011 to Current) 
St Augustine, FL 

Job Duties: Estimating, Project Management, Project Scheduling, Submittal Processing, Material & Supply 
Orders, Administration of Subcontracts, Pre-qualifications, Attendance at Pre-bid & Pre-construction 
meetings, Signing of Contacts and Payment & Performance Bonds, Operations Management including: 
Field, Accounts Payable, Estimating, Contract Negotiation, Marketing & Sales, & Equipment Maintenance. 

❖ Jacksonville Eighteen C,onstmction Inc. (2001 t.o 2011) 
St Augustine, FL 

Job Duties: Estimating, Project Management, Project Scheduling, Submittal Processing, Material & Supply 
Orders, Administration of Subcontracts, Pre-qualifications, Attendance at Pre-bid & Pre-construction 
meetings 

References 

Matt Lahti Gulfstream Design Group Phone: (904) 806-2898 

Mike Kelter Legacy Civil Engineers Phone: (904) 338-4284 



♦♦♦ 
Kristine Campbell 

2012-current 

2004- 12/2009 

1993-2004 

1/93-12/93 

6/90-12/92 

October 2005 
October 2004 
January 2003 

Fall 2003 
1999 
1972-1974 
1974-1975 
1975-1977 

Accounts Manager, Besch and Smith Civil Group 
Process Payroll and track Job Costing. Maintain employee records. Create and maintain job 
files, contracts, subcontracts, purchase orders and change orders. Process Accounts 
Payable/ Accounts Receivable. Maintain Status of Projects on Hand and Completed Projects 
Database. Track owned/rented equipment for job costing. Submit Notice to Owner documents 
and manage Release ofLiens from Subcontractors and Suppliers on all current projects. Verify 
Accounts Payable against Purchase Orders, Subcontracts and materials received. 

Office Manager, WCC Site Development, Inc. 
Office Manager for site Construction Company providing land clearing and excavation; 
installation of storm drainage, water and sewer; paving and site concrete for University of 
Florida, Shands Hospital, Flagler County School Board, commercial, residential subdivisions 
and municipal clients. Bookkeeping for use by CPA in Profit & Loss Reports and Balance 
Sheets. Job Costing. Payroll. All A/P, AIR. Full Project Accounting. Status of Contracts on 
Hand, Status of Contracts Completed for bonding company. Created database of all loads 
logged by Dump Truck fleet. 

President, WCC Site Development, Inc. 
Certified State ofFlorida Minority Business Enterprise. Certified FDOT Disadvantaged 
Business Enterprise. As owner organized and directed operations toward accomplishment of 
specific plans and objectives. Projects completed on schedule and within budget. 
Accomplishments include: 
• $575,000 contract for complete site preparation for apartment complex 
• $323,000 contract for installation of 14'x 9' arch pipe culvert under roadway 
• $50,000 contract to install pre-stressed, post tensioned concrete pedestrian bridge 
Preparation of bids. Order materials. Payroll, quarterly and monthly state and federal taxes. 
Managing business to improve profits, positive cash flow and positive corporate image. Short 
term and long term planning to facilitate continued company growth. 

Administrative Assistant, Fred Vyverberg Architect 
Request for Proposal software, Project Billing, Change Orders, Transmittals, Submittal Logs, 
Job Costing, and Payroll on projects at the University ofFlorida; a multimillion dollar school 
renovation, commercial and residential projects. Gained knowledge ofprotocol and 
preparation of paperwork necessary for working with the University ofFlorida and county 
projects. 

Micron Green 
AutoCadd ( computer aided design and drafting) Raster to Vector conversion of topographic 
surveys for use in AutoCadd for local utility company and private sector engineers. Learned 
to interpret site plans and engineering symbols. Learned to analyze construction details. 
Payroll, payroll taxes, state sales tax. Invoicing. Promoting and maintaining customer 
relations. Direct marketing through creation of client database and collateral marketing 
materials. 

EDUCATION 
Construction Lien Law seminar Lorman Education Services 
Florida DEP Qualified Storm water Management Inspector #7808 
Certificate of Proficiency Florida A&M University SBDC & FDOT Construction 
Management Development Program 
Financial Accounting SFCC Gainesville, Florida; received "A" grade for term 
OSHA 10 hour Safety Class 
University ofFlorida 
Santa Fe Community College, AA Degree, focus on college algebra and trigonometry 
University ofFlorida, College of Journalism 



Duane A Moore 

4446 Love Land Pass Drive East.Jacksonville, F1orida 32210 

Foreman in Civil Construction projects including: roadways, parking lots, parks, schools, storm-water 
management facilities, asphalt repairs, erosion repairs, and underground utilities. 

Professional Accomplishments 

Education 

• George Washington High School- Charleston, West Virginia 

Certifications 

• 10 HR. OSHA safety 

• FDOT Maintenance ofTraffic Intermediate 

Employment Histoxy 

❖ Besch and Smith Civil Group, Inc. (2012-Present) 
Saint Augustine, F1orida 

Job Duties: Field management for the following operations: erosion control, clearing and grubbing, 
earthwork, pond liners, gravity sewer, lift stations, force main, storm drainage, water main, concrete base 
and paving, striping, signage, and grassing. 

❖ Jacksonville Eighteen Construction (1990-2012) 

Job Duties: Field management for the following operations: erosion control, clearing and grubbing, 
earthwork, pond liners, gravity sewer, lift stations, force main, storm drainage, water main, concrete base 
and paving, striping, signage, and grassing. 

❖ Haskell (2012) 

lob Duties: Equipment Operator including motor grader and Bulldozer. 

References: 

Name: Nicole Besch Phone Number: (904)-994-5172 

Name: Richard Smith Phone Number: (904)-229-8000 

Name: Eddie Smith Phone Number: (904)-814-2571 



Charles E Hitchcock 
4620 Avenue C Saint Augustine, F1orida 32095 

Pipe Foreman for Civil Construction projects including: roadways, parking lots, parks, schools, 

storm-water management facilities, asphalt repairs, erosion repairs, and underground utilities. 

Professional Accomplishments 

Certifications 

• Trench Safety/ Confined Space and 10 hour OSHA 

• ]EA.safety 

• CPR/ First- Aid 

• 30-Hour Construction Safety and Health OSHA 

Employment History 

❖ Besch and Smith Civil Group, Inc. (2013-Present) 

Saint Augustine, Florida 

lob Durie : Pipe Foreman for the following operations: gravity sewer, lift stations, force main, 

storm drainage, water-main, and fire-main 

❖ VJ Usina Contracting( 1985-2013) 

Saint Augustine, Florida 

lob Duties: Pipe Foreman for the following operations: gravity sewer, lift stations, force main, 

storm drainage, water-main, and fire-main 

References 

Name: Nicole Besch Phone Number: (904)-994-5172 

Name: Eddie Smith Phone Number: (904)-814-2571 

Name: Barry Besch Phone Number: (904)-994-5171 



Joshua Crane 
8261 Osteen Street, Jacksonville, Florida 32210 

SUIVey Management in Civil construction including roadways, parking lots, parks, schools, storm-water management facilities, 

asphalt repairs, erosion repairs, and underground utilities. 

Professional Accomplishments 

Education: 

❖ King George High School (June 1999) 

Certifications and Tr.iining 

• Auto cad Civil 3D 2019 
• Trimble Tena-model 
• Trimble Business Center 

Employment History 

❖ Besch and Smith Civil Group, Inc. (2011 - present) 
Saint Augustine, .Florida 

lob Duties: SUIVey Foreman for construction layout, calculations, as-built drafting, and preparation 3D earthwork files. 

❖ Jacksonville Eighteen Construction (2009-2011) 
Jacksonville, Florida 

lob Duties: SUIVey foreman for construction layout, calculations, as-built drafting, and preparation 3D earthwork files. 

❖ 1\JJohns, Vallencourt, Superior, Cody's Swveying, Bartram Trail (2003-2009) 

lob Duties: Party Chief Stake and Layout 

References 

Name: Eddie Smith Phone Number: (904)-814-2571 

Name: Nicole Besch Phone Number: (904)-994-5171 



COMPANY OWNED MAJOR EQUIPMENT 
(Attach additional sheets if necessary) 

Company Name BexMcd .5ndh (iv// CapUJl-. Date //-;}:;:J-c:9 <-/ 

QUANTITY DESCRIPTION CAPACITY 
No.LOCATED IN 

FLORIDA OTHER 

I I J /\ 
/ I 
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I j 

A ~~ BESCH &SMITH 
- ~ ·" ~ I l b O V INC. 

.:./ 
I I 

' 
345 Cumberland Industrial Ct. 
St. Augustine, FL 32095 
(904) 260-6393 

BESCH AND SMITH CIVIL GROUP LIST OF OWNED EQUIPMENT 
I I 

Year Manufacturer Model Type Capacity Condition Location I 
2003 Western Star 4900EX Semi Tractor #0920 52,000lbs

33,000lbs
30,000lbs 

. Good 

. Good 
Good 

Home Office St. Johns County 
Home Office St. Johns County 
Home Office St. Johns County 

1996 Freiohtliner FL70 Dump Truck #3312 
2000 Sterlino L7500 Water Truck #8104 
2003 Dynapac CA150 Roller#0161 Good Home Office St. Johns County 
2005 Terramite TSSS38 Broom #1348 Good Home Office St. Johns County 

Laymoor 6HG Broom #1300 Good Home Office St. Johns County 
2002 CAT 420D Loader/backhoe #5292 Good Home Office St. Johns County 
2010 CAT 305C Excavator #4375 Good Home Office St. Johns County 
2011 John Deere 524K Loader#8057 Very Good Home Office St. Johns County 
2011 John Deere 524K Loader#5070 Very Good Home Office St. Johns County 

Terex RS350 Mixer#0168 Good Home Office St. Johns County 
2013 CAT 120M Motororader #031 O Excellent Home Office St. Johns County 

Tampa Traffic Roller #719A Good Home Office St. Johns County 
2014 John Deere 333E Compact track loader #5669 Excellent Home Office St. Johns County 
2008 Bomag BW124D Single Drum Vibratory roller #1020 Good Home Office St. Johns County 
2013 CAT 924K Wheel loader #0650 Very Good Home Office St. Johns County 
2013 CAT 924K Wheel loader #1643 Very Good Home Office St. Johns County 
2008 Dynapaq CA144D Single Drum Vibratory roller #0171 Very Good Home Office St. Johns County 

Hitachi 245ZXLC-5 Excavator #0006 Excellent Home Office St. Johns County 
Hitachi 250ZXLC-5 Excavator #0141 Excellent Home Office St. Johns County 
CAT 305.5E Excavator #2249 Excellent Home Office St. Johns County 
CAT 305D Excavator #1633 Excellent Home Office St. Johns County 
CAT 312EL Excavator #0259 Excellent Home Office St. Johns County 
CAT D5K Dozer#1339 Excellent Home Office St. Johns County 

2014 John Deere 550K Dozer#3813 Excellent Home Office St. Johns County 
2014 John Deere 550K Dozer#4821 Excellent Home Office St. Johns County 
2008 Volvo SD45D Vibratory Roller #7509 Excellent Home Office St. Johns County 

CAT 12H Motororader #2557 Very Good Home Office St. Johns County 
2018 Chevrolet Pick-Up #7749 Very Good Home Office St. Johns County 
2014 Dodoe 2500 Pick-Up #9896 Very Good Home Office St. Johns County 
2016 Jeep Wrangler #4430 Very Good Home Office St. Johns County 
2016 Dodoe HEMI Pick-Up #4040 Very Good Home Office St. Johns County 
2016 Dodge Ram Pickup Truck #3229 Good Home Office St. Johns County 
2015 Dodge Ram Pickup Truck #2117 Good Home Office St. Johns County 
2012 Toyota Tacoma Pickup Truck #9477 Excellent Home Office St. Johns County 
2017 Ford F150 Pickup Truck #0222 Good Home Office St. Johns County 
2013 Chevrolet Crew Cab Pickup Truck #1244 Very Good Home Office St. Johns County 
2015 Dodoe Ext. Cab Pick-Up #7714 Excellent Home Office St. Johns County 
2008 Chevrolet Pick-Up #7745 Excellent Home Office St. Johns County 
2014 Dodge Ram Pipe Truck #2615 Excellent Home Office St. Johns County 
2014 Dodoe Ram Pipe Truck #2616 Excellent Home Office St. Johns County 
2019 Dodge Ram Pipe Truck #4534 Excellent Home Office St. Johns County 
2020 Dodge Ram Pipe Truck #9925 Excellent Home Office St. Johns County 
2015 Dodoe Ram Pick-Up Truck #7596 Excellent Home Office St. Johns County 
2014 Dodge Ram Crew Cab Truck #3356 Excellent Home Office St. Johns County 
2013 Dodge Ram Pipe Truck #5424 Excellent Home Office St. Johns County 
2017 Dodoe Ram Pick-Up #3667 Excellent Home Office St. Johns County 
2007 GMC Pick-Up #8297 Excellent Home Office St. Johns County 
2014 Dodoe Ram Pick-Up #0050 Excellent Home Office St. Johns County 



2019 Dodge Ram Pick-Up #1502 Excellent Home Office St. Johns County 
2017 Ford F-350 Pick-Up Truck #1940 Excellent Home Office St. Johns County 
2012 International 4400 Water Truck #8130 Very Good Home Office St. Johns County 
2016 CAT CT660 Tandem Dump Truck #1871 Excellent Home Office St. Johns County 
2016 CAT CT660 Tandem Dump Truck #1876 Excellent Home Office St. Johns County 

IR Roller# 2425 Home Office St. Johns County 
Reel Mower #0475 Home Office St. Johns County 
Curtain Burner #5437 Home Office St. Johns County 

2020 Roll Off Truck w Container #9509 Home Office St. Johns County 
John Deere 544k Loader#8148 Home Office St. Johns Countv 
John Deere 544k Loader#8152 Home Office St. Johns County 
Challenger Broom #3010 Home Office St. Johns County 
Rosco 4890 Broom #2167 Home Office St. Johns County 
Rosco 4860 Broom #8813 Home Office St. Johns County 
Dynapac CA2500 Roller#5065 Home Office St. Johns County 
Dynapac CP142 9 Wheel Roller #2056 Home Office St. Johns County 
Dvnapac CS141 Roller#0146 Home Office St. Johns County 
CAT 330 Excavator #0149 Home Office St. Johns County 
Volvo L70H Loader#2582 Home Office St. Johns County 
John Deere 300GLC Excavator #0371 Home Office St. Johns County 
John Deere 550K Dozer#6833 Home Office St. Johns County 
CAT 330 Excavator #0239 Home Office St. Johns County 
John Deere 5525 Tractor #1542 Home Office St. Johns County 
Massey Ferguson 471 Tractor #6001 Home Office St. Johns County 

2620 Haybuster #7720 Home Office St. Johns County 
CAT 613C Tractor Scraper #2119 Home Office St. Johns County 
CAT 289D Skid Steer CTL #0762 Home Office St. Johns County 
John Deere 544k Loader#4181 Home Office St. Johns County 
John Deere 544k Loader#4157 Home Office St. Johns County 
Sakai R2H-4 Roller#0200 Home Office St. Johns County 
CAT 938 Loader#4292 Home Office St. Johns County 
CAT 308 Excavator #7047 Home Office St. Johns County 
CAT 336 Hydraulic Excavator #1255 Home Office St. Johns County 
CAT M5315 Wheeled Excavator #1000 Home Office St. Johns County 
CAT 305 E2 Mini Hydraulix Excavator #5737 Home Office St. Johns County 
CAT CS44 Vibratory Compactor #0702 Home Office St. Johns County 
CAT 613C Pan Tractor Scraper #2628 Home Office St. Johns County 

Harrow Attachment#----- Home Office St. Johns County 
CAT D5 Dozer#2476 Home Office St. Johns County 
CAT D5 Dozer#1420 Home Office St. Johns County 

2021 FORD F350 Super Duty #6682 Home Office St. Johns County 



PROVIDE A LIST OF ALL SUBCONTRACTORS/ SUPPLIERS THAT WILL BE HIRED BY PROPOSER FOR THE PROJECT 

Name of Subcontractor 
/ Supplier 

Contact I Phone # / E-Mail Address Role in Project 
(State whether subcontractor/supplier will 
be involved in the work being performed) 

Total Value of Goods or 
Services 

Anticipated to Be Provided 
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STATUS OF CONTRACTS ON HAND 
(Attach additional sheets if necessary) 

Company Name t3 c:icJ-, CJ rd -5mi:16 Uv11Gm pT(( Date Li - ,;:;d-d '--1 
Furnish requested information about all of Proposer's active contracts, whether as prime or subcontracts; whether in progress or awarded but not yet 
started; and regardless of with whom contracted. All amounts to be shown to nearest $1,000. Contractor may consolidate and list as a single item all 
contracts which individually do not exceed 3% of total active contracts and in total do not exceed 20% of the active total contracts . 

PROPOSER'S UNCOMPLETED 
AMOUNT AS OF THIS DATE COMPLETION DATE 

CURRENT CURRENT CURRENT 
OWNER, LOCATION CONTRACT CONTRACT AMOUNT ORIGINAL APPROVED CURRENT 
AND DESCRIPTION AMOUNT AMOUNT AS SUBJECT AS PRIME AS CONTRACT REVISED ESTIMATE 

OF PROJECT AS PRIME SUBCONTRACTOR TO OTHERS CONTRACTOR SUBCONTRACTOR DATE DATE DATE 

$ $ $ $ $ 

$ $ $ $ $ I I 

$ $ II ~f?-€ $ a We11 r~~j C ()rr./-r-/Jt"4" I-~ 61) 1-fnr- ~1 - -- -

$ $ $ $ $ 

$ $ $ $ $ 

$ $ $ $ $ 

$ $ $ $ $ 

$ $ $ $ $ 

$ $ $ $ $ 

$ $ $ $ $ 

$ $ $ $ $ 

Subtotal Uncompleted Work $ $ 

Total Uncompleted Work on Hand 1$ I 
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9/30/24 BESCH AND SMITH CIVIL GROUP, INC. 

CONTRACTS ON HAND 

PROJECT NAME 

R//lar,/1 Hinh s~hoo/ 
Owner: Duval Countv PubUc Schools 
Prime Contractor: GUbene 
Location: Duval Countv, FL 

SouthSide Estates Elementarv School 
Owner: Duval counI~ Public Sciiools 
Prime contractor: Haskell 
Location: Duval Countv. FL 

West Stteat Drs/nnm, 
Owner: Citv of Green Cove Snrinns 
"'rime Contraclor: Besch and Smith Civil Groun Inc. 
Location: Clav Counlv. FL 

Walter Odum Parl< 
Owner: Clav Countv BOGG 
Prim~ Coolractot, Be!lci1 and Smith CivU Groun Inc. 
Le<;allon Clay County, FL 

Co•,n/v Road 220 
Owner. C1av Countv BO€C 
Prime Conllactor: . Basch erid Smith Civil GrouD tnc. 
Location: Olay County, FL 

Cresaent r://v PK-6 
Owner: Puntman Counl• Schools 
i1>rtme Conlrector: Besch and Smith Civil Grouo Inc. 
Lncatron. Pulnam, FL 

DESCRIPTION OF WORK 

Demolition, earthwork, aspahll paving, concrete, 
striping, and slgnage, drainage, sewer, watermsln, 
endfiremain 

Def1]0IH1on , Earthwork, slorm drain, base, paving, 
ccncmle, striping, signage, grassing 

Demolition, Earthwork, Concrete Driveways, Curt>ing, 
Storm Drainage Gravity Sewer, Minor Watermaln 
Adjustements 

Demolition, Earthwork, Sidewalks, Storm Drainage, 
Landscape, Irrigation, Grassing, & Rock Driveway 
Entrance 

Demohllon, Earthwork, Sidewalk, Curt>s, Base 
Pavi"II, Striping, Signage, Grassing, & Signailizatlon 

DemoliLion, Earthwork, Sidewalk, Curt>s, Base 
Paving, Striping, Signage, Grassing, & Signeillzallon 

TOTALS 

TOTAL CONTRACT 
AMOUNT 

$7,182,778 06 

$3,643,896.00 

$4,701,820,88 

$1,353,910 65 

$3,376,424 55 

$8,821,347.00 

$29,080,177.14 

AMOUNT SELF 
PERFORMED 

$5,461 ,929 79 

$3,054,411 34 

$4,349,606.43 

$1,115,924 55 

$1,810,885.65 

$7,010,461 .35 

$22,803,219.11 

AMOUNT 
SUBCONTRACTED TO 

OTHERS 

$599,824.86 

$589,484.66 

$352,214 45 

$237,986 10 

$1,565,538 90 

$2,430,000.00 

$6,776,048.97 

ASOF: 

BALANCE TO FINISH 

$1,440,608 37 

$390,160 99 

$1,083,817.96 

$575,665 70 

$3,376,424.55 

$8,252,714.31 

$16,119,391.88 

START DATE 

Dec-24 

Apr-23 

Apr-24 

Jun-24 

Dec-24 

Sep-24 

ANTICIPATED 
COMPLETION DATE 

Jul-25 

Mar-25 

Jan-25 

Sep-24 

Dec-24 

Sap-25 

https://16,119,391.88
https://8,252,714.31
https://3,376,424.55
https://1,083,817.96
https://6,776,048.97
https://2,430,000.00
https://589,484.66
https://599,824.86
https://22,803,219.11
https://1,810,885.65
https://4,349,606.43
https://29,080,177.14
https://8,821,347.00
https://3,643,896.00


PROJECTSPROPOSERCOMPLETEDINTHELASTTHREEYEARS 

Company Name Bex baocl k5-otfb{;';;;) / r@M· Date /)--dc9-;;?L/ 
List all projects completed in the last two years for which the contract value individually exceeded 3% of the Proposer's annual total work completed for the 

the project was started. Include in the list projects that were started earlier than two vears but were completed within the I 
FINAL PRIME CLASSIFICATION YEAR NAME & PHONE NUMBER OF 

CONTRACT OR OF WORK STARTED/ OWNER NAME/ OWNER'S REPRESENTATIVE 
PROJECT NAME/ LOCATION AMOUNT SUB 1 PERFORMED COMPLETED LOCATION 2 ON THIS PROJECT 3 

r · /}/~/1, I /4 / ~ /)) ~ I ~ 121ir j J r/1 l.r'L+ H!o/-,cYU
JL( LA. I I (.AU CU' -...._/ .... 1 ...__._, .. 

I \.J ___/- (.__,; 

-

'Prime or Sub' should indicate whether Proposer performed the work as a prime contractor or as a subcontractor. 
'Owner Name/ Location' should indicate the Owner of the project if the Proposer performed the work as a prime contractor or the general contractor if the Proposer 
performed the work as a subcontractor. 
'Name & Phone Number of Owner's Representative on this Project' should list a reference from the business entity listed in the previous column familiar with Proposer's 
contract performance. 
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PROJECT HISTORY OF BESCH AND SMITH CIVIL GROUP, INC. 

2023 COMPLETED PROJECTS & ACTIVE 

PROJECT NUMBER PROJECT NAME GENERAL CONTRACTOR 

Besch and Smith Civil Group, Inc 

Old Moutrie Roadway 345 Cumberland Industrial Ct. 

2022-02 
SL Augustine, FL 32095 

St. Augustine, Fl Office: (904) 260-6393 

Fax: (904) 338-0226 

Besch and Smith Civil Group, Inc 
Trailmark 2 

345 Cumberland Industrial Cl 

2021-04 SL Augustine, FL 32095 

St. Augustine, FL Office: (904) 260-6393 

Fax.(904) 338-0226 

Besch and Smith Civil Group, Inc. 
Trailmark 10 

345 Cumberland Industrial Cl. 

2022-04 St Augustine, FL 32095 

St. Augustine, Fl orm.. , (904) 260-6393 

Fax (904) 338-0226 

DC Construction Associates, Inc 
Go-Store It 

546 NW 77th Street 

2022-03 Boca Raton, FL 33487-1324 

Jacksonville, FL olfice· (561 )988-8505 

Fax:(561 )988-8506 

8oscti and Smith Civil Group, Inc 

Marineland Acres 345 Cumberland Industrial Cl 

2020-13 
SL Augustine, FL 32095 

Flagler County Office: (904) 260-6393 

Fax.(904) 338-0226 

OWNER 

StJohns County Purchasing Division 

500 San Sabastian View 

St. Augustine, Fl 32084 

Diana M. Fye 

dfye@sjcfl. us 

Phone (904)209-01 62 

.Six Mile Creek Community Development 

District 

475 West Town Place, Suite 114 

St.Augustine, Fl 32092 

Jim Oliver 

joliver@gmsnf.com 
Phone (904)940-5850 

Six Mile Creek Community Development 

District 

475 West Town Place, Suite 114 

St .Augustine, FL 32092 

Ji m Oliver 

joliver@gmsnf.com 
Phone (904)940-5850 

GSI Jacksonville Gate parkway Owner LLC 

6805 Morrison Blvd suite 250 

Charlotte, NC 28211 

Flagler County BOCC 

1769 E. Moody Blvd, Building 2 

Bunnell, Fl 32110 

, Purcbasfng@ftaglercounty.org 

(386)313-4010 

ENGINEER START/ FINISH •ON TIME L/D LIENS DESCRIPTION OF WORK CONTRACT AMOUNT 
FINAL CONTRACT 

AMOUNT 

Jones Edmunds & Associates, Inc. Yes No 

730 NE Waldo Road Apr-22 

Gainesville, Fl 32641 Earthwork, storm drain, base, paving, 
$2,598,915.00 $2,598,915.00No 

concrete, striping, signage, grassing
Bruce E. Myhre 

Bmyhre@jonesedmunds.com Feb-22 

Phone (352)377-5821 

England, Thims & Miller, Inc. 

14775 Old St.Augustine Road 
Apr-22 

Demolition, clearing and grubbing, 

Jacksonville, FL 32258 Yes No No 
earthwork. stonn drain, water main, 

$8,477,566.20 $9,824,788.94
gravity sewer, base, paving. concrete, 

Zach Brecht striping, signage, grassing 

BrechtZ@.etminc.com Mar-23 

Phone (904)568-7489 

Eng land, Thims & Miller, Inc. 

14775 Old St.Augustine Road 
Jan-22 

Demolition, clearing and grubbing. 

Jacksonvi lle, FL 32258 Yes No No 
earthwork, storm drain, water main. 

$4,615,657.94 $4,615,657.94 
gravity sewer, base, paving, concrete, 

Zach Brecht striping, signage. grassing. 

BrechtZ@.etminc.com Feb-23 

Phone (904)568-7489 

England, Thims & Miller, Inc. 

14775 Old St.Augustine Road 
Apr-22 

Demolition, earthwork, asphalt paving, 

Jacksonville, Fl 32258 Yes No No concrete, striping and signage, drainage, $443,180.00 $507,226.00 

Zach Brecht 
sewer, sitework. distribution 

BrechtZ@etminc.com Feb-23 

Phone (904)568-7489 

England, Thims & Miller, Inc. 

14775 Old St.Augustine Road Jan-21 
Demolition, clearing and grubbing, 

Jacksonville, Fl 32258 earthwork, base, paving, concrete and $7,820,224.00 $9,918,330.18Yes No No 

Zach Brecht 
sidewalk, striping and signage, and 

grassmg 

BrechtZ@.etm inc. com Jun-23 

Phone (904)568-7489 

Page 1 of 2 



A)ax School Board of Duval County, FL Waitz & Moye 

Rutledge 4366 Roanoke Blvd 1701 Prudential Drive 3738 Southside Blvd, Suite 101 May-22 Demolition, clearing and grubbing. 

Jacksonville, FL 32208 Jacksonville, FL 32207 Jacksonvile, FL 32216 earthwork, slrom drain, water main, 

2022-05 Yes No No gravity sewer, fire main, base and paving, $2,070,051.00 $2,248,737.66 
Mark. Krafl@aIaxbuilglog ,eom John Moye concrete and sidewalk, striping, signage, 

Jacksonville, FL Oflfca• (904) 260-6715 jmo~e@.wmice.com Apr-23 grassing 

(904)237-2561 Phone (904)390-2000 Phone (904)641-8311 

6'lscll and Smilh Civil Group, Inc Panther Ideal Holdings, LLC Gutfstream Design Group LLC 

Ideal Aluminum 345 Cumberland Industrial Ct. 3200 Parker Dive 906 Anastasia Blvd, Suite A May-21 

St. Augustine, FL 32095 St. Johns County, FL 32084 St. Augustine, FL 32084 Earthwork, storm drain, fire main, 

2021-04 Yes No No landscape, base and paving, concrete, $1,933,246.57 $1,947,897.60 
Dougl;is Brody Matt Lahti striping and signage, grassing 

St. Augustine, FL Office (904) 260-6393 Matt@.gulfstreamdesign.com Dec-22 

Fax:(904) 338-0226 Phone (904)417-6400 Phone (904)794-4231 

Besch and Smith Civil Group, Inc SUohns County Purchasing Division Jone.-; Edmunds & Associates, Inc. 

King Street & Holmes 345 Cumberland Industrial Cl 500 San Sabastian View 730 NE Waldo Road Nov-22 

2022-06 
St Augustine, FL 32095 St. Augustine, FL 32084 Gainesville, FL 32641 Earthwork, storm drain, base, paving, 

$3,846,100.00 $3,846,100.00Yes No No 

Diana M. Fye Bruce E. Myhre concrete, striping, signage, grassing 

St. Augustine, FL Olfico: (904) 260-6393 dfye@sicfl.us Bm:-{h(e@jonesedmunds.com Aug-23 

Fax:(904) 338-0226 Phone (904)209-0162 Phone (352)377-5821 
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PROJECT HISTORY OF BESCH ANO SMITH CIVILGROUP, INC 

2022 COMPLETED PROJECTS & ACTIVE 

PROJECT NUMBER PROJECT NAME 

Cumberland Ditch Mulching 

2022-01 

St. Augustine, FL 

Atlantis Drive 

2020-14 

Clay County, FL 

Dirt To Pave 

2020-16 

Putnam County, FL 

GENERAL CONTRACTOR 

Besch and Smith Civil Group, Inc 

345 Cumberland Industrial Ct. 

St Augustine, Fl 32095 

Office: (904) 260-6393 

Fax:(904) 338-0226 

Besch and Smith Civil Group, Inc. 

345 Cumber1and Industrial Ct 

Sl Augustine, Fl 32095 

Office: (904) 260-6393 

Fax:(904) 338-0226 

Besch and Smith Civil Group, Inc 

345 Cumberland Industrial Ct. 

Sl Augustine, FL 32095 

Office: (904) 260-6393 

Fax:(904) 338-0226 

OWNER ENGINEER 

Cumberland Park Association "Not Appliable" 

170 Cumberland Park Maintenance Project Only 

St. Augustine, FL 32095 "No Plans Provided" 

Neil Rose 

nrose@aol.com 

Clay County BOCC Eisman & Russo 

PO Box 1366 6455 Poers Ave. 

Green Cove Springs, FL 32043 Jacksonville, FL 32217 

Stephen Koteras Robert Kight 

Stephen . Koteras@claycountygov.co1 rkight@esimanrusso.com 

Phone (904) 269-6301 Phon~ 904-234-0534 
Putnam County Public Works Eng. 

Putnam County BOCC Dept 

PO Box 310 223 Putnam County Blvd. 

East Palatka, FL 32131 East Palatka, FL 32131 

Michael Rodriguez Felipe Rivera 

Mike: rodriguez@Qlltnam-fl.i;om .@]Qe.rb,,:era@Qutnamfl com 

Phone (386) 329-03~6 PhQne (386) 329-0393 

DESCRIPTION OF 
AMOUNT SUB 

"BY BESCH& 
START/ FINISH ON TIME [JD LIENS CONTRACT AMOUNT CHANGE ORDERS FINAL CONTRACT AMOUNT CONTRACTED TO 

WORK SMITH 
OntERS 

Feb-22 

Yes No No Ditch Mulching $10,817.15 $000 $10,817.15 $3,0S9.44 72% 

Feb-22 

Clearing & 
Grubbing, Lin 

Feb-22 Station.. Gravity 
Sc"1:r. Walcrmain. 

Yes No No 
Fort:emain. $3,482,045.65 $4,949 00 $3,379,719.50 $89,535.00 97% 
Grassing, Base, 

P11ving. Striping. 

Jun-22 
.Sl~use,. Sldcw.tlks. 
Cur,b ;md Gullet, 
iu,d Etcc.lnCGI 

Feb-21 
Clearing& 

YES NO No 
Grubbing. Base, 

Paving, Stiping, 
$2,301,398.15 $0.00 $2,313,581.00 $2,007,121.62 13% 

Signage. &Grassing 

Mar-22 



PROJECT HISTORY OF BESCH AND SMITH CIVIL GROUP, INC. 

2021 COMPLETED PROJECTS 

PROJECT PROJECT NAME GENERAL CONTRACTOR 
NUMBER 

Besch and Smith Civil Group, Inc. 

SL Johns River State 
345 Cumberiand Industrial Cl 

College Pavement Project 
St. Augustine, FL 32095 

2020-15 

Orange Par!<, FL. Office: (904) 260-6393 

Fax:(904) 338-0226 

Besch and Smith Civil Group, Inc. 

Dunkin al The Fountains 345 Cumberiand Industrial Ct. 

Sl Augustine, FL 32095 
2021-02 

St Augustine, FL Office: (904) 260-6393 

Fax:(904) 338-0226 

Shearwater Phase 3A 
Be-sch and Smith Civil Group, Inc. 

Civil Site Construction 345 Cumberland Industrial Cl 

2020-08 $ 1 Augustine, FL 32095 

St. Augustine, FL Offia:c (904) 260-6393 

Fax: (904) 338-0226 

WG Pitts Group, Inc. 

Treaty Oal<s PH 2 Units 4 

& 5 
9250 Baymeadows Rd , Suite 350 

•Jaci<sonvllle, FL 32256 
2020-04 

SL Augustine, FL Olfica. (904) 260-3499 

Besch and Smith Civil Group, Inc 

CWSC Parking 345 cumbe~and Industrial Ct. 
Improvements PH 2 

St. Augustine, FL 32095 

2020-12 

01ficcr (904) 260-6393 
Joci<sonv1lle, FL 

FaX1 (904) 338-0226 

OWNER 

St Johns River State College 

5001 St. Johns Avenue 

Palatka, FL. 32177 

Mike Canaday 

Mlkecacl!!da'.l'@slrstale edu 

Fountains Donuts, LLC, 

159 Yellow Bill Lane 

Ponte Vedra Beach, FL 32082 

Joh(I Griffey 

(880) 539-9903 

1o1io@saint1o!J!Js!!!.com 
rout creeK (.;Cmmun1 y 

Oevelopmant DistricUAshford Mills 
Owner VII , LLC 

2806 N, Fifth Street Uni I 403 

SI Augustine, FL 32084 

Davfd Roane 

(004) 436-6270 

Q!!{@f[!:!eholdcol!!!!!!,!nltias corn 

Double Eagle Development, LLC 

!;1260 Baymeadows Rd , Suite 350 

JacksonvIlle, FL 32256 

:Todd While 

(772) 219-6933 
twf11te t[JS! §:2enaen1conslfuct10,\l!g 
mair.com 

JEA 

21 W . Church Street 

Jacksonville, FL 32202 

WIKia111 Breadon 

(90d) 665-4285 

breaWa@Jea.com 

FINAL CONTRACT 
AMOUNT SUB 

% BY BESCH& 
ENGINEER START/ FINISH ON TIME L/D UENS DESCRIPTION OF WORK CONTRACT AMOUNT CHANGE ORDERS CONTRACTED TO 

AMOUNT SMITH 
OTHERS 

Donald Ellington, P.E. 

SJRSC Engineer Feb-21 

8973 SW 15th Avenue Removal and Replacement of 
Yes No No $52,367.00 $000 $52,367.00 $3,059.44 94% 

Galna.vflle. FL 32607 
curt,, sidewalk, and asphalt 

( 352) 538-5554 Feb-21 

QoonieElllog!2n@s~lfl\• edu 

Taylor and While 

9556 Historic Kings Road Aug-21 
Earthworl<, water main, gravity 

Jacksonville, FL, 32257 
Yes No No 

sewer, storm drainage, base, 
$359,196 00 $4,949 .00 $364,145 00 $89,53500 75% 

Barry Rohrer 
paving, striping, signange, and 
grassing. 

(904) 346-0671 Ocl-21 

Barrv. Rohrerta>tavlorar 

Prosser, Inc 

13901 Sutton Par!< Drive S., Suito Aug-20 Demolition, clearing and 

200 grubbing, earthworl<, storm drain, 

Jacksonville, FL 32224 YES NO NO water main, gravity sewer, base $7,235,904.19 $0 00 $7,235,904 19 $2,007,121 .62 72% 

and paving, curb, striping and 
Greg Will signage, and grassing 

(904) 739-3655 Dec-21 

gwHl@gEQsseonc·corn 

Kimley-Hom & Associates, Inc, 

127 40 Gran Bay Parl<way W, Suilll Feb-20 
2350 Demolition, clearing and 

Jacksonville, FL 32258 
grubbing, base and paving, curb, 

YES NO NO gravity sewer, storm drain, $1 ,227,343 00 $80,95700 $1 ,306,300 00 $140,260 66 89% 

Chris Reuther striping and signage, and 

901\ 828 3927 Oct-20 
grassing 

Chri• RcuU•nr@klmlei-hom cow 

Johl'I R Barnard & Associates, Inc 

4453 Shi~ey Avenue Jul-20 
Demolillon, clearing end 

Jar.ksonvllla, FL 32210 grubbing, ero• ian control, 

YES NO NO 
earthwork , potable water, base 
•nd paving, curt, and sidowalk, 

$542,407.98 $1 3,759.87 $556, 167,85 $269,628 96 52% 

striping and slgnage, electric. and 
Dec-20 grassing 
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2020-11 

WIidwood Drive al US-1 
(SR-5) Intersection 
lmprnvement• 

Besch and Smith Civil Group, Inc, 

3~5 Cumberland Industrial Ct 

SI, Augustine, FL 32095 

SJC Purchasing Department 

500 San Sebastian View 

.St Augustine, FL 32084 

Elomenl Engineertng Group 

1713 E 9th Avenue 

Tampa, FL 33605 

DereK M Gil, P-E. 

Aug-20 

YES NO NO 
Earthwork. storm drain, utilities, 
baso, paving, concrete, striping 
and signage, electrical. 

$1,152,723.70 -$7,845.62 $1,144 ,878 08 H65,545.06 33% 

SI Augustine. FL Office: (904) 260-6393 o rn ca· (904) 209-0805 (813) 386-2101 Feb 2021 

Fait:(904) 338-0226 ~ubl,c~(d!i®sfcn u~ 
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- - - - --------- - - - - - - - - - - - - --

~ ~

--- -------- - --

For each Subcontractor / Supplier that will provide goods or services in excess of $25,000 for the Project, 
provide the following information: 

Title: 

Contact: 01>.SQt\ wc.hb 

Contact Phone/E-Mail:6~~ ~- z.qlP - ~ __ _ _ _ _ _ _o ) _~_ z.oz. c, _ _ _ _ _ 

Shipment Location (for Suppliers): 

Years in Business: - ~ ZJ=A~ _'f...,PA...._f',_,_____ ___ ________ _ _ 

Proposed Role for the Project: ~ ~-S~P~ha~\t~ -+-'Po..~1/~i~f'\c'-ia - - ----- -----

Is the Subcontractor Supplier registered with the State of Florida, Division of Corporations and 

authorized to do business in St. Johns County and the State of Florida? YesL No: _ 

Ifno, explain: ___________ _____ _ _ ______ ___ 

Does the Subcontractor/Supplier have all applicable business licenses in good standing? 

Yes: / No: 

Please list licenses: 

" 
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- --- - - ---- ------ - ----------

For each Subcontractor / Supplier that will provide goods or services in excess of $25,000 for the Project, 
provide the following information: 

Title: 

Office Location: to \ U>..M '/O,, c0 ,.,c¼ 

Shipment Location (for Suppliers): ______ ___ ___ _ _ 

Years in Business: -~1_7~➔~-fA~l~S_______ ___ ___ _____ . 
Proposed Role for the Project: ~C=o~n=c~fe~J=e_ s~;...,0e~v= <..\~'t'.-+-1 _ c,=u~<-b~t:'i-,~G~v~HK~----

Is the Subcontractor Supplier registered with the State of Florida, Division of Corporations and 

authorized to do business in St. Johns County and the State ofFlorida? Yes / No: _ 

Ifno, explain: _ _ __________ ____ __________ _ 

Does the Subcontractor/Supplier have all applicable business licenses in good standing? 

Yes: / No: 

Please list licenses: z., _ \ <oz.sq1n 
- - "-=---'--=--"---'--'---'--- --------- ------
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AFFIDAVIT FOR INDIVIDUAL 

STATE OF 
ss 

COUNTY OF 

being duly sworn, deposes and says that the 
statements and answers to the preceding questions are correct and true as of this date; and that he/ she understands 
that intentional inclusion of false, deceptive or fraudulent statements on this application constitute fraud; and, that the 
District considers such action on the part of the Proposer to constitute good cause for rejecting Proposer's proposal. 

no-+-- (Proposer must also sign here) 

Sworn to before this -b{f)f J1cahle '2024. 

Notary Public / Expiration Date: 

(SEAL) 
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AFFIDAVIT FOR PARTNERSHIP 

STATE OF ) 
) ss 

COUNTY OF 1 

___ _ _ _ _ _ _ _ _ _ _ __, is a member of the firm of _ _ _______ _ _ _ _ , being duly 
sworn, deposes and says that the statements and answers to the preceding questions are correct and true as of the 
date of this affidavit; and, that he/ she understands that intentional inclusion of false, deceptive or fraudulent statements 
on this application constitutes fraud; and, that the District considers such action on the part of the Proposer to constitute 
good cause for rejecting Proposer's proposal. 

n()~ Signature of a General Partner is Required) 

Sworn to before me this_ day of -£tW-1~d J-e_ 

Notary Public / Expiration Date: 

(SEAL) 
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AFFIDAVIT FOR CORPORATION 

FLSTATE OF ) 
) ss 

COUNTY OF } 

of the - - --'=..___"""--"-'__,_---=~::::...._.....,,__c....:/Y) · J, - -----==-'- --=--- _ _ ___,_'-L~ ___,:_--""""":....!.......l'---'--''--"'""'-'--="+-- n~ C · _ 

, (a corporation described herein) being duly sworn, deposes and says that t e statements and answers to the preceding 
questions are correct and true as of the date of this affidavit; and, that he/ she understands that intentional inclusion of 
false, deceptive or fraudulent statements on this application constitutes fraud; and, that the District considers such 
action on the part of the Proposer to constitute good cause for rejecting Proposer's proposal. 

(Officer must also sign here) 

CORPORA TE SEAL 

ISworn to before me this 27/d. day of M,Vtc'\Dr,( 2024. 

Notary Public / Expiration Date: 

TYLER JAMES RODEN 
NOTARY PUBLIC

(SEAL) STATE OF FLORIDA 
NO. HH319586 

MY COMMISSION EXPIRES OCT.06, 2026 
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- ------------- ----

PINEWALK GREENBRIAR ROAD WIDENING 

PART II. PROPOSAL FORM- (D) FINANCIAL CAPACITY 

1. Provide copies ofthe Proposer's financial statements, showing assets and liabilities,for 
each ofthe past three years. Also attach an interim balance sheet not more than 60 days 
old. Certified copies accompanied by an auditor's opinion are strongly encouraged, but 
not required. IfProposer believes any ofthe submitted financial statements and balance 
sheet is exempt or confidential and exempt under Florida law, Contractor shall indicate 
this on each page submitted. 

2. Complete the following chart for each ofthe past three years: 

YEAR ANNUAL 
REVENUE 

# OF PROJECTS 
COMPLETED 

LARGEST 
PROJECT SIZE 

2023 ~,ChGJqci 9 5? lb ccq19_)33cJ> I '6 
2022 /1)~4J~ L/..3 j 1' 3, 3 -7q, 1 Iq. ~ -2021 

) 5\f;BJ) 783 C, Jj 1, JJs; 4ol-4. 

3. Has the Proposer or any ofits affiliates (parents or subsidiaries), or any ofthe Proposer's 
officers or principal members, shareholders or investors filed fi1rJ1.ankruptcy, either 
voluntary or involuntary, within the past 10 years? Yes U No~ Ifyes, provide the 
following: 

Identify the Case# and Tribunal: _ _ _____ ____ ______ _ 

Describe the Nature of the Action: 

Describe the Proposer' s Role in the Action and Describe the Status and/or Resolution: 
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4. Has the Proposer or any of its afftliates (parents or subsidiaries), or any of the 
Proposer's officers or principal members, shareholders or investors ex~ut an 
assignment for the benefit of creditors within the past 10 years? Yes U No If yes, 
please explain: 

5. Has the Proposer or any ofits affiliates (parents or subsidiaries) or any ofthe Proposers 
officers or principal membe. , shareholders or investors defaulted on a loan or other 
fi11ancial obligation ~ . ailing to pay subcontractors or materialme11) within the past 
10 years? Yes U No lfyes,please explai11: 

6. What is the Proposer's proposed insurance for the Project? Refer to the form of 
contract for minimum amounts. 

Workers' Compensation 

a. State Worker's Compensation - Greater of statutorily 
required amount or $1,000,00Per occurrence/ $1,000,000 
aggregate/ $1,000,00(),er disease 

b. Applicable Federal (e.g., United States Longshoreman and 
Harbor Workers' Compensation Act, Jones Act, etc.) -
Greater of statutorily required amount or$ N/A 

c. Employer's Liability-$ Statutory 

Commercial General Liability Insurance 

a. Bodily Injury, Sickness, Disease or Death, and Property 
Damage, per Occurrence - $ 2,000,000 
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-----

b. Bodily Injury, Sickness, Disease or Death, and Property 
Damage, Aggregate - $ 4,000,000 

c. Products-Completed Operations - $ 4,000,000 Aggregate 
d. Personal and Adverti ing Injury- $ 2,QQQ,000 Occurrence 
e. Property Damage liability insurance will provide 

Explosion, Collapse, and Under-ground coverages 
where applicable. 

Automobile Liability 
$1,000,000 Combined Single Limit 

a. Bodily Injury: 
Each Person $ 

Each Accident 

b. Property Damage: 
Each Occurrence $ 

Pollution Insurance ( covering third-party injury and property damage 
claims, including clean-up costs) $ 1MIU2MIL 

Protection and Indemnity Insurance $ N/A 

Contractual Liability coverage 
$ 4,000,000a. General Aggregate 

b. Bodily Injury and Property Damage 
$ 2,000,000Combined Each Occurrence 

Umbrella Insurance (above the Commercial Liability, Automobile 
Liability, Employers Liability, Pollution Insurance, Protection and 
Indemnity Insurance and Contractual Liability Insurance listed 
herein) 

a. General Aggregate $5,000,000 
b. Each Occurrence $5,000.000 

Builder's Risk Insurance for the amount of the Project? YES/NO 

Boiler & Machinery Insurance? 

(List items on separate page) YES/NO 

Other $ 

Other $_ ____ 

(Attach a copy of a current insurance certificate evidencing the contractor's 
insurance.) 
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7. What are the Proposer's current bonding limits? 

Name ofProposer's Bonding Company rn f «JXJ.ol--5 8md. iC9 &rpang 

Approved Bonding Capacities: 

Aggregate Limit $ 30JC{D) CC{) ~C{) 

Single Project Limit $ , 5 ) ~ ft() poo 
Total Current Contracts Bonded $ _____ 

NameofProposer'sBondingAgency r C!LI I U\ Pa..x:I/ j? UJmpm;4 
Address ~ l 4 N J\fo.Lhc,n Sired- ~d5X!Vi//½ ~ 
Contact Name 8/) bJt'")eu.s Telephone: qt)-/-jyJ -3JB ( 
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SECTION II 
PROPOSAL FORM 
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PROPOSAL 
(Official Bid Form) 

FOR 

PINEWALK GREENBRIAR ROAD WIDENING 

FOR 

GREENBRIAR COMMUNITY DEVELOPMENT DISTRICT 

TO BE SUBMITTED TO: 

Greenbriar COD 

C/O REGIONAL DEVELOPMENT, LLC. 
50 Silver Forest Dr. I Suite 203 

St. Augustine, FL 32092 

on or before "Date Novemebr 22nd , 2024@Time 3:00 P.M. 
PUBLIC OPENING 

TO: GREENBRIAR COMMUNITY DEVELOPMENT DISTRICT 

FROM: 0£ScH AJ-Jo ~ 1Tl--l Gv, v G(<.ovt& IN'~ 
(Contractor) 

In accordance with the Request for Proposal inviting proposals for Pine Walk Greenbriar Road Widening, 
the undersigned proposes to perform all work necessary to install a complete roadway infrastructure and 
construct the improvements including but not limited to mobilization, erosion control, maintenance and 
restoration of staging and access areas, protection and restoration of property, paving, drainage and 
utilities, as shown on the plans released for bid and the Geotechnical Report prepared by ECS Florida, 
LLC, and in accordance with all JEA Water and Sewer and St Johns County requirements, JEA Electric 
Standards and Specifications, and as well as the St. Johns County, JEA, St. Johns River Water 
Management District, DEP and NPDES permits. Substantial Completion and Final Completion shall be 
clearly shown on the Proposer's Schedule. 

All proposals shall be for complete work in accordance with the construction plans. (No partial 
proposals accepted.) 
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TO: GREENBRIAR COMMUNITY DEVELOPMENT DISTRICT 

From: DESCH A~o 5M11\ A Gv 11,, G~f Jt-lC 
In response to your Request for Proposal, the undersigned hereby submits our Proposal for the Pine Walk Greenbriar 
Road Widening project. This Proposal has been prepared and submitted subject to the conditions and requirements set 
forth in the Project Manual, including all Addenda. All of the documents included in the Project Manual and Addenda 
thereto, so far as they relate to this Proposal, are made a part hereof. The undersigned (Contractor) herewith proposes 
to perform the work stipulated for the unit and/or lump sum prices given by the Summary of Costs and schedule of 
values that is part hereof. 

The undersigned has carefully checked the Summary of Costs and schedule of values against the Project Manual, 
including but not limited to the plans and specifications, general and special conditions and other contract documents 
and all Addenda before proposing this Proposal and accepts them as correctly listing the complete work to be done in 
accordance with the Project Manual, including but not limited to the plans and specifications, general and special 
conditions and other contract documents. 

The undersigned Proposer examined the entire Project Manual, including but not limited to the Request for Proposal, 
plans and specifications, General and Special Conditions, and other contract documents and all addenda and is 
acquainted with and fully understands the extent and character of the work covered by this Proposal and the specified 
requirements for the work to be performed for the Project. Further, the Proposer has examined the work site and is fully 
informed as to conditions at this site. The Proposer understands that all work provided for in the Project Manual, 
including but not limited to all contract-related documents, as may be amended, shall be warranted to the benefit of the 
St. Johns County Utility Authority and St. Johns County accordingly. All other work shall be warranted in accordance 
with the Contract Documents. 

The undersigned Proposer certifies that no officer or agent of Greenbriar Community Development District is 
directly or indirectly interested in this Proposal. 

The undersigned Proposer states that this Proposal is made in conformity with the Project Manual and agrees that in 
case of any discrepancy or differences between any condition of his or her Proposal and those of the Project Manual, 
the provisions of the latter shall prevail. 

The undersigned Proposer certifies that he or she has carefully examined the project site, made his/her own 
measurements and calculations and prepared and checked the foregoing Proposal after the same was completed and 
has verified every item placed thereon; and agrees to indemnify, defend and hold harmless Greenbriar Community 
Development District and England-Thims and Miller, Inc. against any cost, damage or expense which may be incurred 
or caused by error in his or her preparation of the same. 

The undersigned acknowledges, by execution of this Proposal, that all information provided herein has been provided 
in full and that such information is truthful and accurate. Proposer agrees through submission of this Proposal to honor 
all pricing information ninety (90) days from that date of the Proposal opening, and if awarded a contract on the basis 
of this Proposal, or a portion thereof, to enter into and execute the standard form of agreement in substantially the form 
included in the Project Manual. Further the Contractor warrants the pricing provided in the Proposal shall remain valid 
and binding for the term of the agreement and not subject to escalation, including for gasoline, labor or material price 
increases. 

Proposer understands that inclusion offalse, deceptive, or fraudulent statements on the Proposal constitutes fraud; such 
action on the part of the Proposer to constitute good cause for denial, suspension or revocation of a Proposal for work 
fmGmnbr;a,Commun;tyDevelopmentrn,trict. /1 . j _Q.~ 

~~ ,AND ~taz.J UV•L ~f' /NC, By:__.Lk'--- LJ~ - ----~ (j)lL ----==-
Name ofOrganization 

This ;;[:/'Aday of N(Jl./(.rr&r. 2024 By: NJ{O)<. &:£b m(~idert-
Name and Title of Person Signing 
(Apply Corporate Seal if filing as a Corporation) 
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GREENBRIAR COMMUNITY DEVELOPMENT DISTRICT 
GREENBRIAR ROAD WIDENING 

BID SUMMARY 

BASE BID 

PART 1. ROADWAY AND DRAINAGE 

Item No. and Description 

A.ROADWAY 

A.1 MOBILIZATION 

A.2 TEMPORARY CONSTRUCTION OFFICES 

A.3 MAINTENANCE OF TRAFFIC 

A.4 CLEARING AND GRUBBING 

A.5 EARTHWORK 

A.6 ROADWAY CONSTRUCTION 

A. 7 JEA WATER MAIN 

A.8 ROADWAY SIGNING 

A.9 ROADWAY MARKING 

A.10 DRY UTILITY COORDINATION 

A.11 PREVENTION, CONTROL, AND ABATEMENT OF 
EROSION AND WATER POLLUTION 

TOTAL 

$ 469,134.29 

$ 0.00 

$ 113,692.19 

$ 297,946.13 

$ 1,593, 100.52 

$ 2,336,162.07 

$ 87.854.03 

$ 22,619.70 

$ 85.176.65 

$ 24,395.21 

$ 80,615.46 

SUBTOTAL ROADWAY (ITEMS A.1 -A.11) $ 5,110,696.25 

B.DRAINAGE 

B. l STORM DRAINAGE COLLECTION AND CONVEYANCE $ 2,449,583.85 

SUBTOTAL DRAINAGE (ITEMS B.1) $ 2,449,583.85 

TOTAL PART ONE (ITEMS A-8) $ 7,560,280.10 
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PART TWO - LANDSCAPE AND IRRIGATION 

A. LANDSCAPING 

B. TEMPORARY IRRIGATION SYSTEM 

C. GRASSING 

D. IRRIGATION SLEEVES AND ELECTRICAL/rELEPHONE/ 
CATV COUNDUIT (CONTINGENCY) 

$ 

$ 

$ 

$ 

175,035.62 

60,988.03 

148,755.95 

50,685.00 

TOTAL PART lWO (ITEMS A-D) $ 435,464.60 

PART THREE-MISCELLANEOUS 
A. STORM WATER POLLUTION PREVENTION PLAN $ 22,931.95 

B. TESTING ALLOWANCE $ 100,000.00 

C.BONDING $ 183,727.21 

D. AS-BUILTS $ 82,932.99 

TOTAL PART THREE (ITEMS A-D) $ 389,592.15 

GRAND TOTAL LUMP SUM BASE BID (PARTS 1-3) $ 8,385,336.85 

BID ALTERNATES 

Bid Alternate Number 1 - JEA Reuse Main Construction $ 2,034,531 .16 
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PART 1. ROADWAY AND DRAINAGE 

A. ROADWAY 

A. I MOBILIZATION 

Includes all preparatory work and operations in mobilizing for beginning work (exclusive of JEA) on the 
project, including, but not limited to, those operations necessary for the movement of personnel, 
equipment, supplies, and incidentals to the project site and for the establishment of temporary offices 
(Contractor's), buildings, safety equipment and first aid supplies, and sanitary and other facilities. Includes 
the costs of any required insurance and any other preconstruction expense necessary for the start of the 
work, excluding the cost ofconstruction materials. All pre-construction and construction survey costs are 
included in the mobilization. 

TOTAL LUMP SUM PRICE ITEM A.1: 

$ _ _____ __4_6_9~1_3_4_.2_9____ ______ (Numerals) 

Four Hundred Sixty-Nine Thousand One Hundred Thirty-Four Dollars and Twenty-Nine Cents (Written) 

A.2 TEMPORARY CONSTRUCTION OFFICES 

Includes all costs associated with constructing a field office, should the contractor elect to construct/secure 
a temporary office for the duration of the project 

TOTAL LUMP SUM PRICE ITEM A.2: 

$ ___ ______0_.0_0_____________ (Numerals) 

_ _____Nc.....c.O~BC--'-I_D_P_E"'-'-R"""--'--'R"'--F-"-Q~ _______ (Written) 

A.3 MAINTENANCE OF TRAFFIC 

Includes all costs associated with implementing the Maintenance ofTraffic Plan as depicted on the plans 
and in accordance with the FOOT Standard Plans I 02-600 series, including but not limited to: 

FLAGGERS 
WORK ZONE SIGNS 
BARRICADE (TEMPORARY) (TYPES l,II,VP & DRUM) 
BARRICADE (TEMPORARY) (TYPE III) (6') 
PANELS ARROW ADVANCE WARNING 
TEMPORARY LIGHTING 
TEMPORARY PIPE 
TEMPORARY PAVEMENT 
MARKER PA VT REFLECTIVE (TEMPORARY) 
PA VT MARKING TEMPORARY PAINT 
PAVT MARKING REMOVABLE 
PA VT MARKING REMOVABLE (RPM) 
ACCESS FOR RESIDENCES AND BUSINESSES 
COORDINA TJON WITH EMERGENCY SERVICE PROVIDERS 
FENCE AND GATE MAINTENANCE 

TOTAL LUMP SUM PRICE ITEM A.3: 

$ _______1.,_1.:....:3::..,.•=69=2=·:....:.1..::c9__________ (Numerals) 

One Hundred Thirteen Thousand Six Hundred Ninety-Two Dollars and Nineteen Cents (Written) 
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A.4 CLEARING AND GRUBBING 

Includes complete clearing and grubbing and burning and/or removal off-site of all trees, brush, roots, and 
all other debris in accordance with project specifications, St. Johns County and FDOT Standard 
Specifications, whichever is more stringent. This clearing and grubbing will be done within the roadways 
rights-of-way, permanent easements, temporary construction easements, construction staging area, and all 
other areas as necessary to complete the construction of this project. This item ofwork includes but is not 
limited to: 

CLEARING & GRUBBING 

TOTAL LUMP SUM PRICE ITEM A.4: 

$ _ ____ 2_9_7__,,'-----9_4_6_.1_3_ _ _ _ _ _______ (Numerals) 

Two Hundred Ninety-Seven Thousand Nine Hundred Forty-Six Dollars and Thirteen Cents (Written) 

A.5 EARTHWORK 

A.S(a) Includes all dewatering, excavation, fill, compaction, and any additional work necessary to construct 
the project including but not limited to: roadways, offsite ditches, and adjacent easements. Includes 
removal of all unsuitable material encountered, naturally occurring or otherwise, as required for roadway 
and utility construction. Also includes replacement of removed unsuitable material shown in the plans 
with suitable fill in accordance with project specifications. Also includes all fine grading and dress-up work 
necessary to complete the roadway project. 

Erosion control measures, clearing, grading, excavation, and sodding of Greenbriar Road Pond will be 
performed by Phase I Collector Road contractor that will be contracted by the CDD. The CDD intends to 
sell excavated material from the pond to the roadway contractor for this project. Coordination will be 
required between the CDD Engineer, and the Phase I Collector Road contractor. 

This item ofwork includes but is not limited to: 

EXCAVATION REGULAR HAUL ROUTE MAINTENANCE 
EXCAVATION SUBSOIL EMBANKMENT 
STRIPPINGS TOPSOIL (GRASSING OPERATIONS) 

SUB TOTAL LUMP SUM PRICE ITEM A.5(a): 

$ - - - - - - ---=1...,_1.:....:2=2=8=5=0::....:·=52=------ - - - - (Numerals) 

One Million One Hundred Twenty-Two Thousand Eight Hundred Fifty Dollars and Fifty-Two Cents (Written) 
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A.5(b) FLOWABLE FILL (CONTINGENCY) 

Flowable Fill is to be excavatable and will be used for roadway and drainage construction as directed by 
the engineer. 

Basis of Bid shall be one thousand (1,000) CY at$ 305.35 per CY 

SUB TOTAL LUMP SUM PRICE ITEM A.5(b): 

$ --------=3c..::::0...::;5.i..:3::....::5:...:0:....:...0=-0=---------- -- (Numerals) 

_ _ T_h_re_e_h_u_nd_r_ed_ F_i_ve_T_h_o_us_a_n_d _Th_r_ee_ Hu_n_d_re_d_F_ift_y_D_o_lla_rs_a_n_d_Z_e_ro_C_e_nt_s___ (Written) 

A.5( c) REMOVE/REPLACE UNSUITABLE MATERIAL (CONTINGENCY) 

Includes removal ofall unsuitable material encountered but not shown in the plans, naturally occurring or 
otherwise, as required for roadway, drainage, and utility construction. Also includes replacement of 
removed unsuitable material not shown in the plans with suitable fill in accordance with project 
specifications. 

Basis of Bid shall be five thousand (5,000) CY at$ 32.98 per CY 

SUB TOTAL LUMP SUM PRICE ITEM A.5(c): 

$ ______ 1_6_4_,9_0_0_._00_ ___________ (Numerals) 

_ o_n_e_H_u_n_dr_e_d_S_ixt_y_-F_o_ur_T_h_o_us_a_nd_N_in_e _H_un_d_re_d_D_o_lla_r_s_an_d_Z_e_ro_c_e_n_ts____ (Written) 

TOTAL LUMP SUM PRICE ITEM A.5 (A.5(a) + A.5(b) + A.5(c)): 

$ ______1~,_5_93_,~1_0_0_.5_2_ _ _________ (Numerals) 

One Million Five Hundred Nin'ety-Three Thousand One Hundred Dollars and Fifty-Two Cents (Written) 



A.6 ROADWAY CONSTRUCTION 

Includes all material, labor and equipment to construct roadways as shown on the plans and in accordance 
with project specifications. This item of work includes but is not limited to: 

STABILIZATION TYPE B CONCRETE PAVERS 
OPTIONAL BASE COURSE 18" CURB AND GUTTER 
SUPERP A VE ASPHALT CONCRETE TYPE DCURB 
ASPHALT CONCRETE FRICTION COURSE TYPE E CURB AND GITTER 
BEDDING SAND TYPE F CURB AND GUTTER 
CONCRETE SIDEWALK TYPE RA CURB AND GUTTER 
CONCRETE PAVERS TEMPORARY PAVEMENT 
CLASS NS CONCRETE TYPE A FENCE 
CONCRETE APRON FENCE GATES 

TOTAL LUMP SUM PRICEITEM A.6: 
$ 2,336,162.07 (Numerals) 

Two Million Three Hundred Thirty Six Thousand One Hundred Sixty-Two Dollars and Seven Cents (Written) 

A. 7 IBA WATER SYSTEM 

Includes the construction of the water transmission system including all pipe, valves, services, fittings, 
bore and jacks, directional bores, connection to the existing water distribution system, pressure testing, 
flushing, disinfection, bacteriological testing, flushing hydrants, fire hydrants, locate wires and 
appurtenances, plugs, and the removal, disposal and replacement of any unsuitable material encountered, 
and all other work (including dewatering) necessary to complete the installation of the system. Includes 
the preparation and submittal of all water as-builts as required by JEA, Florida Department of 
Environmental Protection, and St. Johns County. 

TOTAL LUMP SUM PRICE ITEM A.7: 

$ _ _____ _ 8_7_,8_5_4_.0_3_ ____ ______ (Numerals) 

___E_ig_h_ty_-s_e_v_en_T_h_o_u_sa_n_d_E_ig_h_t _H_un_d_re_d_F_ift_y_-_Fo_u_r_D_o_lla_rs_a_n_d_T_h_re_e_C_e_n_ts___ (Written) 

A.8 ROADWAY SIGNING 

Includes all roadway signing complete as shown on the plans and in accordance with Florida Department 
of Transportation, and St. Johns County Specifications. Item includes but is not limited to: 

SIGN PANEL 
SINGLE POST SIGN 
REMOVE/RELOCATE EXISTING SIGNS 
SIGN FOUNDATIONS 

TOTAL LUMP SUM PRICE ITEM A.8: 
$ 22,619.70 (Numerals) 

__T_w_e_n_ty_-T_w_o_T_h_o_u_sa_n_d_S_ix_H_u_n_d_re_d_N_in_e_te_e_n_a_n_d_S_ev_e_n_ty_C_e_n_ts______ _ (Written) 
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A.9 ROADWAY MARKING 

Includes all roadway pavement marking complete as shown on the plans and in accordance with Florida 
Department of Transportation and St. Johns County Specifications. Item includes but is not limited to: 

OBJECT MARKERS 
REFLECTIVE PAVEMENT MARKERS 
STRIPING (PAINT) 
STRIPING (THERMOPLASTIC) 
PAVEMENT MESSAGES AND DIRECTIONAL ARROWS (PAINT) 
PAVEMENT MESSAGES AND DIRECTIONAL ARROWS (THERMOPLASTIC) 
REFLECTIVE ISLAND NOSE PAINT 

TOTAL LUMP SUM PRICE ITEM A.9: 

$ ________ _8_5 ..........1~7~6~.6~5~ _ ____ ____ (Numerals) 

_ _ _E_ig_h_ty_-Fi_1v_e_Th_ou_s_a_nd_ O_n_e_H_u_n_dr_e_d_S_ev_e_n~ty-S_ix_D_o_ll_ar_s_a_nd_S_i_xty~--F_ive_C_en_ts__ (Written) 

A.10 DRY UTILITY COORDINATION 

Includes coordination with with JEA Electric, CATV and fiber optics. Contractor is to be cognizant of the 
location of utilities in his performance of subsequent construction tasks and will be responsible for the 
resolution of any conflicts that may arise. Contractor shall include the costs ofcoordinating his work with 
the work of the dry utility contractors in order to avoid any stoppage of work and/or delay charges. No 
additional time for coordination will be granted to satisfy the requirements of this item. 

TOT AL LUMP SUM PRICE ITEM A.10: 

$ ___ ___~2~4c.,c.3=9=5"-".=2...a..1_ _______ ___ (Numerals) 

_T~w~e=n=ty=+~o=ur~Th~o=us=a=~=ee ~ e=d=N=n=e=ty-Fi,ve~~ =~=~~~ O e~~nt=__nd Th r=~H~u n~d~r i ==~ □ o=lla rs an d Twe~nt~y-~~n~ C e= s (Written) 

A.11 PREVENTION, CONTROL, AND ABATEMENT OF EROSION AND WATER POLLUTION 

Includes all measures that are required to comply with the State of Florida water quality standards. This 
includes all such measures that shall prevent the discharge of turbid waters from the site and minimize 
erosion of all graded areas. This item includes but is not limited to the following: 

ARTIFICIAL COVERINGS SAND BAGGING 
SLOPE DRAINS (TEMPORARY) SEDIMENT BASINS 
SEDIMENT BASIN CLEANOUTS ROCK BAGS 
SYNTHETIC BALE TEMP GRASSING 
TURBIDITY BARRIER FLOATING TURBIDITY BARRIER STAKED 
SILT FENCE STAKED (TYPE nn STAKED SILT FENCE (TYPE IV) 
SOIL TRACKING PREVENTION DEVICES PLASTIC EROSION CONTROL MAT 
PLAN IMPLEMENTATION, INSPECTION, AND MAINTENANCE 

TOT AL LUMP SUM PRICE ITEM A.11 : 

$ ________8_0~6_1_5_._4_6__________ (Numerals) 

------'E=ig...ch....c.ty._T_h-'-"o-"us=a=n.c...d..cc.S=ix_H.ccu_nd_r_ed_F_ift--'-e~e_n_D....c.o_lla_rs_a_n_d_F_o_rty._-=Si_x_C_en_t_s_____ (Written) 
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B. DRAINAGE 

lncludes the complete stonn drainage sy tern, including all dewatering structures, pipes and spillways. 
Include removal replacement and disposal of any un uitable material encountered in the regular 
excavation and all other work necessary to complete d1e installation. Tncludes backfill and compaction as 
required by the contract documents and St. Johns County. 

Under this County contract for Greenbriar Road Widening, contractors will be responsible for coordinating 
with the Contractor for the COD Phase I Collector Road project for the following work- required to 
complete the roadway project: 
a) Installation of storm drains into and out of the ponds 
b) Installation of control structures 
c) Additionally, unsuitable materialmay be disposed of below the bottom depths in the ponds, 

provided a minimum of24" of suitable material is placed between any unsuitable material and 
the bottom elevation of the pond. 

Item includes but is not limited to: 

B. l STORM COLLECTION AND CONVEYANCE 

PIPE DITCH PAVEMENT 
INLETS UNDERDRAIN STUBS 
MANHOLES RIP RAP 
ENDWALLS MITERED END SECTIONS 

TOTAL LUMP SUM PRICE ITEM B.1: 

$ - - - - - -~2~4_4~9~5~8~3-.8~5~- - - - ----- (Numerals) 

Two Million Four Hundred Forty-Nine Thousa11d Flve Hundred Eighty-Three Dollars and Eighty-Five Cents (Written) 
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PART TWO - LANDSCAPE AND IRRIGATION 

A. LANDSCAPING 

Includes all costs ofmaterial, labor and equipment for providing landscaping as shown on the plans and in 
accordance with project specifications. Item includes but is not limited to: 

TREES 
ROOT BARRIER 

TOTAL LUMP SUM PRICE ITEM A: 

$ --------~17~5~·=0=3~5~.6=2~________(Numerals) 

One Hundred Seventy-Five Thousand Thirty-Five Dollars and Sixty-Two Cents (Written) 

B. TEMPORARY IRRIGATION SYSTEM 

Bidder shall be responsible for establishing a temporary irrigation system to provide, at a minimum, 
bubblers for each tree planting. System shall be design/build by the Bidder and shall be utilized for the 
establishment period for all tree plantings. Include costs for removal of the temporary irrigation system 
upon completion of establishment period. 

TOTAL LUMP SUM PRICE ITEM B: 

$ _ ______6=-0=->-=9=8-=-8'-".0"""3__________ (Numerals) 

__..c.S_ixt..,_y_T_h_o_us'"'"a~nd_N_in_e_H_u_nd_r_ed_E..,.ig_ht.._y-_E~ig'--h_t _Do_l_la_rs_a_n_d_T_h_re_e_C_e_nt_s_ ____.(Written) 

C. GRASSING 

C. l Includes all costs of material, labor and equipment for grassing of all disturbed areas within the I imits 
of construction as shown in the plans and including ditches and berms. All grassing shall be in accordance 
with St. Johns County and the Project Specifications. Item includes but is not limited to: 

BAHIA SOD BAHIA SEED & MULCH 
WATERING FERTILIZER 
MOWING 

SUB TOTAL LUMP SUM PRICE ITEM C.1: 

$ ___ ______ 1_4_0~6_5_5_.9_5________ (Numerals) 

_ O_n_e_H_u_n_d_re_d_F_o_rt~y_T_ho_u_s_an_d_S_ix_H_un_d_re_d_F_ift~y_-F_iv_e_D_o_ll_a_rs_a_n_d_N_in_e~ty_-F_iv_e_c_e_nt_s__ (Written) 
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C.2 TEMPORARY SEED AND MULCH (BAHIA) (CONTINGENCY) 

Basis of Bid shall be for ten thousand (2,000) sy at $_ ~.8~1~_ _ isy. 

SUB TOTAL LUMP SUM PRICE ITEM C.2: 

$ _ _ _ ___ _ _ _ 8~ ,,_1_0_0_.0_0_ _ _______ (Numerals) 

- - - ----=E= .:..:.o=u=s=an=d"-=O n=e-'-'H=und=re=--=dc..;;D:..:o= = ero---=C=e=nt=-s_ ___ _ig=ht'""'Th :.:.. = ltars~an=d-=Z== (Written) 

TOTAL LUMP SUM PRICE ITEM C (C.1 + C.2): 

$ _ _ _ _ _ _ _ _1;_4;:..::8c.z._7:__:5::....::5:....:...9.::....5:;;.....__ ___ _ ___ _ (Numerals) 

One Hundred Forty-Eight Thousand Seven Hundred Fifty-Five and Ninety-Five Cents (Written) 

D. IRRIGATION SLEEVES AND ELECTRICAL/TELEPHONE/CA TV COUNDUIT 
(CONTINGENCY) 

Includes the provision and installation of all irrigation, electrical, telephone and cable television sleeves. 
These unit prices will be used once the Sleeving Plan is developed. Payment shall be based on the actual 
quantity installed. 

Sub-Totals (Nwnerals) SCH 40 PVC: 

• 2.5" Basis of Bid 500 L.F. $ 10.89 per L.F . 

• 3" Basis of Bid 500 L.F . $ 12.50 per L.F. 

• 4" Basis of Bid 500 L.F. $ 13.36 per L.F . 

• 6" Basis of Bid 500 L.F. $ 16.72 per L.F . 

• 8" Basis of Bid 500 L.F. $ 21.26 per L.F. 

• 10" Basis of Bid 500 L.F . $ 26,64 perL.F. 

TOTAL LUMP SUM PRICE ITEM D: 

$ _ _______5_0~6~8~5_._0_0 _ _________(Numerals) 

- ----'-Flftyc..cL-T.;..;h...:o..::..us:..::a;;...nd;;._..::..Si'-'-x .;..;H.::..un...:d....:re:...:;d...::E""'ig"--hty=--F_iv.::..e _D.::..ol...::la...:rs...:a;_nd.:.._Z_ec...ro,c__Ce.:.._n...:..:ts'--____ (Written) 
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PART THREE - MISCELLANEOUS 

A. STORM WATER POLLUTION PREVENTION PLAN 

The Contractor shall adhere to all Federal rules and regulations regarding the National Pollutant Discharge 
Elimination System (NPDES) for construction and ground water discharge. The Storm Water Pollution 
Prevention Plan (SWPPP) included in these plans shall establish the minimum requirements allowed. The 
Contractor shall implement additional measures, as required, to ensure compliance with the NPDES 
requirements. Note: Contractor shall also obtain and have analyzed dewatering discharge samples after the 
commencement of construction in accordance with the FDEP Generic Permit for the Discharge of 
Produced Groundwater. 

TOTAL LUMP SUM PRICE ITEM A: 

$ ________2_2,_9_3_1_.9_5_ _ _ _ _ _ ____ (Numerals) 

___T~w~e~n-ty_-T~w~o_T~h~o~us~a~n=d_N_in_e_H~u~n=dr=e=d~T~hi~rlY~-~O~n=e _D=ol=la~rs~a~n~d_N_in~e~!Y~·-Fi~ve~ Ce- n~ts~_ (Written} 

B. TESTING ALLOWANCE 

The costs for all materials testing associated with the construction of the roadway is to be included in the 
Contractor's Contract. This includes, but is not limited to, all LBR tests, compaction tests, asphalt coring, 
concrete strength tests, etc. An allowance is provided for this item, but all reimbursements for this item 
will be made to the Contractor based upon the actual testing company's invoices with no contractor mark­
up. Contractor must obtain Owner approval of the testing company and testing rate schedule prior to 
utilizing on the project. 

TOTAL LUMP SUM PRICE ITEM B: 

$ ----------'-'10=0e.>..0=0=0:.:.;.0=0~__________ (Numerals) 

- --------= ===d T.:..:.ho=u=s=a"'-n=d'--'= :..:..: a-=-= (Written)O.:...:n=e..:..H..:.:u=ndre ::.......:... doll= rs,_____.., 

C. BONDING 

C. l PAYMENT AND PERFORMANCE BOND 
Cost of providing payment and performance bond in an amount equat to 115% of the 
improvements. The bond will be for the benefit of the CDD, St. Johns County and JEA. 

SUB TOTAL LUMP SUM PRICE ITEM C.1 : 

$ ___ ___ __16_4....,._0_1_7_.6_5_ _ _ _ ______ (Numerals) 

___O_n_e_H_u_n_dr_e_d_S_ixt_.y_-F_o_u_r T_h_o_u_sa_n_d_S_e_ve_n_te_e_n_D_o_lla_r_s_a_nd_ S_i_xty-=-·-F_iv_e_C_e_nt_s___ (Written) 
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C.2 WARRANTY BOND 
Includes Maintenance Bond to St. Johns County in an amount equal to 15% of the total cost of 
the Paving and Drainage improvements for a time period of26 months for improvements. 

SUB TOTAL LUMP SUM PRICE ITEM C.2: 

$ _______1_9-'-,7_0_9_.5_6___ _________ (Numerals) 

___ ....:.N.;.:;in=e=te=e.:.:.n....:.T.:.:.ho=u=s=an.:..::d:....::S=ec.:..ve=n'-'H...,_,u'-"n:.:.dr:...::e.::.d-'-'N"'"in=e-=a.:.:.nd::..:..:Fi.,_,_fty.._-S=i=x-=C=en=t=-s _ _ ___ (Written) 

TOTAL LUMP SUM PRICE ITEM D (C.1 + C.2): 

$ ________-'-18=-3~7-'-2-'-7"'""".2___1_ ______ __ (Numerals) 

One Hundred Eighty-Three Thousand Seven Hundred Twenty-Seven Dollars and Twentv-One Cent!{Written) 

D. AS-BUILTS 

D. l PHASE 1 AS-BUILTS 
Cost of providing ALL as-builts (excluding JEA) in accordance with project specifications. 

SUB TOTAL LUMP SUM PRICE ITEM D.1 : 

$ _ _______8_2....c..,9_3_2_._9_9____ _____ __ (Numerals) 

Eighty-Two Thousand Nine Hundred Thirty-Two Dollars and Ninety-Nine Cents (Written) 

TOTAL LUMP SUM PRICE ITEM D (D.1): 

$ _ _ _____ 8_2_,_93_2_._9_9___________ (Numerals) 

__E_ig=-h_,ty'--T_w_o_T_h_o_us_a_n_d_N_in_e_H_un_d_re_d_T_h_irt-'"-y_-T_w_o_a_nd_N_in_et~y-_N_in_e_C_e_nt_s____ _ (Written) 

16 



Bid Alternate Number 1 

JEA Reuse Main Construction 

Al-I MOBILIZATION FOR JEA REUSE MAIN CONSTRUCTION 

Includes all preparatory work and operations in mobilizing for beginning work on the project, including, 
but not limited to, those operations necessary for the movement of personnel, equipment, supplies, and 
incidentals to the project site and for the establishment of temporary offices, buildings, safety equipment 
and first aid supplies, and sanitary and other facilities. Includes the costs of bonds and any required 
insurance and any other preconstruction expense necessary for the start of the work, excluding the cost of 
construction materials. 

TOTAL LUMP SUM PRICE ITEM A1-1: 

$ _____ __5_2~,_9_58_._5_1_ _ ____ _____ (Numerals) 

____F_ifty~-T_w~o_T_h_o_u_sa~n~d_N_in_e~H_un_d_re_d~F_i~fty~--E~io~ht_D_o_l_la~rs~a~n~d_F_ifty~ -O_n_e_C~en~t"""s _ _ (Written) 

Al-2 REUSE SYSTEM 

Includes the construction ofthe reuse main transmission system including all pipe, valves, services, fittings, 
bore and jacks, directional bores, connection to existing reclaimed watermain, flushing, locate wires and 
appurtenances, plugs, and the removal, disposal and replacement of any unsuitable material encountered, 
material testing, and all other work (including dewatering) necessary to complete the installation of the 
system. Includes the preparation and submittal of all reuse main as-builts as required by the JEA, Florida 
Department of Environmental Protection, and St. Johns County. 

TOTAL LUMP SUM PRICE ITEM A1-2: 

$ _______1~,9_2_6~,6_5_3_.8_4____ _____ _ (Numerals) 

One Million Nine Hundred Twenty -Six Thousand Six Hundred Fifty-Three Dollars and Eighty-Four Cents (Written) 

Al-3 TESTING ALLOWANCE 

The costs for all required density testing of reuse main are to be included in the Contractor's Contract. 
This includes, but is not limited to, all LBR tests, compaction tests, asphalt coring, concrete strength tests, 
etc. All reimbursements for this item will be made to the Contractor based upon the actual testing 
company's invoices with no contractor mark-up. This amount shall not include system testing such as 
pressure testing bacteriological testing, flushing, etc. Those costs are included in the applicable sections 
for each Reuse System. Contractor must obtain Owner approval of the testing company and testing rate 
schedule prior to utilizing on the project 

SUB TOTAL LUMP SUM PRICE ITEM A1-3: 

$ - ------~30~·=00~0~.o=o~_____ _ ______{Numerals) 

--------~T~h=irt-=-y._t~h=o~u=sa=n~d~d=o=l=la~rs~ _ _________(Written) 
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A1-4 JEAAS-BUILTS 

A1-4a AS-BUILTS 
Cost of providing as-builts in accordance with JEA and project specifications. 

SUB TOTAL LUMP SUM PRICE ITEM A1-4: 

$ ___ _____2_4~,9_1_8_.8_1_______ _ ___ (Numerals) 

_ _ _ Twenty-F__ _ nd N ne H_u_ndred _Ei=ghteen Dollars_and_E"""' hty_ _ _ _ ____(Written) _ _ ~ _ our_Thou_s_a_ _ _i_ _ _ _ _ _ _ _ _ _ _ _ _ lg'-..,_-One Cents 

TOTAL LUMP SUM PRICE BID ALTERNATE 1 (A1-1 + A1-2 + A1-3 + A1-4): 

$ _ ___ ___ _2_._0""""3;:;_4-'--'--"--5..;c._3_1 . __1----=6_ ____ ____ (Numerals) 

Two Million Thirty-Four thousand Five Hundred Thirty-One Dollars and Sixteen Cents (Written) 
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GREENBRIAR COMMUNITY DEVELOPMENT DISTRICT 
PART II. PROPOSAL FORM - (G) SCHEDULE 

Contractor shall submit along with this Proposal a chart of its detailed project schedule. The chart 
shall use START DATE as the start date for the project and use calendar days for purposes of indicating 
the project's duration. The chart shall also include such milestones included at the Proposer's discretion; 
however, at the very least the chart shall identify dates for the issuance of the Notice to proceed, the 
achievement of Substantial Completion and the application for Final Payment, as such events are defined 
in the Contract, respectively. 

In addition to the definitions in the Contract, Substantial Completion shall include the completion of 
pavement and a punch list from the St. Johns County and application for Final Payment shall include 
receipt of JEA Acceptance. Important milestones to be clearly denoted in the schedule include: 
Substantial Completion and St. Johns County Acceptance Submittal. The number of days occurring 
between the ·ssuance of the Notice to Proceed and the achievement of Substantial Completion is: 

\ r- '(.0 (in words) ~----_.__~_(in figur,95); the 
achievement of application of Final Pay ent is: • , vtt J.Jlffi (in 
words) '5:17 (in figures) . The Owner reserves the right to waive any infl:: malities, or to 
reject any and all proposals . 



SWORN STATEMENT PURSUANT TO SECTION 287.133(3)(N) 
FLORIDA STATUTES, ON PUBLIC ENTITY CRIMES 

THIS FORM MUST BE SIGNED AND SWORN TO IN THE PRESENCE OF A NOTARY PUBLIC OR 
OTHER OFFICIAL AUTHORIZED TO ADMINISTER OATHS. 

1. This sworn statement is submitted to -~G~re~e=n~b~ri=a_r ~C~o~m=m~u=n=ity~D~e~v~e~lo=p~m~e'"""n'"""t=D=is=tr~ic=t__ 
(print name of the public entity) 

by___._N.a,_-'---==-'"'------------=-.:,.,.s cJ::\ _ ___: \¼so<..:.o~....,_,t{( _ _ _ _ _ _ _1CCLE ~ = -=._.____ B....L;,..., ,~ L..l--_ 
(print individual's name and title) 

for %c!:l ANo SMt'ftl Ct \/rt,.,. GRouP INC 
(print name of entity submitting sworn statement) 

whose business address is 

and (if applicable) its Federal Employer Identification Number (FEIN) is 45 - 31ng5rc,J 

(If the entity has no FEIN, include the Social Security Number of the individual signing this sworn 

statement 

2. I understand that a "public entity crime" as defined in Paragraph 287.133(1 )(g), Florida Statutes, 
means a violation of any state or federal law by a person with respect to and directly related to the 
transaction of business with any public entity or with any agency or political subdivision of any other 
state or of the United States, including, but not limited to, any bid or contract for goods or services 
to be provided to any public entity or an agency or political subdivision of any other state or of the 
United States and involving antitrust, fraud, theft, bribery, collusion, racketeering, conspiracy, or 
material misrepresentation. 

3. I understand that "convicted" or "conviction" as defined in Paragraph 287 .133(1 )(b), Florida 
Statutes, means a finding of guilt or a conviction of a public entity crime, with or without an 
adjudications of guilt, in any federal or state trial court of record relating to charges brought by 
indictment or information after July 1, 1989, as a result of a jury verdict, nonjury trial, or entry of a 
please of guilty or nolo contendere. 

4. I understand that an "affiliate" as defined in Paragraph 287.133(1 )(a), Florida Statutes, means: 

1. A predecessor or successor of a person convicted of a public entity crime; or 

2. An entity under the control of any natural person who is active in the management of the entity 
and who has been convicted of a public entity crime. The term "affiliate" includes those officers 
directors, executives, partners, shareholders, employees, members, and agents who are active 
in the management of an affiliate. The ownership by one person of shares constituting a 
controlling interest in another person, or a pooling of equipment or income among persons 
when not for fair market value under an arm's length agreement, shall be a prima facie case 
that one person controls another person. A person who knowingly enters into a joint venture 
with a person who has been convicted of a public entity crime in Florida during the preceding 
36 months shall be considered an affiliate. 
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5. I understand that a "person" as defined in Paragraph 287.133(1)(e), Florida Statutes. means any 
natural person or entity organized under the laws of any state or of the United States with the legal 
power to enter into a binding contract and which bids or applies to bid on contracts for the provision 
of goods or services let by a public entity, or which otherwise transacts or applies to transact 
business with a public entity. The term "person" includes those officers, directors. executives, 
partners, shareholders, employees, members, and agents who are active in management of an 
entity. 

Based on information and belief, the statement which I have marked below is true in relation to 

the entity submitting this sworn statement. (Indicate which statement applies.) 

Neither the entity submitting this sworn statement, nor any of its officers, directors, 
executives, partners, shareholders, employees. members. or agents who are active in the 
management of the entity, nor any affiliate of the entity has been charged with and 
convicted of a public entity crime subsequent to July 1, 1989. 

The entity submitting this sworn statement, or one or more of its officers, directors, 
executives, partners, shareholders, employees' members or agents who are active in the 
management of the entity, or an affiliate of the entity has been charged with and convicted 
of a public entity crime subsequent to July 1. 1989. 

The entity submitting this sworn statement, or one or more of its officers, directors. 
executives, partners, shareholders, employees' members or agents who are active in the 
management of the entity. or an affiliate of the entity has been charged with and convicted 
of a public entity crime subsequent to July 1. 1989. However, there has been a subsequent 
proceeding before a Hearing Officer of the State of Florida, Division of Administrative 
Hearings and the Final Order entered by the Hearing Officer determined that it was not in 
the public interest to place the entity submitting this sworn statement on the convicted 
vendor list. (attach a copy of the final order) 

IT SHALL BE THE RESPONSIBILITY OF THE CONTRACTORNENDOR EXECUTING THIS PUBLIC 
ENTITY CRIME AFFIDAVIT TO VERIFY THAT NONE OF THE SUBCONTRACTORS/SUPPLIERS 
UTILIZED FOR THIS BID/QUOTE HAVE BEEN CONVICTED OF A PUBLIC ENTITY CRIME 
SUBSEQUENT TO JULY 1, 1989. IN THE EVENT IT IS LATER DISCOVERED THAT A 
SUBCONTRACTOR/SUPPLIER HAS BEEN CONVICTED OF A PUBLIC ENTITY CRIME, THE 
CONTRACTOR / VENDOR SHALL SUBSTITUTE THE SUBCONTRACTOR/ SUPPLIER WITH 
ANOTHER WHO HAS NOT RECEIVED A CONVICTION. ANY COST ASSOCIATED WITH THIS 
SUBSTITUTION SHALL BE THE SOLE RESPONSIBILITY OF THE CONTRACTORNENDOR. 
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I UNDERSTAND THAT THE SUBMISSION OF THIS FORM TO THE CONTRACTING OFFICER FOR 
THE PUBLIC ENTITY IDENTIFIED IN PARAGRAPH 1 (ONE) ABOVE IS FOR THAT PUBLIC ENTITY 
ONLY AND THAT THIS FORM IS VALID THROUGH DECEMBER 31 OF THE CALENDAR YEAR IN 
WHICH IT IS FILED. I ALSO UNDERSTAND THAT I AM REQUIRED TO INFORM THE PUBLIC ENTITY 
PRIOR TO ENTERING INTO A CONTRACT IN EXCESS OF THE THRESHOLD AMOUNT P VIDEO IN 
SECTION 287.017, FLORIDA STATUTES, FOR CATEGORY TWO OF ANY CHAN IN THE 
INFORMATION CONTAINED IN THIS FORM. 

(signature) 

COUNTY OF .....,L<. ;i,bM..._______~ t.C.,=,... ___ 

The foregoing instrument was signed and acknowledged before me this u""day of M,ve(flbe( , 2024 by: 

N:c.o1e Besc.b 

who produced Pe.<~ll~ I¼,..,/\ as identification, and who (d~ (did not) 
(Type of Identification and Number) ?f' 

take an oath. 

/ Notary Public Signature 

Printed Name of Notary TYL.ER JAMES RO[lEN­
NOTAAY PUBLIC 

STATE OF FLORIDA 
NO. HH319586 j

MY OOMMISSION EXPIRES OCT. OB. 2026 
Notary Commission Number/Expiration 
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AFFIDAVIT OF COMPLIANCE WITH ANTI-HUMAN TRAFFICKING LAWS 
In '-75cordanf e with ~ec}ioa ?: 7i.06( I~), f lojda Statute . the undersigned, on behalf of 

l)e. SC ba CY)_ o rn1±:0U \ll} Grp:,,p~:'Nongovernmental Entity"), 
hereby attests under penalty ofperjury that, to the best oftheir knowledge and reasonable belief, the 
Nongovernmental Entity does not use coercion for labor or services as each is defined in Section 
787.06(2)(a), (e) and (h), Florida Statutes. 

The undersigned is authorized to execute this affidavit on behalf of the Nm,overnmenta l 

Entity. "' ' L d~ /) . /J. a~ 
Date: I VD iitfl\DZ1_ , 2024 Signed: I Luull.9- LJ 

Entity: !3txbaad5~ ., Name: N ,co/e_ &:0~
o/Jv1 ,.,..,rfK _ Jf) . 

_ _ ___ _ ___6""--'-""[Z)~~"-1------Title: [,(.5J en+ 
STATE OF .......fiLo<;cll.\...._____- .........,= 

COUNTY OF 5\ . J"oht\s. / 
The foregoing instrument was acknowledged before me, by means of fl/physical presence or 

0 online notarization, this _day ZZ.no of l/ove,t\\:i.c,.f , 2024, by 
Nicol(. e,e:,c..\.\. , as Pu,~ ; oer\ :\:: of Se:,c1.. Md sma.\.\ c,;v;, Cnwf, 1'.l\c. on 
behalf of said entity, who is ~rsonally known to me or □ has produced __as evidence of 
identification. 

iYLER JAMES RODEN(SEAL) NOTARY PUBLIC 
~ATE OF FLOFJIDA 

NO. HH319586 
M'f COMMlSSfON EXPIRES OCT. 06, 2028 / NOTARY PUBLIC 

~ \C( f?oM;,/\ 
Printed Name 

My commission expires : 
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GREENBRIAR COMMUNITY DEVELOPMENT DISTRICT 
AFFIDAVIT OF NON-COLLUSION 

STATE OF FLORIDA 

couNTY oF 5-J-. 5ohro 

I, f\J iCO }.e_ &c..ck: ,do hereby certify that I have not, either 

directly or indirectly, participated in co lusion or proposal rigging. Affiant is PrGtd.f..cd::-
( officer or principal) in the firm of e;_ .C, • Civ,'J , Mi ~otfi~d ~o make this 

affidavit on behalf of the same. I understand that I am swearing or affirming under oath to the truthfulness of 

the claims made in this affidavit and that the punishment for knowingly making a false statement includes 

fines and/or imprisonment. 

Dated this ;);). h~ ay of MxeroM024. 

Signature by au horized representative of Proposer 

STATE OF FLORIDA 
COUNTY OF Sl. :Johns 

Sworn to (or affirmed) and subscribed before me this z.~ncl day of h/oVe;m hr C , 2024, by 

to me or who has produced 1}<Soo• ''1 ¥.oov I\ as identification and who did {did not) 

take an oath. 

(SEAL) 
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SWORN STATEMENT PURSUANT TO SECTION 287.135(5), FLORIDA STATUTES, REGARDING 
SCRUTINIZED COMPANIES WITH ACTIVITIES IN SUDAN LIST OR SCRUTINIZED COMPANIES 

WITH ACTIVITIES IN THE IRAN PETROLEUM ENERGY SECTOR LIST 

THIS FORM MUST BE SIGNED AND SWORN TO IN THE PRESENCE OF A NOTARY PUBLIC OR OTHER 
OFFICIAL AUTHORIZED TO ADMINISTER OATHS. 

1. This sworn statement is submitted to Greenbriar Community Development District (the "District") 

by___---'--........_._, <L>..J.--J-<=---=-~ h___,,P fi-=JWA/-= k !3----'=-- 1---=-G .LLL........:........,::__ 

for _________ _,__.u.'/_ o "=,,,.,__,.L...6,.,,._--e:.--q,..._--'--=,,_.LJt..!..l.l..L---L_._.,._........,p:......,..-f-____,"""'-,__,_"'""""'-1----

(print nameof entity submitting sworn statement) 

2. I understa.nd that, subject to limited exemptions, se'dt28~ dl~s J~~niiat 
the time of bidding or submitting a proposal for a new contract or renewal of an existing contract is on the 
Scrutinized Companies with Activities in Sudan List or the Scrutinized Companies with Activities in the Iran 
Petroleum Energy Sector List, created pursuant to section 215.4 73, Florida Statutes, is ineligible for, and may 
not bid on, submit a proposal for, or enter into or renew a contract with a local governmental entity for goods 
or services of $1 million or more. 

3. Based on information and belief, at the time the entity submitting this sworn statement submits its proposal to 
the District, neither the entity, nor any of its officers, directors, executives, partners, shareholders, members, or 
agents, is listed on either the Scrutinized Companies with Activities in Sudan List or the Scrutinized 
Companies with Activities in the Iran Petroleum Energy Sector List. 

4. If awarded the Contract, the entity will immediately notify the District in writing if either the entity, or any 
of its officers, directors, executives, partners, shareholders, members, or agents, is placed n either the 
Scrutinized Companies with Activities in Sudan List or the Scrutinized Companies with Activ· • es in the Iran 

Petroleum Enagy Secto, List [Lu~ ~ 

STATE OF FLORIDA 
COUNTY OF 5-\,.J'ono~ 

Sworn to (or affirmed) and subscribed before me this 2-z."d day of M,vcM\.ef , 2024 by 

,.,.t.,_,_co ,......_._~~ .b ------' "-"<>/ ; ><="-'1e. Be ...~ of the ~ fl(!')'. \h c ~v;\ 6:iovp "t''lx,f,o is personally known to me or 

Signature by authorized representative of Proposer 

who has produced __.ft.......,r~......,p='4....1\+1 - -----kD'-"o...,..,~ f\______ as identification and who did (did not) take an 
oath. 

My Commission Expires: 
(SEAL) 
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- ----- - - ---

TRENCH SAFETY ACT COMPLIANCE STATEMENT 

INSTRUCTIONS 
Because trench excavations on this project are expected to be in excess of 5 feet, Chapter 90-96 of the 
Laws of Florida requires that construction on the project comply with Occupational Safety and Health 
Administration Standard 29 C.F.R.s. 1926.650 Subpart P. The Contractor is required to execute this 
Compliance Statement and the Compliance Cost Statement. The costs for complying with the Trench 
Safety Act must be incorporated into the Contract Price. 

This form must be certified in the presence of a notary public or other officer authorized to administer oaths. 

CERTIFICATION 

I. I understand that Chapter 90.96 of the Laws of Florida (The Trench Safety Act) requires 
me to comply with OSHA Standard 29 C.F.R.s. 1926.650 Subpart P. I will comply with The 
Trench Safety Act, and I will design and provide trench safety systems at all trench excavations 
in excess of five feet in depth for this project. 

2. The estim~ted costim! osed by com~ nceI with The Trench Safety Act will be: 
W AX.)Jt ~~ Fi de, ,/JuQjr&] Dollars$ I J 5lX) . () 6 

(Written) ) (Figures) 
3. The amount listed above has been included within the Contract Price. 

Dated this _____.J) day of 1--1 / 1a,L\/l{Y)be '- _'-=--_ _ A ,.;.--o -'---'=,__,o"'-'"""_. , _ , 2024. , v 

Contractor:_~"'-"--- --- ....,.._.,'----------'---r=--'h~ [ __,~ 

By: __-+-.J...L>"'-"----~"""'-"-= :...-...- - - -r 

ST ATE OF FLORIDA fl- ) 
) ss: 

COUNTY OF 5}.Sc,\..t'ls ) 

The foregoing instrument was acknowledged before me by means of [~ysical presence or [ ] online notarization, 

this z_7.fd-- day of NO\ltr(\ ba, 2024, by ~N~:c.o..,,...,.le-----"S...t.:;,c.._="'~ - - ---- as Pres: de.a+ of 

Be5c:h And ~"'a" t::v:, G-~°a,'_P._~_n_c._ . - - - - -----~ on behalf of the 

. He [ \/"j' is personally known to me or [ ] has produced a driver's license as 
identification. 

lYLER JAMES RODEN 
Notary Seal: NOTARY PUBLIC 

STATE OF FLORIDA ~~ 
NO. HH319586 

ll'f COMMISSION EXPIRES OCT. 06, 2026 I 
Printed Name: ~ \cf fsod LI'\ 

My Commission Expires: QG:l ot, [l'>t/, 
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GREENBRIAR COMMUNITY DEVELOPMENT DISTRICT 

ACKNOWLEDGEMENT OF RECEIPT OF DOCUMENTS 
AND PROPOSAL SIGNATURE FORM 

This Propo al for co stpiclion1servi~es h'J" bee submitted on this 2J: of NC>J~ ,2024 by,_ ) 
_ - J"n\"1°'1--,. 1 \ G(i ~ compa!JY) whose business address is 3~ S:: L LX'n 1-,1,2., £Jr{). 

- ub oJl J.- SI-. , . LI IP ~L 3 5' ___ ...=;:..,__i...,_,,,.....,__,_,__,-'="="=-----.,=.!..._ -=.:--=-..1.-"'-"'=>-,1-~-"=°'"-'--'--=--- ---==~ """'---L::;___ __~_ ____ , 

telephone number is 9 D-C-:. "! fax number is 9 Qy - ~:,P,-Ll~ and e-mail 
address is t )l"1, ILj@bt ':;)r.bt::d, ?C'01°:t6~ 

The undersigned acknowledges, by the below execution of this Proposal, that all information 
provided herein has been provided in full and that such information is truthful and accurate. Proposer agrees 
through submission of this Proposal to honor all pricing information one hundred and twenty (120) days from 
the date of the Proposal opening, and if awarded the contract on the basis of this Proposal, to enter into and 
execute the services contract in substantially the form included in the Project Manual. 

Proposer understands that inclusion of false, deceptive or fraudulent statements on this Proposal 
constitutes fraud; and, that Greenbriar Community Development District considers such action on the 
part of the Proposer to constitute good cause for denial, suspension or revocation of a Proposal for work for 
the District. 

Furthermore, the undersigned acknowledges receipt of the following documents, the provisions of 
which have been included in this Request for Proposal. 

1. Request for Proposal (1 page) _ ___,__n_,_8_ __ (Initial) 

2. Instructions to Proposer (6 pages) _ _.O~ {J..___ (Initial) 

3. Evaluation Criteria (1 page) - -+D.........0"'----- (Initial) 

4. Organization Information of Proposer (14 pages) -~o~ ~- -(lnitial) 

5. Sworn Statement on Public Entity Crimes (3 pages) _ _ Q.....""=_A,_____ (Initial) 

6. Non-Collusion Statement (1 page) _ ___,{)----.r=8___ (Initial) 

7. Scrutinized Companies Form (1 page) ---+DB (Initial)---=-''-----

8. Trench Safety Act Compliance Statement (1page) --O~k___(Initial) 

9. Acknowledgement of Receipt of Documents (2 pages) _ _,n_ 8___ (Initial) 

10. Addenda Acknowledgement (1 page) ---'--=-___ (Initial}- {)f)J 

11 . Proposal Documents (21 pages) ~ (Initial) 

12. Standard Form of Agreement Between Owner and Contractor (8 pages) ~ (Initial) 

13. Form of Performance Bond and Payment Bond (8 pages} _ _ --+D-H-6""----- - (Initial) 

14. PineWalk Greenbriar Road Widening Plans dated June 2024 prepared by England-Thims & Miller, 
Inc. an CS Florida, LLC Geotechnical Reports dated August 7, 2023 (Project No.35-34333 
- - -t--t,,;---+---(lnitial) 
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PRICING & NON-COLLUSION 

1. The Proposer agrees through submission of the Proposal to honor all pricing information for ninety 
(90) days from the due date of the Proposals. If awarded the contract on the basis of this Proposal, 
Proposer agrees to enter into and execute the contract in the form included in the Project Manual. 

2. I do hereby certify that the Proposer has not, either directly or indirectly, participated in collusion 
or proposal rigging. The price(s) and amount(s) of this Proposal have been arrived at 
independently and without consultation, communication or agreement with any other Proposer or 
potential Proposer, or review of any other Proposal , or potential Proposal. Moreover, neither the 
price(s) nor the amount(s) of this Proposal, and neither the approximate price(s) nor approximate 
amount(s) of this Proposal has been disclosed to any other firm or person who is a Proposer or 
potential Proposal, and they will not be disclosed before Proposal opening. 

3. No attempt has been made or will be made to induce any firm or persons to refrain from submitting 
a Proposal for this contract, or to submit a price(s) higher that the prices in this Proposal, or to 
submit any intentionally high or noncompetitive price(s) or other form of complementary Proposal. 

4. The Proposal is made in good faith and not pursuant to any agreement or discussion with, or 
inducement from, any firm or person to submit a complementary or other noncompetitive Proposal. 

5. Neither Proposer nor its affiliates, subsidiaries, officers, director, or employees are currently under 
investigation, by any governmental agency and have not in the last three years been convicted or 
found liable for any act prohibited by State or Federal law in any jurisdiction, involving conspiracy 
or collusion with respect to a public procurement process, on any public contract, except as follows: 

AGREEMENTS REGARDING RECORDS AND PROJECT MANUAL 

6. The Proposer authorizes and requests any person, firm or corporation to furnish any pertinent 
information requested by the District, or its authorized agents, deemed necessary to verify the 
statements made in the Proposal, or regarding the ability, standing, integrity, quality of 
performance, efficiency, and general reputation of the Proposer. 

7. By signing below, the Proposer acknowledges that (i) the Proposer has read, understood, and 
accepted the Project Manual; (ii) the Proposer has had an opportunity to consult with legal counsel 
regarding the Project Manual; (iii) the Proposer has agreed to the terms of the Project Manual, 
including but not limited to the forms of contract; (iv) the Proposer has waived any right to challenge 
any matter relating to the Project Manual, including but not limited to any protest relating to the notice, 
the Proposal instructions, the proposal forms, the contract form, the scope of work, the evaluation 
criteria, the evaluation process established in the Project Manual, or any other issues or items relating 
to the Project Manual; (v) the Proposer certifies that he or she has carefully examined the project site, 
made his/her own measurements and calculations and prepared and checked the foregoing Proposal 
after the same was completed and has verified every item placed thereon; and (vi) REGARDLESS 
OF WHETHER A PROTEST OF ANY KIND IS FILED, AND IN ORDER TO AVOID AN IMMEDIATE 
DANGER TO THE PUBLIC HEALTH, SAFETY AND WELFARE OF THE COMMUNITY, AND/OR 
ADVERSE FINANCIAL CONSEQUENCES TO THE DISTRICT, THE PROPOSER AGREES THAT 
THE DISTRICT MAY IMMEDIATELY PROCEED WITH THE PROJECT PURSUANT TO A 
CONTRACT WITH THE PROPOSER SELECTED BY THE DISTRICT. 

The undersigned represents that it has reviewed all of the foregoing documents, is acquainted with and 
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fully understands the extent and character of the work covered by this Project and the specified 
requirements for the proposed work and submits this Proposal with no unanswered questions. The 
undersigned hereby authorize(s) and request(s) any person, firm or corporation to furnish any pertinent 
information requested by the District, or their authorized agents, deemed necessary to verify the 
statements made in this Proposal or attachments hereto, or regarding the ability, standing and general 

reputaUon of the Proposer. (,r(JJpI.r£ j 
Ar ¼ h6-rt1Srn1 ~hc1·vd By: au,~ e~,,

Name of Organization 

This ~ day of Novd'Qtl,( , 2024 By: M, CDk &,':::>J-, )Prl~,Jen+-
Name and Title of Person Signing 

(Apply Corporate Seal if filing as a Corporation) 

State of Incorporation: F W ,J D.., 

State of i=:'t. o<: oc. 
ss 

County of ~ -Sohl\$ 

The foregoing instrument was acknowledged before me this t.z"d.day of wove rt\be, ( , 2024, 

by Nim\e Sec.b 

personally known to me or who has produced Pc:fSonq.)\'J l!.oo~" as identification and who 

did (did not) take an oath. 

..----- --_,_.........,19lli!tl)re of Notary taking acknowledgement 
ffiEA JAMES RODEN 

My Commission Expires: 
(SEAL) 

MYCOMl;;~iAOO.,~. I 
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Ron Desantis, Governor 
• G iffin, Secretary d~~rMelanie S. r u ~ 

STATE OF FLORIDA 
DEPARTMENT OF BUSINESS AND PROFESSIONAL REGULATION 

CONSTRUCTIO~Jt.f~J~~:JR~ ldCENSING BOARD 

THE UNDERGROUND UTILITY & EXCAV~TION CO HEREIN IS CERTIFIED UNDER THE 

PROVISIONS OF CHAPTER 489, FLORIDA STATUTES 

BESCH1AND SMITH CIVIL GROUP INC 
345 CUMBERLAND INDUSTRIAL CT 

SAINT AUGUSTINE ~ FL 32095 

LICENSE NUMBER:lCUC1224085 

EXPIRATION DATE: AUGUST 31, 2026 

Always verify licenses online at MyFloridalicense.com 

ISSUED: 07/03/2024 

Do not alter this document in any form. 

This is your license. It is unlawful for anyone other than the licensee to use this document. 

https://MyFloridalicense.com


State ofFlorida 
Department ofState 

I certify from the records of this office that BESCH AND SMITH CIVIL 
GROUP, INC. is a corporation organized under the laws of the State of Florida, 
filed on September 2, 2011, effective September 2, 2011. 

The document number of this corporation is Pl 1000078093. 

I further certify that said corporation has paid all fees due this office through 
December 31, 2024, that its most recent annual report/uniform business report 
was filed on January 11, 2024, and that its status is active. 

I further certify that said corporation has not filed Articles of Dissolution. 

Given under my hand and the 
Great Seal ofthe State ofFlorida 
at Tallahassee, the Capital, this 
the Eleventh day ofJanuary, 2024 

Secretary of 

Tracking Number: 0505000203CC 

To authenticate this certificate,visit the following site,enter this number, and then 
follow the instructions displayed. 

https://services.sunbiz.org/Filings/CertificateOfStatus/CertificateAuthentication 

https://services.sunbiz.org/Filings/CertificateOfStatus/CertificateAuthentication


CECIL W. POWELL & COMPANY 
INSURANCE, INTERNATIONAL FINANCIAL PLANNING AND SURETY BONDS SINCE 1935 
219 N. NEWNAN STREET• P.O. DRAWER 41490,JACKSONVILLE, FLORIDA 32203-1490 Knowledge and Wisdom ® PHONE (904) 353-3181 • FAX (904) 353-5722•www.cwpowellins.com 

November 20, 2024 

Greenbriar Community Development District 

50 Silver Forrest Dr., Suite 203 
St Augustine, FL 32092 

RE: Besch and Smith Civil Group Inc. 

To Whom It May Concern: 

Cecil W. Powell & Company is the bonding agent for Besch and Smith Civil Group Inc. 
Based on normal and standard underwriting criteria at the time of the request, 
Performance and Payment bonds will be provided on for projects up to $15,000,000 
single $30,000,000 aggregate with the provision that we and Merchants Bonding 
Company reserve the right to review final contractual documents, bond forms, and obtain 
satisfactory evidence of funding prior to any final commitment to issue bonds, and do not 
assume liability to any third party, including yourselves, if we do not execute said bonds. 

Besch and Smith Civil Group Inc. is bonded through Merchants Bonding Company. 
Merchants Bonding Company has an AM. Best rating of A IX and is licensed to 
conduct business in the State of Florida. 

Besch and Smith Civil Group Inc. is an excellent contractor and we hold them in the 
highest regard. We feel extremely confident in our contractor and encourage you to 
offer them an opportunity to execute any upcoming projects. 

If you should have any questions, please do not hesitate to give me a call. 

Sincerely, 

Robert T. Theus 
Vice President 

https://353-5722�www.cwpowellins.com


BESCH AND SMITH CIVIL GROUP, INC. 

CONTRACTS ON HAND 

PROJECT NAME 

Ribault Hiah Schoo/. 
Owner.: DUI/al Countv Publl . sctiools 
Primo Cootractor: t'1 lfbane 
Location_ Duval c ouni., FL 

Sori/ll StrJe Esrawe ElementllN School 
Owner. Duval Countv Public Schools 
Prtme r.onrrector. Haskell 
Location: Duval Countv, FL 

.Wes/ Stffiar Dralna"" 
Owner. Cliv cirGraen Cova-Sorfhos 
IPtirrte Contractor: Besch and sm1I1i Clvi GroUll Inc. 
Location; Clav Countv, FL 

Waller Odum Park 
owner. Clav c oontv BOCC 
PHme C011trador. Besch and Smith Civil Grouo Inc, 
Location; Clay County, FL 

Coun/v RonrJ 220 
Owner; Clav Count• BOCC 
Prime Contractor. Beech and Smith Clvi Grnun Inc. 
Localkin- Clay County, FL 

Crescent Clt'I PK-6 
ownor: Puntman Coontv Schools 
Prime Contractor. Besch and Smith Civil Grouo Inc. 
~ocatlon: Putnam, FL 

DESCRIPTION OF WORK 

PemollUon, earthwork, aspahlt paving, concrete, 
striping, and slgnege, drainage, sewer, watermain, 
andfiremain 

Demolltlon, Earthwork, storm drain, base, paving, 
concrete, striping, signage, grassing. 

Demolition, Earthwork, Concrete Driveways, Curbing, 
Slorm Drainage Gravity Sewer, Minor Watermain 
Adjustements 

Demollllon, Earthwork, Sidewalks, Storm Drainage, 
l andscape. Irrigation, Grassing, & Rock Driveway 
Entrance 

DemoUtlcn, Earthwork, Sidewalk, Curbs, Base 
Paving, Striping, Signage, Grassing, & Signailization 

Demolition, Earthwork, Sidewalk, Curbs, Base 
Paving, Striping, Signage, Grassing, & Signailizatlon 

TOTALS 

TOTAL CONTRACT 
AMOUNT 

$7,182,778 06 

$3,643,896.00 

$4,701,820.88 

$1,353,910.65 

$3,376,424.55 

$8,821,347.00 

$29,080,177.14 

AMOUNT SELF 
PERFORMED 

$5,461 ,929.79 

$3,054,411 .34 

$4,349,606.43 

$1,115,924 55 

$1,810,885 65 

$7,010,461 .35 

~22,803,219.11 

AMOUNT 
SUBCONTRACTED TO 

OTHERS 

$599,824.86 

$589,484 66 

$352,214 45 

$237,986.10 

$1,565,538.90 

$2,430,000 00 

$6,776,048.97 

ASOF: 

BALANCE TO FINISH 

$1,440,608.37 

$390,160 99 

$1,083,817.96 

$575,665 70 

$3,376,424.55 

$8,252,714.31 

$16,119,391.88 

START DATE 

Dec-24 

Apr-23 

Apr-24 

Jun-24 

Dec-24 

Sep-24 

9/30124 

ANTICIPATED 
COMPLETION DATE 

Jul-25 

Mar-25 

Jan-25 

Sep-24 

Dec-24 

Sep-25 

https://16,119,391.88
https://8,252,714.31
https://3,376,424.55
https://1,083,817.96
https://1,440,608.37
https://6,776,048.97
https://1,565,538.90
https://237,986.10
https://599,824.86
https://22,803,219.11
https://4,349,606.43
https://29,080,177.14
https://8,821,347.00
https://3,376,424.55
https://1,353,910.65
https://4,701,820.88
https://3,643,896.00
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT 

Board ofDirectors 
Besch and Smith Civil Group, Inc. 
St. Augustine, Florida 

Opinion 

We have audited the accompanying financial statements ofBesch and Smith Civil Group, Inc. (a Florida 
S-Corporation), which comprise the balance sheets as of December 31, 2023 and 2022, and the related 
statements of income, retained earnings, and cash flows for the years then ended, and the related notes to 
the financial statements. 

In our opinion, the financial statements referred to above present fairly, in all material respects, the 
financial position ofBesch and Smith Civil Group, Inc. as ofDecember 31, 2023 and 2022, and the results 
of its operations and its cash flows for the years then ended in accordance with accounting principles 
generally accepted in the United States ofAmerica. 

Basis for Opinion 

We conducted our audit in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of 
America. Our responsibilities under those standards are further described in the Auditor's Responsibilities 
for the Audit ofthe Financial Statements section ofour report. We are required to be independent ofBesch 
and Smith Civil Group, Inc. and to meet our other ethical responsibilities in accordance with the relevant 
ethical requirements relating to our audit. We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient 
and appropriate to provide a basis for our audit opinion. 

Correction ofError 

As discussed in Note K to the financial statements, certain errors resulting in understatement ofnet income 
and overstatement of liabilities previously reported as of December 31, 2022, were discovered by 
management of the Company during the year. Accordingly, amounts reported have been restated in the 
2022 financial statements now presented, and an adjustment has been made to retained earnings as of 
December 31, 2022, to correct the error. Our opinion is not modified with respect to this matter. 
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Responsibility of Management for the Financial Statements 

Management is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of these financial statements in 
accordance with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America, and for the 
design, implementation, and maintenance of internal control relevant to the preparation and fair 
presentation of financial statements that are free from material misstatements, whether due to fraud or 
error. 

In preparing the financial statements, management is required to evaluate whether there are conditions or 
events, considered in the aggregate, that raise substantial doubt about Besch and Smith Civil Group, Inc.' s 
ability to continue as a going concern within one year after the date that the financial statements are 
available to be issued. 

Auditor's Responsibility for the Audit of the Financial Statements 

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements as a whole are 
free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditor's report that includes 
our opinion. Reasonable assurance is a high level ofassurance but is not absolute assurance and therefore 
is not a guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance with generally accepted auditing standards will 
always detect a material misstatement when it exists. The risk of not detecting a material misstatement 
resulting from fraud is higher than for one resulting from error, as fraud may involve collusion, forgery, 
intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or the override of internal control. Misstatements, including 
omissions, are considered material if there is a substantial likelihood that, individually or in the aggregate, 
they would influence the judgment made by a reasonable user based on the financial statements. 

In performing an audit in accordance with generally accepted auditing standards, we: 

• Exercise professional judgment and maintain professional skepticism throughout the audit. 
• Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements, whether due 

to fraud or error, and design and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks. Such 
procedures include examining, on a test basis, evidence regarding the amounts and disclosures 
in the financial statements. 

• Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit in order to design audit 
procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an 
opinion on the effectiveness of Besch and Smith Civil Group, Inc.'s internal control. 
Accordingly, no such opinion is expressed. 

• Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of significant 
accounting estimates made by management, as well as evaluate the overall presentation of the 
financial statements. 

2 
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• Conclude whether, in our judgment, there are conditions or events, considered in the aggregate, 
that raise substantial doubt about Besch a111d Smith Civil Group, Inc.' s ability to continue as a 
going concern for a reasonable period of time. 

We are required to communicate with those charged with governance regarding, among other matters, the 
planned scope and timing ofthe audit, significant audit findings, and certain internal control related matters 
that we identified during the audit. 

Bishop and Draper 
Certified Public Accountants 
Jacksonville, Florida 
March 25, 2024 
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BESCH AND SMITH CIVIL GROUP, INC. 

BALANCE SHEETS 

ASSETS 

CURRENT ASSETS : 
Cash $ 

December 31 
2023 2022 

2,045,970 $ 3,386,735 

Contract receivables 
Less: allowance for credit losses 
Less: allowance for doubtful accounts 

5,654,603 
5,000 

5,649,603 

3,791,367 

5,000 
3,786,367 

Employee accounts receivable 
Prepaid expenses - other 
Prepaid ERC filing fees 
Inventory - shop 
Costs and estimated earnings in excess of billings 

Total Current Assets 

646 
100,471 
207,978 

12,000 

8,016,668 

3,427 
67,448 

8,000 

7,251,977 

PROPERTY AND EQUIPMENT: 
Land 
Office furniture and equipment 
Vehicles and transportation equipment 
Construction equipment 

Less: accumulated depreciation 
Total Equipment 

1,013,640 
140,581 

2,512,366 
6,456,835 

10,123,422 
(4,765,908) 
5,357,514 

ll0,027 
121,527 

2,474,481 
6,275,775 
8,981,810 

(4,028,724) 
4,953,086 

OTHER ASSETS: 
Operating lease - right-of-use asset 

Total Other Assets 
330,443 
330,443 

449,364 
449,364 

TOTAL ASSETS $ 13,704,625 $ 12,654,427 

See Notes to Financial Statements 
4 
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BESCH AND SMITH CML GROUP, INC. 

BALANCE SHEETS 

LIABILITIES AND STOCKHOLDERS' EQUITY 

CURRENT LIABILITIES: 
Current portion of long term debt 
Current portion ofoperating lease liability 
Current portion of fmance lease liability 
Accounts payable 
Billings in excess of costs and estimated earnings 

Total Current Liabilities 

$ 

December 31 
2023 2022 

977,002 $ 920,336 
126,276 118,920 
53,482 25,541 

1,973,450 1,181,759 
1,421,796 2,622,643 
4,552,006 4,869,199 

LONG-TERM DEBT: 
Notes payable - long term 1,909,958 1,721,281 

OTHER LONG-TERM LIABILITIES: 
Operating lease liability, less current portion 
Finance lease liability, less current portion 

Total Other Long-Term Liabilities 

204,167 
62,079 

266,246 

330,444 
81,270 

411,714 

TOTAL LIABILITIES 6,728,210 7,002,194 

STOCKHOLDERS' EQUITY: 
Common stock, par value $1 per share; authorized, 

issued and outstanding 100 shares 
Paid in capital 
Retained earnings 

100 
99,900 

6,876,415 
6,976,415 

100 
99,900 

5,552,233 
5,652,233 

TOTAL LIABILITIES AND STOCKHOLDERS' EQUITY $ 13,704,625 $ 12,654,427 

See Notes to Financial Statements 
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BESCH AND SMITH CIVIL GROUP, INC. 

STATEMENTS OF INCOME AND RETAINED EARNINGS 

Year Ended December 31 
2023 2022 

Contract revenue earned $ 22,066,999 $ 17,324,243 

Cost ofrevenues earned 18,304,042 15,022,594 
3,762,957 2,301,649 

Gain/(loss) on sale of assets 149,126 218,513 

Interest income 3,184 152 

Other income 18,761 25,032 

Operating expenses (1,710,910) (1,654,051) 

Interest expense (122,820) (81,690) 

Net income 2,100,298 809,605 

Retained earnings: 

Beginning ofyear 5,552,233 5,473,728 

Stockholder distributions (776,116) (731,100) 

End ofyear $ 6 876 415 $ 5,552,233 

See Notes to Financial Statements 
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BESCH AND SMITH CIVIL GROUP, INC. 

STATEMENTS OF CASH FLOWS 

Year Ended December 31 
2023 2022 

CASH FLOWS FROM OPERA TING ACTIVITIES: 
Net Income (loss) $ 2,100,298 $ 809,605 
Adjustments to reconcile net income to net cash 

provided by operating activities: 
Depreciation 1,029,446 813,226 
Loss (Gain) on sale of equipment (149,126) (218,513) 

Changes in assets, decrease (increase): 
Accounts receivables (1,860,455) (46,630) 
Prepaid expenses (241,001) 45,599 
Inventory (4,000) 429,000 
Costs and estimated earnings in excess of billings 144,332 

Changes in liabilities, increase (decrease): 
Accounts payable and accrued expenses 791,691 (487,206) 
Billings in excess of costs and estimated earnings (1,200,847) 2,092,373 

Total adjustments (1,634,292) 2,772,181 
Net cash provided by operating activities 466,006 3,581,786 

CASH FLOWS FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES: 
Capital expenditures (1,524,525) (2,422,205) 
Proceeds from sale of equipment 239,777 354,173 

Net cash used in investing activities (1,284,748) (2,068,032) 

CASH FLOWS FROM FINANCING ACTIVITIES: 
Principal payments of installment obligation (1,005,736) (853,371) 
Proceeds from borrowings on installment obligation 1,259,829 1,998,194 
Stockholder distributions (776,116) (731,100) 

Net cash provided by (used in) financing activities (522,023) 413,723 

NET INCREASE IN CASH (1,340,765) 1,927,477 

CASH AT BEGINNING OF YEAR 3,386,735 1,459,258 

CASH AT END OF YEAR $ 2,045,970 $ 3,386,735 

See Notes to Financial Statements 
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BESCH AND SMITH CIVIL GROUP, INC. 

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 
Years Ended December 31. 2023 and 2022 

A. ature ofBusiness and Summary of Sie:ni:ficant Accounting Policies: 

ature ofBusiness 

The Company is a general contractor engaged primarily in the earth moving phases of the 
construction industry for developers and government agencies. The Company is located in St. 
Augustine, Florida and their principal market area is in the North Florida. The work is performed 
under fixed-priced contracts. The length of each contract varies but is typically less than one year. 

ummarv of Significant Accounting Policies 

Use of Estimates - Management uses estimates and assumptions in preparing these financial 
statements in accordance with generally accepted accounting principles. Those estimates and 
assumptions affect the reported amounts ofassets and liabilities, the disclosure ofcontingent assets 
and liabilities, and the reported revenues and expenses. Actual results could vary from the 
estimates that were used. 

Revenue and Cost Recognjtion - The construction of site development, roadways, and 
underground utilities is a single performance obligation that is satisfied over time. Payment is also 
due over time in installments, based on project phases as specified in the contract, with final 
payment due at the time the construction is completed, and the customer accepts final work. 

Company recognizes revenues from fixed-price, modified fixed-price, and cost-plus-fee long-term 
construction contracts using the cost-to-cost input method, which measures progress toward 
completion based on the percentage of costs incurred to date to total estimated costs for each 
contract. That method is used because management considers total cost to be the best available 
measure ofprogress on the contracts. Because of inherent uncertainties in estimating costs, it is at 
least reasonably possible that estimates used will change within the near term. 

Contract costs include all direct material and labor costs and those indirect costs related to contract 
performance, such as indirect labor, supplies, tools, repairs, and depreciation. Costs incurred to 
obtain a contract are expensed, as they are not incremental and would be incurred whether or not 
a contract is obtained. Provisions for estimated losses on uncompleted contracts are made in the 
period in which such losses are determined. Changes in job performance, job conditions, and 
estimated profitability may result in revisions to costs and income, which are generally recognized 
in the period in which the revisions are determined. 
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BESCH AND SMITH CIVIL GROUP, INC. 

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 
Years Ended December 31. 2023 and 2022 

-continued-

A. Nature of Business and Summary of Significant Accounting: Policies (continued): 

Revenue and CostRecognition (continued) - Changes in estimated job profitability resulting from 
variable consideration (such as incentives for completing a contract early or on time, penalties for 
not completing a contract on time, claims for which the Company has enforceable rights, or 
contract modifications/change orders in which the scope of modification has been approved, but 
the price has not been determined or approved) are accounted for as changes in estimates in the 
current period but limited to an amount that will not result in a significant reversal of revenue in 
future periods. 

The timing of revenue recognition, billings and cash collections result in contract assets and 
liabilities on the balance sheet. Amounts are billed as work progresses in accordance with agreed­
upon contractual terms, either at periodic intervals or upon achievement of contractual milestones. 
Generally, billing occurs subsequent to revenue recognition. Contracts in which revenues 
recognized exceed amounts billed have the balance included in the current assets. Contracts in 
which billings exceed revenues recognized have the balance included in current liabilities. 

Revenues from construction work performed under time-and-material contracts are determined by 
a percentage mark-up on actual labor and material costs incurred. Unbilled revenues, if any, are 
accrued and included as unbilled contract receivables for time-and-material and unit price 
contracts. 

The beginning and ending contract balances were as follows: 

December 31, 
2023 2022 2021 

Receivables $ 5,654,603 $ 3,791,367 $ 3,748,164 

Unbilled receivables 144,332 

Advances and deposits 1,421,797 2,622,643 530,270 

General and Administrative Expenses - These expenses are charged to operations as incurred and 
are not allocated to contract costs. 

Inventories - Inventories consist of construction materials and supplies that have not been charged 
to specific contracts and are stated at the lower ofcost, (first-in, first-out) and net realizable value. 
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BESCH AND SMITH CIVIL GROUP, INC. 

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 
Years Ended December 3 I, 2023 and 2022 

-continued-

A. ature of Business and Summary of Sie:nifica11t Accounting Policies (continued): 

Propertv. Equipment and Depreciation- Depreciation is computed by declining balance methods 
based on the estimated useful lives of the individual units of furniture, office equipment and 
vehicles and by the straight-line method for construction equipment. The election to expense assets 
is used for tax purposes when applicable. The following is the estimated useful lives: 

Office furniture and equipment - 5 to 10 years 
Vehicles and transportation equipment - 5 years 
Construction equipment - 5 to 10 years 

Long-lived assets held and used by the Company are reviewed for impairment whenever events 
or changes in circumstances indicate that the carrying amount for an asset may not be 
recoverable. In the event the facts and circumstances indicate that the cost of any long-lived 
assets may be impaired, an evaluation ofrecoverability would be performed following generally 
accepted accounting principles. 

Income Taxes - The Corporation has elected under Subchapter S of the Internal Revenue Code. 
As a result, the shareholders report the entire federal corporate taxable income on their individual 
tax returns. 

Uncertain Tax Positions - The Company is required to recognize, measure, classify and disclose 
in the financial statements uncertain tax positions taken or expected to be taken in the Company's 
tax returns. The Company's evaluation revealed no uncertain tax positions that would have a 
material impact on the financial statements. 

Statement ofCash Flows - For purposes ofthe statement ofcash flows, the Company considers all 
highly liquid debt instruments purchased with a maturity of three months are less to be cash 
equivalents. Cash paid for interest was $122,820 and $81,690 for the year ended December 31, 
2023 and 2022, respectively. Cash paid for income taxes was $-0- for the years ended December 
31, 2023 and 2022. Noncash interest expense attributable to accreted interest for capital leases on 
new construction equipment was $1,091 and $-0- for the years ended December 31, 2023 and 
2022, respectively. 

Fair Value of Financial Instruments - Unless otherwise indicated, the fair values of all reported 
assets and liabilities that represent financial instruments (none of which are held for trading 
purposes) approximate the carrying value uses of such amounts . 
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BESCH AND SMITH CIVIL GROUP, INC. 

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 
Years Ended December 31. 2023 and 2022 

-continued-

A. Nature of Business and Summarv of Simiificant Accounting Policies (continued): 

Compensated Absence - Employees ofthe Company were entitled to paid vacation depending 
on job classification, length of service, and other factors. No liability has been recorded in the 
accompanying financial statements due to immaterially. The Company's policy is to recognize 
costs of compensated absences when actually paid to employees. 

Consideration of Credit Risk - The Company maintains a majority of its cash balances in financial 
institutions located in St. Augustine, Florida. The balances, all deposit accounts, including 
checking and savings accounts, money market deposit accounts and certificates of deposit, are 
insured by the Federal Deposit Insurance Corporation up to $250,000 per customer. At times, 
deposits may exceed federally insured limits. At December 31, 2023, the Company exceeded the 
insured limit by approximately $1,077,000. 

Contract Receivables and Related Allowance for Credit Losses - Contract receivables are recorded 
when invoices are issued and are presented on the balance sheet before the allowance for credit 
losses. Contract receivables are written off when they are determined to be uncollectible. The 
allowance for credit losses is estimated based on the expected credit losses considering the 
Company's historical losses, the existing economic conditions in the construction industry, the 
financial stability of its customers, and macroeconomic factors. The Company periodically 
assesses its methodologies for estimating credit losses in consideration of actual experiences, 
trends, and changes in the overall economic environment. 

Contract Bid Costs - The Company incurs costs related to proposing for and negotiating terms of 
construction contracts. These activities generally include initial design costs. These costs are not 
explicitly chargeable to the customer, even if the Company obtains the contract. The Company 
charges all such costs to expense, regardless of whether it is successful in obtaining a contract. 
Bids costs are not incremental because they would be incurred whether or not a contract is 
obtained. Under GAAP, only incremental costs of obtaining a contract may be deferred and 
amortized over the expected period of recovery. 

Leases -The determination ofwhether an arrangement is a lease is made at the lease's inception. 
Under ASC 842, a contract is (or contains) a lease if it conveys the right to control the use of an 
identified asset for a period of time in exchange for consideration. Control is defined under the 
standard as having both the right to obtain substantially all of the economic benefits from use of 
the asset and the right to direct the use ofthe asset. Management only reassesses its determination 
if the terms and conditions ofthe contract are changed. 
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BESCH AND SMITH CIVIL GROUP, INC. 

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 
Years Ended December 31, 2023 and 2022 

-continued-

A. ature ofBusines and Swnmary of Significant Accountimr Policies {continued): 

Leases { continued) -

Operating leases are included in operating lease right-of-use ("ROU") assets, other current 
liabilities and operating lease liabilities on the balance sheets. Finance leases are included in 
property and equipment, other current liabilities, and other long-term liabilities on the balance 
sheets. 

ROU assets represent the Company's right to use an underlying asset for the lease term, and lease 
liabilities represent our obligation to make lease payments. Operating lease ROU assets and 
liabilities are recognized at the lease commencement date based on the present value of lease 
payments of the lease term. The Company uses the implicit rate when it is readily determinable. 
Since most of the Company's leases do not provide an implicit rate, management uses the 
Company's incremental borrowing rate based on the information available at lease 
commencement. Operating lease ROU assets also include any lease payment made and excludes 
any lease incentives. Lease expense for lease payments is recognized on a straight-line basis over 
the lease term. The Company's lease terms may include options to extend or terminate the lease 
when it is reasonably certain that the Company will exercise the option. 

The Company has lease agreements with lease and non-lease components, which are generally 
accounted for separately with amounts allocated to the lease and non-lease components based on 
stand-alone prices. For certain equipment leases, the Company accounts for the lease and non­
lease components as a single lease. Lease payments for leases with a term of 12 months or less are 
expensed on a straight-line basis over the term of the lease with no lease asset or liability 
recognized. Rent expense for equipment was $43,415 and $4,644 for the years ended December 
31, 2023 and 2022, respectively. Rent expense for the building was $142,668 for the years ended 
December 31, 2023 and 2022. 

Date of Managements Review - Subsequent events have been evaluated through March 25, 
2024, which is the date the financial statements were available to be issued. 
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BISHOP AND DRAPER 
CERTIFIED PUBLIC ACCOUNIANTS 

BESCH AND SMITH CIVIL GROUP, INC. 

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 
Years Ended December 31. 20?3 and 2022 

-continued-

B. Chanees in the Allowance for Credit Losses: 

The Company had the following activity for the allowance for credit losses for contract receivables 
from December 31, 2021 to December 31, 2023. 

Balance as ofDecember 31, 2021 $ 5,000 
Allowance for doubtful accmmts 
Write-ofls 

Balance as ofDecember 31, 2022 5 000 
Provision for expected credit losses 

Write-ofls 
Balance as ofDecember 31, 2023 $ 5,000 

C. Backlog: 

Backlog represents the amount of revenue the Company expects to realize from work performed 
on uncompleted contracts in progress at year end and from contractual agreements on which work 
has not yet begun. 

The following schedule is a reconciliation ofbacklog for signed contracts in existence at December 
31, 2023: 

Balance, December 31, 2022 $ 17,354,579 

New contracts and adjustrrents 16,839,552 
34,194,131 

Less: contract revenues earned 
for the year ended December 31, 2023 (22,066,999) 

Balance, December 31, 2023 $ 12,127,132 
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BISHOP AND DRAPER 
CERTIFIED PUBLIC ACCOUNTANTS 

BESCH AND SMITH CIVIL GROUP, INC. 

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 
Years Ended December 31. 2023 and 2022 

-continued-

D. Contract Receivables: 

December 31, December 31, 

2023 2022 

Completed contracts (including unit price contracts) $ 490,637 $ 238,427 
Contracts in progress 4,182,632 2,181,340 
Retained 981,334 1,371,600 
Unbilled 

5,654,603 3,791,367 

Less: Allowance fur credit losses 5,000 5,000 
$ 5,649,603 $ 3,786,367 

E. Costs and Estimated Earnings on Uncompleted Contracts: 

December 31, December 31, 

2023 2022 

Cost inclured on uncompleted contracts $ 24,146,501 $ 13,681,434 

Estimated earnings/(loss) 4,051,936 2,586,926 
28,198,437 16,268,360 

Less: Billings to date 29,620,233 18 891,003 

$ (1,421,796) $ (2,622,643) 

Included in accompanying balance sheets under the following captions: 

December 31, December 31, 
2023 2022 

Cost and estimated earnings in excess ofbillings 
on uncompleted contracts $ $ 

Billings in excess ofcosts and estimated earnings 

on uncompleted contracts (1,421,796) (2,622,643) 

$ (1,421,796) $ (2,622,643) 
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BISHOP AND DRAPER 
CERTIFIED PUBLIC ACCOUNrANIS 

BESCH AND SMITH CIVIL GROUP, INC. 

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 
Years Ended December 31. 2023 and 2022 

-continued-

F. Notes Payable: 

Installment - The Company has twenty-eight installment notes payable secured by various 
equipment with financial entities bearing interest from -0- to 9 .99% and requiring principal 
payments of $963,641 plus interest for the upcoming year. 

Promissory No.te - On December 21, 2023, the Company initiated a promissory note, with 
AgGeorgia Farm Credit, in the amount of $715,470. The promissory note has a term of20 years, 
and bears a fixed rate of 8.97%, requiring monthly payments of $6,422. The note is secured by 
land and guaranteed by the stockholder. 

Line of Crerut- On September 19, 2022 the Company initiated a line ofcredit, with Ameris Bank, 
for $900,000, requiring monthly installments of principal and interest on any outstanding balance. 
The line ofcredit will expire on December 19, 2024, at which point, any outstanding principal and 
interest is due. The line of credit bears a rate of Prime plus 0.50%, and not less than 6.00% per 
annum. The note is secured by company assets and guaranteed by the stockholder. At December 
31, 2023, the outstanding balance ofthe line of credit was $-0-. 

The following is a schedule of maturities on long-term debt: 

Equipment 
Year Ending Instalhrent Promissory 

December 31 Note Note Total 
2024 $ 963,641 $ 13,361 $ 977,002 
2025 657,819 14,791 672,610 
2026 323,727 16,182 339,909 
2027 203,057 17,695 220,752 
2028 24,410 652,277 676,687 

$ 2,172,654 $ 714,306 $ 2,886,960 

Less: current portion (977,002) 

Long-term portion $ 1,909,958 
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BISHOP AND DRAPER 
CERTIFIED PUBLlC ACCOUNTANTS 

BESCH AND SMITH CIVJL GROUP, INC. 

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 
Years Ended December 31. 2023 and 2022 

-continued-

G. Leasing Arrangements: 

The Company has operating and financing leases for its operations facility and for certain 
equipment. The operations facility is leased under a non-cancelable operating lease expiring on 
July 1, 2026. This is the second amendment to the original lease, however the lease does not 
included a renewal option to extend the terms. The Company is also obligated for common area 
maintenance expenses and property taxes, which fluctuate from year to year. These payments 
are considered variable payments and are not determinable at the lease commencement and are 
not included in the measurement of the lease asset and liability. The lease agreement does not 
include any material residual value, guarantees or restrictive covenants. Financing lease 
arrangements have a remaining lease term of up to four years, with no renewal option. 

The following summarizes the line items in the balance sheet which include amounts for 
operating and financing leases as of December 31: 

2023 2022 
Operating Leases 

Operating lease right-of use assets $ 330,443 $ 449,364 

Current liabilities - other current $ 126,276 $ 118,920 
Long-term liabilities - opearaing lease 204 167 330,444 

Total operating lease liabilities $ 330,443 $ 449,364 

Finance Leases 
Construction equipment $ 162,527 $ 111,455 
Accumulated depreciation (44,617) (7,430) 

Construction equipment, net $ 117,910 $ 104,025 

Current liabilities - finance leases $ 53,482 $ 25,541 
Long-term liabilities - finance leases 62,079 81,270 

Total finance lease liabilities $ 115,561 $ 106,811 
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BISHOP AND DRAPER 
CERTIFIED PUBLIC ACCOUNTANTS 

BESCH AND SMITH CIVIL GROUP, INC. 

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 
Years Ended December 31. 2023 and 2022 

-continued-

G. Leasing Arrangements (continued): 

The following summarizes the cash flow information related to leases for the year ended 
December 31: 

2023 2022 
Cash paid for aroounts included in the measurement of 

lease liabilities 

Operating cash flows from operating leases $ 142,668 $ 142,668 
Operating cash flows from finance leases 42,324 4,644 

Financing cash flows from finance leases 1,091 

Lease assets obtained in exchange for lease obligations 

Operating leases $ $ 

Finance leases 51,072 111,455 

Current liabilities - Notes payable $ 53,482 $ 25,541 

Long-term liabilities - Notes payable 62,079 81,270 

Total finance lease liabilities $ 115,561 $ 106,811 

The following summarizes the line items in the income statements which include the components 
of lease expense for the years ended December 31: 

2023 2022 

Operating lease expense included in operating expenses $ 142,668 $ 142,668 

Finance lease costs: 

Amortization oflease assets included in depreciation 

and anx,rtization expense $ 37,187 $ 7,430 

Interest on lease liabilities included in interest expense 1,091 

Total finance lease costs $ 38,278 $ 7,430 
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BISHOP AND DRAPER 
CERTIFIED PUBUC ACCOUNTANTS 

BESCH AND SMITH CIVIL GROUP, INC. 

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 
Years Ended December 31. 2023 and 2022 

-continued-

G. Leasing Arrangements (continued): 

The maturities ofoperating lease liabilities as of December 31, 2023, were as follows: 

Year Ending December 31, Operating Finance 
2024 $ 142,668 $ 54,522 
2025 142,668 38,971 
2026 71,334 23,220 
202 7 and thereafter 

356,670 116,713 
Less: interest (26,227) (1,152) 

$ 330,443 $ 115,561 

At December 31, 2023 and 2022 the weighted average of the remaining operating lease term 
was 2.5 and 3.5 years. At December 31, 2023 and 2022 the weighted average of the remaining 
finance lease terms were 2.38 and 3.83 years. 

At December 31, 2023 and 2022 the_ weighted average operating lease discount rate was 6.00%. 
At December 31, 2023 and 2022 the weighted average of the remaining finance lease terms 
were 1.32% and 0.01%. 

H. Related Partv Transactions: 

The Company rents its primary business premises from an entity owned by a former stockholder. 
The Company has a five-year lease agreement that ends on July 2, 2023 and requires monthly 
payments of$10,497 plus sales taxes. The lease was renewed on January 1, 2023 for an additional 
three-years. The Company is responsible for real estate taxes the reminder of the lease. The rent 
paid was $142,668 in 2023 and in 2022. Also, the Company paid the associated premises' real 
estate taxes in the amounts of$12,057 and $7,816 for 2023 and 2022, respectively. 

I. Retirement Plan: 

On September 24, 2018 a SIMPLE IRA Retirement Plan was established and made available for 
all Company employees twenty-one years of age having earned $5,000 during any two preceding 
years. The Company makes a matching contribution up to 3% of each participant's elective 
deferrals, not to exceed statutory limitations. The Company's matching contributions were 
$39,215 and $40,000 for the years ended December 31, 2023 and 2022, respectively. 
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BISHOP AND DRAPER 
CERTIFIED PUBLIC ACCOUNTANIS 

BESCH AND SMITH CIVIL GROUP, INC. 

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 
Years Ended December 3 L 2023 and 2022 

-continued-

J. New Accounting Guidance Implementation: 

Adoption of ASD 2016-13 and Related Standards 

Effective January 1, 2023 the Company adopted ASU 2016-13, Financial Instruments-Credit 
Losses (Topic 326): Measurement of Credit Losses on Financial Instruments, as amended, 
which modifies the measurement of expected credit losses on certain financial instruments. The 
Company adopted this new guidance utilizing the modified retrospective transition method. 
Topic 326 requires measurement and recognition of expected versus incurred losses for 
financial assets held. Financial assets held by the Company that are subject to ASU 2016-13 
include trade accounts receivable. 

The cumulative effect of initially applying the new credit loss standard to its contract 
receivables was immaterial to the opening balance of retained earnings. Results for reporting 
periods beginning after January 1, 2023 are presented under ASC 326. The Comparative 
information has not been restated and continues to be reported under the accounting standards 
in effect in those reporting periods. 

The impact of the adoption of ASC 326 on the Company's balance sheet as of January 1, 2023 
was as follows: 

December 31, Adjustments January 1 
2022 :from Topic 326 2023 

Allowance for credit losses $ $ 5,000 $ 5,000 

Allowance for doubtful accounts 5,000 (5,000) 

Retained ~ 5,552,233 5,552,233 

The Company does not expect ASC 326 to have a significant impact on its financial condition 
or results of operations on an ongoing basis. 
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BISHOP AND DRAPER 
CERTIFIED PUBLIC ACCOUNTANTS 

BESCH AND SMITH CIVIL GROUP, INC. 

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 
Years Ended December 31. 2023 and 2022 

-continued-

K. Restatement ofPreviou Iv Issued Financial Statements: 

The Company has restated its previously issued financial statement for the year ending 
December 31, 2022, primarily to reflect the correction of errors related to its allocation of labor 
costs to costs ofrevenues earned. The correction has no effect on the results ofthe current year's 
operations; however, the cumulative effect increases beginning retained earnings for 2022 by 
$114,655. Based upon management's review it has been determined that this error was 
inadvertent and unintentional. 

The effect of the restatement on results of operations and financial position as of and for the 
year ended December 31, 2022 are as follows: 

As previously 
Reported Restated 

Contract revenue earned $ 17,209,588 $ 17,324,243 

Cost ofrevenues earned 14,740,524 15,022,594 
2,469,064 2,301,649 

Operating expenses (1,936,121) (1,654,051) 

Net income 694,950 809,605 

Billings in excess ofcosts and estimated earnings 
and estimated earnings 2,737,298 2,622,643 

Total current liabilities 4,983,854 4,869,199 

Total liabilities 7,116,849 7,002,194 

Retained F.amings 5,437,578 5,552,233 
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BISHOP AND DRAPER 
CERTIFIED PUBLIC ACCOUNTANTS 

MEMBER OF 
AMERICAN AND FLORIDA 
INSTITUTES OF 
CERTIFIED PUBLIC ACCOUNTANTS 

BUILDING 300 
5150 BELFORT ROAD 

JACKSONVILLE, FLORIDA 32256 
904-725-9226 

INDEPENDENT AUDITOR S REPORT ON SUPPLEivfENTARY INFORMATION 

We have audited the financial statements of Besch and Smith Civil Group, Inc. as of and for the years 
ended December 31, 2023 and 2022, and our report thereon dated March 25, 2024, which expressed an 
unmodified opinion on those financial statements. Our audit was performed for the purpose offorming 
an opinion on the financial statements taken as a whole. The schedules ofOperating Expenses, Earnings 
from Contracts, Contracts Completed and Contracts in Progress are presented for purposes ofadditional 
analysis and are not a required part of the financial statements. Such information is the responsibility 
of management and was derived from and relates directly to the underlying accounting and other 
records used to prepare the financial statements. The information has been subjected to the auditing 
procedures applied in the audit of the financial statements and certain additional procedures, including 
comparing and reconciling such information directly to the underlying accounting and other records 
used to prepare the financial statements or to the financial statements themselves, and other additional 
procedures in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of America. 
In our opinion, the information is fairly stated in all material respects in relation to the financial 
statements as a whole. 

Bishop and Draper 
Certified Public Accountants 
Jacksonville, Florida 
March 25, 2024 
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BISHOP AND DRAPER 
CERTIFIED PUBLIC ACCOUNTANTS 

BESCH AND SMITH CIVIL GROUP, INC. 

OPERATING EXPENSES 

Year Ended December 31 
2023 2022 

Personnel costs: 
Salaries $ 723,076 $ 773,341 
Health insurance 107,832 101,133 
Payroll taxes 54,989 62,995 
Simple IRA expense 39,215 40,000 
Payroll processing fees 18,107 12,770 
Drug testing expense 5,866 4,012 
Worker's compensation insurance 2,872 2,463 
Other employee expenses 12,408 8,366 

964,365 1,005,080 
Advertising and marketing 7,668 12,423 
Bank charges 1,694 518 
Contributions 4,550 5,436 
Depreciation (net ofamount allocated to jobs) 4,526 3,319 
Dues 4,430 6,556 
Estimating expense 15,275 8,323 
Fees 15,562 6,621 
Insurance 249,382 229,012 
Legal and professional 54,166 26,250 
Meals and entertainment 12,866 18,578 
Office supplies and expenses 52,655 57,015 
Penalties 9,978 1,900 
Postage and shipping 2,187 1,619 
Rent 156,736 151,658 
Repairs and maintenance 21,342 3,954 
Safety expense 13,423 14,507 
Taxes, licenses and permits 71,609 62,780 
Telephone 14,263 16,025 
Training 1,485 4,553 
Trash disposal 1,692 1,520 
Travel 22,674 8,565 
Utilities 8,382 7,839 

$]710910 $ 1,654,051 

See Independent Auditor's Report on Supplementary Information 
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BISHOP AND DRAPER 
CERTIFIED PUBLIC ACCOUNTANTS 

BESCH AND SMITH CIVIL GROUP, INC. 

EARNINGS FROM CONTRACTS 

Year Ended December 31. 2023 

Revenues Cost of 
Earned Revenues 

Contracts completed 
during the period, 
including all time-and-
material contracts $ 8,358,866 $ 5,986,959 

Contracts in progress 
at year-end 13,708,133 11,885,879 

Owned equipment and vehicle costs 
of$2,688,866 net allocations of$2,257,662 431,204 

$22,066,999 $18,304,042 

Gross 
Profit 

$ 2,371,907 

1,822,254 

(431,204) 

$ 3,762,957 

See Independent Auditor's Report on Supplementary Information 
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BISHOP AND DRAPER 
CERTIFIED PUBLIC ACCOUNTANTS 

BESCH AND SMI1H CIVIL GROUP, INC. 

CONTRACTS COMPLETED 

Year Ended December 31. 2023 

Contract 
Number Customer 

Revenues 
Earned 

Cost of 
Revenues 

Gross 
Profit 

2022-02 

2022-03 

2022-05 

2022-06 

* St. Johns County 

* DC Construction Associates, Inc. 

* Ajax Building Company, LLC 

* St. Johns County 

Contracts under $100,000 

$ 2,618,720 

544,383 

2,857,835 

3,909,586 

206,398 

$ 2,411,984 

278,850 

1,759,291 

2,741,351 

216,295 

$ 206,736 

265,533 

1,098,544 

1,168,235 

(9,897) 

10,136,922 7,407,771 $2,729,151 

* Less recognized prior years (1,778,056) (1,420,812) (357,244) 

$ 8,358,866 $ 5,986,959 $2,371,907 

See Independent Auditor's Report on Supplementary Information 
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BISHOP AND DRAPER 

CERTIFIED PUBLIC ACCOUNTANTS 

BESCH AND SMITH CIVIL GROUP, fNC . 

CONTRACTSTNPROGRESS 

Qec_Ccmbcr 31, 2023 

Contract 
Number Customer Contract Amount 

Revenues 
Earned 

Cost of 
Revenues Gross Profit 

Percentage 
Com~ Billed to Date 

Estimated Total 
Costs 

Costs and 
Estimated 

Earnings in 
Excess of 
Billings 

Billings in 
Excess of 
Costs and 
Estimated 
Earnings 

2020-13 • Flagler County BOCC $ 11,585,275 $ 11,291,132 $ 11,788,607 $ (497,475) 97.46% $ 11,596,987 $ 12,082,750 $ (305,855) 

2021-05 • Six Mile Road CDD 10,212,142 10,176,695 7,844,338 2,332,357 99.65% 10,212,142 7,871,661 (35,447) 

2022-04 * Six Mile Road CDD 4,811,472 4,667,546 3,250,441 1,417,105 97.01% 4,755,861 3,350,670 (88,315) 

2023-01 The Haskell Company 3,582,261 1,060,610 666,392 394,218 29.61% 1,296,852 2,250,771 (236,242) 

2023-03 Charles Perry Partners, Inc. 3,270,198 787,490 432,947 354,543 24.08% 1,315,217 1,797,892 (527,727) 

2023-04 Tim Young Construction, Inc. 802,467 129,161 103,179 25,982 16.10% 226,151 641,045 (96,990) 

2023-05 Gilbane Building Company 6,061,754 85,803 60,597 25,206 1.42% 217,023 4,281,013 (131,220) 

--
$ 40,325,569 $ 28,198,437 $ 24,146,501 $ 4,051,936 $ 29,620,233 $ $(1,421,796) 

• Less recognized prior years (14,490,304) (12,260,622) (2.229,682) 

$ 13,708,133 . _1 _ll ,885,879 $ 1,822, 254 

See Independent Auditor's Report on Supplementary Information 
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FOOT 
Florida Department of Transportation 

RON DESANTIS 605 Suwannee Street JARED W. PERDUE, P.E. 
GOVERNOR Tallahassee, FL 32399-0450 SECRETARY 

BESC:H AND SViITH Ciil:L G?..00? INC 
345 CUMBERLAND rno::;sTR:A::. ,:T. 
ST. AUGUSTINE, FLO~IDA 32095 

RE: CERTIFICATE OF QUALIFICATION 

Tr.e Depart!r~ent o= ':'ra!1spcrt.a-:i;Jr, r.as q;;a~if:.ea ye:.:~ L,Ji;1par-~y f.or 'ct'.e 1·.y;;e cf wor ►: ir:d: :a:ed 
belu..... 

FDOT APPROVED WORIC CLASSES: 
DRAINAGE., GRADING, GRAss.=r,JG, SEE:i:NG ANJ soc,:,:~~.:;, s::~1J;._:.?-", c~.rb & G1..;:.ter, L2..:'c. Sta:.i.e;r,, 
Ur.dergrour.d Utilities {Wat.er & Se:..ier). 

Un:ess nocified otherwise, chis Certificate of Oualification wiil e~pire 6/30/2025. 

In acco rda:1~:e wi t:h Se::.·r:--4,.-:Jr: ]j7. ~4 ~ ~: , Flor..:.da Sta ~'....r:.es, c:-~a:-:g-2s ~CJ ..:::..bj li. ~j' ~a:::.t:,= ,::ir ¥.c::i7:i.~.'.7. 
~ap3.city Ra:ing will !'\O~ :..:ke effect. u:\t.:.l after ~he ex.;::ir~~iv:-: of the ~ur:cer.t .:::err.i::~~.:::e 
of prequalificatio:1 {if applicab:..e~. 

I~ accordance wi~h Sectio~ 337.14il), Flo=ida sr~rutes, a~ ap?licaticn for q~a:ifica~icn 
must be filed withir:. ~•l} mo:-:chs cf 'tf".e ending date c•f Lhe applicar.::' s audi::ed a:1nua _·i.. fir,,a:12"ia.l 
statements. 

If t.he ccmpan:r11 s rr1a:-:imt:m capac.::.cy na.s beer: re ' -SJ , !.r n ~ - ~ a ...... cessed b::,· log?i i~tJ int0 ::.r.e 
:~.r:a _ ?Hq,._a __ ,. o _. ,-.,.;:- c .. :..;.=··• :.Ste. _c. \:.:',._ ____ owing link: 
RTTPS://fdotWDl.do~.stat.e.fl.us/ ContractorPregua1.J..f1eati.on 

Once logged in, select "View" for the most recent.2.y apprc,ved app.:..ica::ion, anci then ,_::lick 
Lhe "Manage 11 and 11 Applica~ion Surr:mary 11 tabs. 

The company may apply for a Revised Certificate of Qualification at ar.y time ?:::_or t,:o t::-,e 
expiration dace of ~his c~rtifica:e a=cc~ding ~c Sect~o~ l~-22.0041(3), Flor:da 
Administrative Code (:.A.:::.), by accessing the mcst reccntl;/ approved c.pplica::.i.on as s'"ic:-1•1:1 
above and .:.hoosing 11 U9date 14 ins-c-ead cf "View. 11 If certifica.tio!'l in additi:inal. classes of 
work is desired, documentation is needed t~ show that the cornpa~y has performed such ~or%. 

All preo:ualified cor.tractcrs a:e required ':Yf Sec::.i.or: 14-~2. ':0613), F.A.C., to certify t.!",e:.: 
work underway month:y in order ~~ adjus~ rnaxi~um bidd~~g capaci~y to availdble bidji::g 
capacity. You can find the link to this repcrt at che websice shown above. 

3axes E. Taylor II, Pre~~alificeti □~ Supervisor 
Cc~tracts Admi~istratio~ Office 

JT:I 

Improve Safety, Enhance Mobility, Inspire Innovation 

www.fdot.gov 

www.fdot.gov
https://Sec::.i.or
https://c.pplica::.i.on
https://RTTPS://fdotWDl.do~.stat.e.fl.us
https://capac.::.cy
https://q;;a~if:.ea


CECIL W. POWELL & COMPANY 
INSURANCE, INTERNATIONAL FINANCIAL PLANNING AND SURETY BONDS SINCE 1935 
219 N. NEWNAN STREET• P.O. DRAWER 41490,JACKSONVILLE, FLORIDA 32203-1490 

Knowledge and Wisdom ® PHONE (904) 353-3181 • FAX (904) 353-5722•www.cwpowellins.com 

November 20, 2024 

Greenbriar Community Development District 

50 Silver Forrest Dr., Suite 203 
St Augustine, FL 32092 

RE: Besch and Smith Civil Group Inc. 

To Whom It May Concern: 

Cecil W. Powell & Company is the bonding agent for Besch and Smith Civil Group Inc. 
Based on normal and standard underwriting criteria at the time of the request, 
Performance and Payment bonds will be provided on for projects up to $15,000,000 
single $30,000,000 aggregate with the provision that we and Merchants Bonding 
Company reserve the right to review final contractual documents, bond forms, and obtain 
satisfactory evidence of funding prior to any final commitment to issue bonds, and do not 
assume liability to any third party, including yourselves, if we do not execute said bonds. 

Besch and Smith Civil Group Inc. is bonded through Merchants Bonding Company. 
Merchants Bonding Company has an A.M. Best rating of A IX and is licensed to 
conduct business in the State of Florida. 

Besch and Smith Civil Group Inc. is an excellent contractor and we hold them in the 
highest regard. We feel extremely confident in our contractor and encourage you to 
offer them an opportunity to execute any upcoming projects. 

If you should have any questions, please do not hesitate to give me a call. 

Sincerely, 

Robert T. Theus 
Vice President 

https://353-5722�www.cwpowellins.com


2024-2025 LOCAL BUSINESS TAX RECEIPT 
JIM OVERTON, DUVAL COUNTY TAX COLLECTOR 

231 E. Forsyth Street, Suite 130, Jacksonville, FL 32202-3370 
Phone: (904) 255-5700, option 3 Fax: (904) 255-8403 

https:/ltaxcollector.coj.nel/ 

Note -A penalty is imposed for failure to keep this receipt exhibited conspicuously at your place of business. This 
business tax receipt is furnished pursuant to Municipal Ordinance Code, Chapters 770-772, for the period 
October 01, 2024 through September 30, 2025 . 

BESCH AND SMITH CIVIL GROUP INC 

2148 WATER PLANT RD 
ST AUGUSTINE, FL 32092 

ACCOUNT NUMBER: 206531 

BUSINESS NAME: BESCH AND SMITH CIVIL GROUP INC 

PHYSICAL ADDRESS: 345 CUMBERLAND INDUSTRIAL CT 
ST AUGUSTINE, FL 32095 

CLASSIFICATION CODE: 325014 QUALIFYING AGENT - CONTRACTORS 

COUNTY TAX: 0.00 

MUNICIPAL TAX: 100.00 

STATE LICENSE NO: CUC1224084 
COUNTY LATE PENALTY: 

MUNICIPAL LATE PENALTY: 

0.00 

0.00 

TOTAL TAX: 100.00 

RENEWAL 

VALID UNTIL September 30, 2025 

*ttATTENTIONtt-1r 
THIS RECEIPT IS FOR BUSINESS TAX RECEIPT ONLY. 

CERTAIN BUSINESSES MAY REQUIRE ADDITIONAL STATE LICENSING. 

This is a business tax receipt only. It does not permit the receipt holder to violate any existing regulatory or zoning laws of 
the County or City. It does not exempt the receipt holder from any other license or permit required by law. This is not a 
certification of the receipt holder's qualifications. 

~-Z..6:).,~ 
JIM OVERTON, TAX COLLECTOR 

THIS BECOMES A RECEIPT AFTER VALIDATION. 

Paid TAX-25-00763500 09/211/2024 $ 100,00 

https:/ltaxcollector.coj.nel


This Receipt is issued pursuant to 2024/2025 ST. JOHNS COUNTY Account 1052993County ordinilflCe 87-36 
LOCAL BUSINESS TAX RECEIPT EXPIRES September 30, 2025 

MUST~ DISPLAYED IN A CON_SPICUOUS PlAC£ 

Business Type 

Location 

Underground Utilities (L) 

345 Cumberland Industrial Ct 
St Augustine FL 32095 

New Business 
Transfer 

Business Name 
Besch And Smith Clvll 
Group Inc 

.-. 
-~ All""---ST. JOHNS COUNTY 

Tax 

Penalty 

18.00 

0.00 

TAX COLLECTOR Cost 0.00 
OWner Name Besch And Smith Civil Group Inc DENNIS W. HOLLINOSWORTH,CFC T I 

~ Ota 18.00 

MaHlng 345 Cumberland Industrial Ct 
Address StAugustine,Fl..32095 

DENNIS W. HOLLINGSWORTH 
ST. JOHNS COUNTY TAX COLLECTOR 

This ~ does not constituce afranc~ an agrNment. 
permission or authority to perform the sefYices or~ the 
business described herein When a franchise. an agreemerit. or 
other county commission. ~ or federal permission or 
authority is required by county, state or federal law. This form becomes • rar.eipt only when validated below 

Paid br remipt(s) 202.3-8535970 on 07/15/Ufor $18.N 
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ID Task Name 

1 ,NTP 
2 Mobilization 
3 Erosion Control . , 

4 Clearing and Grubbing 
5 ·Earthwork 

6 Utility Cordination 
7 'Watermain 
8 Storm Drainage Installation 
9 Sleeve Installation 
10 Roadway Construction 
11 Striping and Signage 
12 Grassing/ Landscaping 
13 Substant ial Completion 
14 Final Com~etion-

Duration 

1 day 

412 days 

412 days 

120 days 

255 days 

60 days 

15 days 

145 days 

10 days 

SO days 

10 days 

39 days 

Finish Feb 9, '25 
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Mon 3/3/25 

Tue 9/29/26 

Tue 9/29/26 l 
Fri 8/29/25 
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Thu 8/14/25 
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Mon 4/13/26 
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Start 

Mon 3/3/25 

Mon 3/3/25 

Mon 3/3/25 

Mon 3/17/25 

Mon 4/14/25 

Sun 5/25/25 

Mon 8/18/25 

Tue 9/9/25 

Tue 3/31/26 

Tue 4/14/26 

Tue 6/23/26 

Tue 7/7/26 

Sun 8/30/26 

Tue 9/29/26 

Task External Milestone Manual Summary Rollup• 
Split 11,1, 1 ,111 11 11+• 14 • Inactive Task Manual Summary 

Milestone Inactive Milestone Start-only C• 
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ern122liel 
BESCH & SMITH CIVIL GROUP INC. 

Job Code: 24FL091 PINEWALK GREENBRIAR ROAD WIDENING 
Description: 24FL091 PINEWALK GREENBRIAR ROAD WIDENING 

Proposal 
Pay Item No. Description 

Subtotal Description 

GENERAL CONDITIONS 

MOBILZATION A.1 

2 TEMPORARY FIELD OFFICE 

CONSTRUCTION OFFICE A.2 

3 MAINTIENACE OF TRAFFIC 

MAINTENACE A.3 

4 CLEARING &HAUL OFF ? 

5 12' RCP PIPE REMOVAL 

6 24' RCP PIPE REMOVAL 

7 30' RCP PIPEREMOVAL 

8 36" RCP PIPE REMOVAL 

9 42" RCP PIPE REMOVAL 

10 REMOVE EXISTING PRECAST STRUCTURES- DEPTH UNKNOWN 

12 DEWATERING FOR HEADWALL REMOVAL 

13 SAW CUT ASPHALT 

14 CURB REMOVAL 

15 REMOVE LIMEROCK (IN PLACE) 

16 REMOVE 6' CONCRETE PAVING 

17 REMOVE ASPHALT (DRIVEWAY) 

18 DIRT DRIVE DEMO 

A.4 CLEARING &GRUB ING 

20 STRIP TOPSOIL (HAUL OFFSITE) 

21 CUT &BALANCE FILL (ON-SITE) 

22 BORROW FILL (TRUCK MEASURE) 

23 REMOVE/DISPOSE &REPLACE UNSUITABLES 

24 ROUGH GRADING SITE 

25 FINE GRADING POND SLOPES 

26 FINE GRADING SITE- RIGHT OF WAY 

27 SWALE GRADING 

28 CURB GRADING_MAJOR CURB GRADING 

29 SIDEWALK GRADING 

30 DEWATER EXISTING POND 

31 FINE GRADING SITE - MEDIAN 

Quantity Unit of Measure Unit Price Total Price 

1.00 Lump Sum 469,134.29 469,134.29 

Subtotal: 469,134.29 

1.00 Lump Sum 0.00 0.00 

Subtotal: 0.00 

1.00 LumpSum 113,692.19 113,692.19 

Subtotal: 113,692.19 

5.00 Acre 21,369.03 106,84515 

1,105.00 Linear Feet 21.97 24,276.85 

211.00 Linear Feet 40.85 8,619.35 

61.00 Linear Feet 55.77 3,401.97 

384.00 Linear Feet 62.81 24,119.04 

376.00 Linear Feet 81.10 30,493.60 

21 .00 Each 1,316.49 27,646.29 

1.00 Each 31 ,015.10 31,015.10 

7,560.00 Linear Feet 2.98 22,528.80 

2,524.00 Linear Feet 4.44 11,206.56 

772.00 SQ YARD 1.60 1,235 20 

25.00 SQ YARD 25.57 639.25 

772.00 SQ YARD 3.84 2,964.48 

231.00 SQ YARD 12.79 2,954.49 

Subtotal: 297,946.13 

19,200.00 Cubic Yard 20.82 399,744.00 

6,518.00 Cubic Yard 2.29 14,926.22 

30,547.00 Cubic Yard 11.48 350,679.56 

4,457.00 Cubic Yard 34.49 153,721.93 

56,603.00 SQ YARD 1.14 64,527.42 

1,002.00 SQ YARD 2.66 2,665.32 

17,068.00 SQ YARD 1.54 26,284.72 

10,985.00 SQ YARD 4.01 44,049.85 

9,020.00 Linear Feet 1.04 9,380.80 

4,093.00 SQ YARD 2.40 9,823.20 

1.00 LumpSum 33,130.98 33,130.98 

4,838.00 SQ YARD 2.15 10,401.70 
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35 

40 

45 

50 

55 

60 

Proposal 
PayJtem No. Description Quantity UnltofMeasure Unit Prlc& Total Price 

SUbtDtal Description 

32 DITCH PAVEMENT GRADING 122.00 SQ YARD 28.81 3,514.82 

A.5(a) EARTHWORK Subtotal: 1,122,850.52 

33 FLOWABLE FILL- CONTENGENCY 1,000.00 Cubic Yard 305.35 305,350.00 

A.5(b) FLOWABLE Fill Subtotal: 305,350.00 

34 REMOVE/DISPOSE &REPLACE UNSUITABLES -CONTENGENCY 5,000.00 Cubic Yard 32.98 164,900.00 

A.5(c) UNSUITABLES Subtotal: 164,900.00 

12' SUBGRADE LBR-40 21,671.00 SQYARD 8.02 173,801.42 

36 10" LIMEROCK &PRIME 17,843.00 SQYARD 31.19 556,523.17 

37 2" 12.5 SP TRAFFIC C 17,578.00 SQ YARD 19.20 337,497.60 

38 1.5" 9.5 TRAFFIC C 17,578.00 SQ YARD 16.12 283,357.36 

39 MILL3/4 10,972.00 SQYARD 3.64 39,938.08 

RESURFACE 1.5' 9.5 TRAFFIC C 10,972.00 SQ YARD 17.84 195,740.48 

41 OVERBUILD (REAL QUANTITY 480) - 550.00 Ton 192.72 105,996.00 

42 TEMPORARY ASPHALT PAVEMENT 387.00 SQYARD 128.02 49,543.74 

43 4" DITCH PAVEMENT 122.00 SY 85.10 10,382.20 

44 5'SIDEWALK 4,093.00 SY 55.20 225,933.60 

4' TRAFFIC SEPERATOR 298.00 Foot 38.18 11,377.64 

46 TYPEFCURB 9,020.00 LF 27.01 243,630.20 

47 CONCRETE SIDEWALK RAMPS (SUBCONTRACTOR) 12.00 Each 1,474.61 17,695.32 

48 ALUMINUM BYCYCLE RAILING 318.00 Foot 132.65 42,182.70 

49 RETAINING WALL 256.-00 linear Feet 166.26 42,562.56 

A.6 ROADWAY CONSTRUCTION Subtotal: 2,336,162.07 

16' DUCT. IRON PIPE 80.00 linear Feet 173.44 13,875.20 

51 16" Ml LONG PAT SLEEVE W/MLACC 4.00 Each 1,646.38 6,585.52 

52 16"X16'TAP SLEEVE &VALV 1.00 Each 28,343.54 28,343.54 

53 16" GATE VALVE W/BOX 1.00 Each 9,800.11 9,800.11 

54 16'X16'TEE 1.00 Each 2,870.62 2,870.62 

16" 45 DEGREE BEND 4.00 Each 1,766.66 7,066.64 

56 16" PIPE BELL RESTRAINTS 8.00 Each 743.80 5,950.40 

57 PAVEMENT REPAIR-WATERMAIN 23.00 Square Yard 414.87 9,542.01 

58 16"PLUG 1.00 Each 889.31 889.31 

59 SAMPLE POINT 4.00 Each 732.67 2,930.68 

A.7WATERSYSTEM Subtotal: 87,854.03 

R3-17 &R3-17BP 1.00 ASSEMBLY 297.12 297.12 

61 R3-17 2.00 ASSEMBLY 297.12 594.24 
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Proposal 
Pay Item No. Description Quantify Unit of Measure Unit Price Total Price 

Subtotal Descrlpflon 

62 R6-1L 2.00 Each 297.12 594.24 

63 R6-3A &R1-1 &R6-1R 2.00 Each 297.12 594.24 

64 D31 DBL BLADE STREET SIGNS 2.00 ASSEMBLY 297.12 594.24 

65 W4-2R 1.00 ASSEMBLY 297.12 297.12 

66 9BUTTON 8.00 Each 297.12 2,376.96 

67 SINGLE POST SIGN F&I FOOT 700 112 2.00 ASSEMBLY 3,561.71 7,123.42 

68 SINGLE POST SIGN F&I FOOT 700 111 13.00 ASSEMBLY 587.93 7,643.09 

69 R2-1 1.00 ASSEMBLY 297.12 297.12 

70 RELOCATE SIGN 7.00 ASSEMBLY 297.12 2,079.84 

71 REMOVE &DISPOSE SIGNS 3.00 ASSEMBLY 42.69 128.07 

A.8 ROADWAY SIGNING Subtotal: 22,619.70 

72 6" DBL YELLOW (NOT DOUBLED) 1,036.00 Linear Feet 3.98 4,123.28 

73 6" WHITE 2-4 SKIP 832.00 Linear Feet 0.63 524.16 

74 6' WHITE 10-30 SKIP 5,414.00 LinearFeet 0.63 3,410.82 

75 6" WHITE STRIPE 9,786.00 Linear Feet 1.60 15,657.60 

76 6" YELLOW 6-10 SKIP 442.00 Linear Feet 0.63 278.46 

77 6' YELLOW STRIPE 6,145.00 LinearFeet 1.99 12,228.55 

78 8" WHITE STRIPE 50.00 Linear Feet 1.77 88.50 

79 12" WHITE STRIPE 365.00 Linear Feet 7.32 2,671.80 

80 18" YELLOW STRPE 318.00 Linear Feet 10.37 3,297.66 

81 24' WHITE STRIPE 197.00 Linear Feet 14.64 2,884.08 

82 BICYCLE 9.00 Each 335.43 3,018.87 

83 TURN ARROW 18.00 Each 201.26 3,622.68 

84 MERGE MESSAGE W/ ARROW 2.00 Each 506.20 1,012.40 

85 SMALL ARROW (BIKE LANE) 9.00 Each 170.76 1,536.84 

86 RPM 206.00 Each 6.10 1,256.60 

87 HYDRO BLAST 1.00 Lump Sum 29,564.35 29,564.35 

A.9 ROADWAY MARKING Subtotal: 85,176.65 

88 OVERHEAD UNTILITY COORDINATION 1.00 Lump Sum 24,395.21 24,395.21 

A.10 UTITLTY COORDINATION Subtotal: 24,395.21 

89 GEO BALES 142.00 Each 35.05 4,977.10 

90 INLET PROTECTION 21.00 Each 150.69 3,164.49 

91 SILT FENCE 5,500.00 Linear Feet 6.44 35,420.00 

92 STAKE TURBIDITY BARRIER 2,572.00 Linear Feet 9.09 23,379.48 

93 FLOATING BARRIER 331.00 Linear Feet 19.09 6,318.79 
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95 

100 

105 

110 

115 

120 

125 

Proposal 
Pay Item No. Description Quantity Unit of Measure Unit Price Total Price 

Subtotal Description 
94 TEMP.CONSTRUCTION ENTRANCE 1.00 Each 7,355.60 7,355.60 

A.11 EROSION Subtotal: 80,615.46 

18' R.C.P. (0/6') SIDE DRAINAGE (1-RUN) 37.00 Linear Feet 98.39 3,640.43 

96 18' R.C.P. (8/10') CROSS DRAINAGE (1-RUN) 98.00 Linear Feet 179.97 17,637.06 

97 18" R.C.P. (12/14') CROSS DRAINAGE (1-RUN) 86.00 Linear Feet 184.76 15,889.36 

98 24" R.C.P. (0/6') CROSS DRAINAGE (1-RUN) 152.00 Linear Feet 124.68 18,951.36 

99 24" R.C.P. (6/8') SIDE DRAINAGE (1-RUN) 273.00 Linear Feet 188.88 51,564.24 

24" R.C.P. (8/10') CROSS DRAINAGE (1-RUN) 74.00 LinearFeet 209.20 15,480.80 

101 24" R.C.P. (8110') SIDE DRAINAGE (2-RUN) 174.00 LinearFeet 193.15 33,608.10 

102 30" R.C.P. (8/10') SIDE DRAINAGE (1-RUN) 211.00 Linear Feet 248.70 52,475.70 

103 30" R.C.P. (12/14') CROSS DRAINAGE (1-RUN) 87 .00 Linear Feet 274.14 23,850.18 

104 36' R.C.P. (12/14') DRAINAGE (4-RUN) 1,174.00 LinearFeet 286.42 336,257 08 

48" R.C.P. (6/8') CROSS DRAINAGE (1-RUN) 126.00 Linear Feet 403.64 50,858.64 

106 48" R.C.P. (6/8') SIDE DRAINAGE (1-RUN) 74.00 Linear Feet 495.29 36,651.46 

107 48' R.C.P. (8/10') SIDE DRAINAGE (3-RUN) 1,200.00 Linear Feet 406.83 488,196.00 

108 48" R.C.P. (8/10') CROSS DRAINAGE (3-RUN) 932.00 Linear Feet 448.94 418,412.08 

109 54' R.C.P. (618') SIDE DRAINAGE (1 -RUN) 184.00 Linear Feet 531.98 97,884.32 

54" R.C.P. (8/10') SIDE DRAINAGE (2-RUN) 110.00 Linear Feet 563.40 61,974.00 

111 60" R.C.P. (10/12') DRAINAGE 60.00 Linear Feet 763.08 45,784.80 

112 "C" INLETS (0/4') S-117, S-119,S-119A 3.00 Each 9,233.56 27,700.68 

113 "C" INLETS (4/6') S-115 1.00 Each 9,192.06 9,192.06 

114 "C" INLETS (8110') S-120, S-121, S-118,( S4A ADDED) 4.00 Each 12,771.52 51,086.08 

'C' INLETS (12/14') S-114, S-116 2.00 Each 16,531.44 33,062.88 

116 "DBI" INLETS (4/6') S-108 1.00 Each 7,566.19 7,566.19 

117 "DBI" INLETS (6/8') S-9, S-3A, S-107 3.00 Each 9,312.10 27,936.30 

118 "DBI" INLETS (8/10') S-2, S-7, S-6, S-5, S-4, S-3 6.00 Each 11 ,259.99 67,559.94 

119 "DBI' INLETS (12/14') S-113 1.00 Each 12,673.27 12,673.27 

STORM MANHOLE (618') S-2A 1.00 Each 14,580.80 14,580.80 

121 POND CONTROL STRUCTURE 10/12 AIS-101 1.00 Each 24,755.50 24,755.50 

122 24" (STRAIGHT) HEADWALL 1.00 Each 5,704.03 5,704.03 

123 60" (STRAIGHT) HEADWALL (DOUBLE) ..HEAVY LIFT TONS 25 1.00 Each 30,092.87 30,092.87 

124 CONN 60' RCP TO EXIST 60" RCP 2.00 Each 10,595.78 21,191.56 

24" (STRAIGHT) ENDWALL 1.00 Each 5,900.48 5,900.48 

126 30" POURED IN PLACE MES 1.00 Each 3,353.61 3,353.61 

127 48' POURED IN PLACE MES 1.00 Each 5,778.29 5,778.29 
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Proposal 
Payltem No. DescrlptkYn Quantity Unit of.Measure Unit Price Total Price 

Subtota.l Description 

128 54' POURED IN PLACE MES 2.00 Each 11,045.81 22,091 .62 

129 PAVEMENTREPAIR-WATERMAIN 171.00 Square Yard 340.99 58,309.29 

130 DESILTEXSIT 60' PIPE 1.00 LumpSum 21,467.79 21,467.79 

131 FLOWABLE FILL 500.00 Cubic Yard 460.93 230,465.00 

8.1 DRAINAGE Subtotal: 2,449,583.85 

132 LANDSCAPING 1.00 LumpSum 175,035.62 175,035.62 

A. LANDSCAPING Subtotal: 175,035.62 

133 TEMP IRRIGATION SYSTEM 1.00 Lump Sum 60,988.03 60,988.03 

B. TEMP IRRIGATION Subtotal: 60,988.03 

134 BAHIA SOD ROW 17,068.00 SQ YARD 4.15 70,832.20 

135 BAHIA POND SLOPES 1,002.00 SQYARD 4.15 4,158.30 

136 BAHIA SOD SWALE 10,985.00 SQYARD 4.15 45,587.75 

137 BHAIA SOD MEDIAN 4,838.00 SQ YARD 4.15 20,077.70 

C.1 GRASSING Subtotal: 140,655.95 

138 TEMP SEED &MULCH 10,000.00 SQYARD 0.81 8,100.00 

C.2 TEMP SEED &MULCH Subtotal: 8,100.00 

139 2112' SCHD.40 PIPE SLEEVES 500.00 Linear Feet 10.89 5,445.00 

140 3" SCH 40 PIPE SLEEVES 500.00 Linear Feet 12.50 6,250.00 

141 4' SCHD 40 PVC SLEEVES 500.00 Linear Feet 13.36 6,680.00 

142 6' SCH 40 PVC SLEEVES 500.00 Linear Feet 16.72 8,360.00 

143 8' SCH 40 PVC SLEEVES 500.00 Linear Feet 2126 10,630.00 

144 10' SCH 40 PVC SLEEVES 500.00 Linear Feet 26.64 13,320.00 

D.SLEEVES Subtotal: 50,685.00 

145 NPDSPERMIT 1.00 Each 22,931.95 22,931.95 

A.PERMIT Subtotal: 22,931 .95 

146 TESTING ALLOWANCE 1.00 LumpSum 100,000.00 100,000.00 

B. TESTING ALLOWANCE Subtotal: 100,000.00 

147 BOND 1.00 Lump Sum 164,017.65 164,017.65 

C.1 BONDING Subtotal: 164,017.65 

148 WARRANTY BOND 1.00 Lump Sum 19,709.56 19,709.56 

C.2 WARRANTY BOND Subtotal: 19,709.56 

149 ASBUILTS 1.00 LumpSum 82,932.99 82,932.99 

D.1 ASBUILT Subtotal: 82,932.99 

150 GENERAL CONDITIONS (BID ALT 1JEA REUSE) 1.00 Lump Sum 52,958.51 52,958.51 

A1-1 MOB Subtotal: 52,958.51 

11/22/2024 1 :08 PM Copyrigh\©1989-2017 fnEight Inc. All Rights Reserved. 5 of 6 



Proposal 
Pay Item No. Description Quantity Unit of Measure Unit Price Tota.I Price 

SubtotalDescription 

151 24' DUCT. IRON PIPE 3,782.00 Linear Feet 39129 1,479,858.78 

152 16" DUCT. IRON PIPE 58.00 Linear Feet 177.09 10,271.22 

153 16' GATE VALVE W/ BOX 1.00 Each 10,208.06 10,208.06 

154 24" GATE VALVE W/ BOX 6.00 Each 28,762.82 172,576.92 

155 24" X16" TEE 1.00 Each 5,036.68 5,036.68 

156 24" 22-1/2 DEGREE BEND W/MEGALUG 2.00 Each 3,665.64 7,331 .28 

157 16" 45 DEGREE BEND 4.00 Each 1,912.89 7,651.56 

158 24" DIP CONFLICT CROSSING 2.00 Each 28,810.52 57,621.04 

159 16' PIPE BELL RESTRAINTS 6.00 Each 743.80 4,462.80 

160 24' PIPE BELL RESTRAINTS 69.00 Each 1,509.92 104,184.48 

161 24"MJ PLUG 3.00 Each 1,827.27 5,481.81 

162 SAMPLE POINT 5.00 Each 1,006.33 5,031 .65 

163 24"X16' TAP SLEEVE &VALV 1.00 Each 26,230.73 26,230.73 

164 24" 45 DEG BEND W/MEG 2.00 Each 3,844.49 7,688.98 

165 LOCATE WIRE BOX 5.00 Each 411.37 2,056.85 

166 PAVEMENT REPAIR-WATERMAIN 60.00 Square Yard 349.35 20,961.00 

A1-2REUSE Subtotal: 1,926,653.84 

167 TESTING ALLOWANCE 1.00 LumpSum 30,000.00 30,000.00 

A1-3 TESTING ALLOWANCE Subtotal: 30,000.00 

168 JEA REUSEASBUILTS 1.00 LumpSum 24,918.81 24,918.81 

A1-4AJEAASBUILTS Subtotal: 24,918.81 

GRAND TOTAL: 10,419,868.01 

11/22/2024 1:08 PM Copyrigh\©1989-2017 lnEighl Inc. All Rights Reserved. 6 of 6 

https://10,419,868.01


GREENBRIAR 
COMMUNITY DEVELOPMENT DISTRICT 

3AIII 



GREENBRIAR 
COMMUNITY DEVELOPMENT DISTRICT 

3AIIII 



GREENBRIAR 
COMMUNITY DEVELOPMENT DISTRICT 

3B 



4867-7793-6099.1  

EVALUATION CRITERIA 

 

GREENBRIAR COMMUNITY DEVELOPMENT DISTRICT 
REQUEST FOR PROPOSALS FOR  

PINEWALK GREENBRIAR ROAD WIDENING 
  

 

PART I.  GENERAL INFORMATION – (C) EVALUATION CRITERIA 

 

1. PRELIMINARY REQUIREMENTS   (Pass / Fail) 

An interested firm must (i) hold all required local, state and federal licenses in good standing, (ii) 

be authorized to do business in St. Johns County and the State of Florida, (iii) Proposer or its principals will 

have constructed three (3) projects similar in quality and scope with a minimum of $10,000,000 in total 

volume construction cost within the last five (5) years; (iv) Proposer will have minimum bonding capacity 

of $20,000,000 from a surety company acceptable to the District.   

 

2. PRICE       (60 Points Possible)     

This category addresses overall pricing for the construction work, as well as consideration of unit 

prices and the overall reasonableness of the pricing. Points available for price will be allocated as follows: 
 

45 Points will be awarded to the Proposer submitting the lowest cost proposal for completing the work. 

All other Proposers will receive a percentage of this amount based upon the difference between the 

Proposer's bid and the low bid.  

 

15 Points are allocated for the reasonableness of unit prices and balance of bid.  

 

3. PERSONNEL & EQUIPMENT   (10 Points Possible)      

This category addresses the following criteria:  skill set and experience of key management and 

assigned personnel, including the project manager and other specifically trained individuals who will 

manage the Project; experience of key management and assigned personnel performing projects in Duval 

and St. Johns Counties; present ability to staff, equip and manage the Project; proposed staffing levels; 

proposed equipment; capability of performing the work; geographic location; inventory of all equipment; 

etc.   

 

4. EXPERIENCE     (10 Points Possible)      

This category addresses past & current record and experience of the Proposer (and/or 

subcontractors and suppliers) in similar projects; past & current record and experience of the Proposer 

(and/or subcontractors and suppliers) in Duval and St. Johns Counties; past performance in any other 

contracts; etc.   

 

5. SCHEDULE      (20 Points Possible)     

 This category addresses the timeliness of the construction schedule, as well as the Proposer’s 

ability to credibly complete the Project within the Proposer’s schedule.  Points available for schedule will 

be allocated as follows: 

10 Points will be awarded to the Proposer submitting the proposal with the most expedited 

construction schedule (i.e., the fewest number of days) for completing the work. All other proposals 

will receive a percentage of this amount based upon the difference between the Proposer's time 

proposal and the most expedited construction schedule.  



4867-7793-6099.1  

10 Points are allocated for the Proposer's ability to credibly complete the project within the 

Proposer's schedule and demonstrate on-time performance.  

100 Total Points Possible 

  



GREENBRIAR COMMUNITY DEVELOPMENT DISTRICT 
 

REQUEST FOR PROPOSALS  
PINEWALK GREENBRIAR ROAD WIDENING PROJECT 

 
EVALUATION CRITERIA MATRIX 

 

PROPOSER 
PRELIMINARY 

REQUIREMENTS 
PRICE 

PERSONNEL & 

EQUIPMENT 
EXPERIENCE SCHEDULE 

TOTAL 
POINTS 

 PASS/FAIL 60 POINTS 10 POINTS 10 POINTS 20 POINTS 100 POINTS 

       

A.J. Johns 
      

       

Besch and Smith  
      

       

C.W. Matthews 
      

       

Vallencourt 
      

       

 

NOTES 

 
 
Completed by:        ______  Date:      

   Board Member’s Signature 

             
Printed Name of Board Member  
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RESOLUTION 2025-02 
 

A RESOLUTION OF THE BOARD OF SUPERVISORS OF THE 
GREENBRIAR COMMUNITY DEVELOPMENT DISTRICT ELECTING 
AND REMOVING OFFICERS OF THE DISTRICT AND PROVIDING FOR 
AN EFFECTIVE DATE 
 

WHEREAS, the Greenbriar Community Development District (“District”) is a local unit of 
special-purpose government created and existing pursuant to Chapter 190, Florida Statutes; and   
 

WHEREAS, the District’s Board of Supervisors desires to elect and remove certain Officers 
of the District. 

 
NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED BY THE BOARD OF 
SUPERVISORS OF THE GREENBRIAR COMMUNITY DEVELOPMENT 
DISTRICT: 

 

SECTION 1. The following is/are elected as Officer(s) of the District effective January 
22, 2025: 

 is elected Chair 

 is elected Vice Chair 

 is elected Assistant Secretary 

 is elected Assistant Secretary 

 is elected Assistant Secretary 

 is elected Assistant Secretary 

 SECTION 2. The following Officer(s) shall be removed as Officer(s) as of January 22, 
2025: 

   

 
  



SECTION 3.  The following prior appointments by the Board remain unaffected by this 
Resolution: 

 

Craig Wrathell is Secretary 

Ernesto Torres is Assistant Secretary 

Craig Wrathell is Treasurer 

Jeff Pinder is Assistant Treasurer 

 

 

PASSED AND ADOPTED this 22nd day of January, 2025.  

 
ATTEST:      GREENBRIAR COMMUNITY 
       DEVELOPMENT DISTRICT 
 
 
 
             
Secretary/Assistant Secretary Chair/Vice Chair, Board of Supervisors 
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RESOLUTION 2025-01 
 

A RESOLUTION OF THE BOARD OF SUPERVISORS OF THE GREENBRIAR 
COMMUNITY DEVELOPMENT DISTRICT DESIGNATING DATES, TIMES AND 
LOCATIONS FOR REGULAR MEETINGS OF THE BOARD OF SUPERVISORS OF THE 
DISTRICT FOR FISCAL YEAR 2024/2025 AND PROVIDING FOR AN EFFECTIVE DATE 

 
 WHEREAS, the Greenbriar Community Development District (“District”) is a local unit of 
special-purpose government created and existing pursuant to Chapter 190, Florida Statutes; and  
 
 WHEREAS, the District is required by Section 189.015, Florida Statutes, to file quarterly, 
semi-annually, or annually a schedule (including date, time, and location) of its regular meetings 
with local governing authorities; and 
 
 WHEREAS, further, in accordance with the above-referenced statute, the District shall 
also publish quarterly, semi-annually, or annually the District’s regular meeting schedule in a 
newspaper of general paid circulation in the county in which the District is located. 
 
 WHEREAS, the Board desires to adopt the Fiscal Year 2024/2025 meeting schedule 
attached as Exhibit A. 

 
NOW THEREFORE BE IT RESOLVED BY THE BOARD OF SUPERVISORS OF THE 
GREENBRIAR COMMUNITY DEVELOPMENT DISTRICT: 

 
1.  ADOPTING FISCAL YEAR 2024/2025 ANNUAL MEETING SCHEDULE.  The Fiscal 

Year 2024/2025 annual meeting schedule attached hereto and incorporated by reference herein 
as Exhibit A is hereby approved and shall be published in accordance with the requirements of 
Florida law and also provided to applicable governing authorities. 

 
2.  EFFECTIVE DATE.  This Resolution shall become effective immediately upon its 

adoption. 
 
PASSED AND ADOPTED this ____ day of ______________________, 2025.  

 
ATTEST:      GREENBRIAR COMMUNITY DEVELOPMENT 

DISTRICT 
 
 
_________________________________  ____________________________________ 
Secretary/Assistant Secretary Chair/Vice Chair, Board of Supervisors  



EXHIBIT “A” 
 

GREENBRIAR COMMUNITY DEVELOPMENT DISTRICT 
 

BOARD OF SUPERVISORS FISCAL YEAR 2024/2025 MEETING SCHEDULE 

 

LOCATION 
Regional Development, 50 Silver Forest Drive, Suite 203, St. Augustine, Florida 32092 

 

DATE POTENTIAL DISCUSSION/FOCUS TIME 

   

February 13, 2025 Regular Meeting 3:00 PM 

   

March 13, 2025 Regular Meeting 3:00 PM 

   

April 10, 2025 Regular Meeting 3:00 PM 

   

May 8, 2025 Regular Meeting 3:00 PM 

   

June 12, 2025 Regular Meeting 3:00 PM 

   

July 10, 2025 Regular Meeting 3:00 PM 

   

August 14, 2025 Regular Meeting 3:00 PM 

   

September 11, 2025 Regular Meeting 3:00 PM 
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GREENBRIAR
COMMUNITY DEVELOPMENT DISTRICT

FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

DECEMBER 31, 2024
UNAUDITED



General
Fund

Debt
Service
Fund

Capital
Projects

Fund

Total
Governmental

Funds
ASSETS
Cash 23,085$       -$                -$                23,085$        
Due from Landowner 7,102           -                  8,140           15,242          
Due from general fund -                  -                  7,299           7,299            

Total assets 30,187$       -$                15,439$       45,626$        

LIABILITIES AND FUND BALANCES
Liabilities:

Accounts payable 12,171$       -$                15,439$       27,610$        
Due to Landowner -                  18,991         360,601       379,592        
Due to capital projects fund 7,299           -                  -                  7,299            
Landowner advance 10,822         -                  -                  10,822          

Total liabilities 30,292         18,991         376,040       425,323        

DEFERRED INFLOWS OF RESOURCES
Deferred receipts 7,102           -                  -                  7,102            

Total deferred inflows of resources 7,102           -                  -                  7,102            

Fund balances:
Restricted for:

Debt service -                  (18,991)       -                  (18,991)         
Capital projects -                  -                  (360,601)     (360,601)       

Unassigned (7,207)         -                  -                  (7,207)           
Total fund balances (7,207)         (18,991)       (360,601)     (386,799)       

Total liabilities, deferred inflows of resources 
and fund balances 30,187$       -$                15,439$       45,626$        

DECEMBER 31, 2024

GREENBRIAR
COMMUNITY DEVELOPMENT DISTRICT

BALANCE SHEET
GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS

1



Current
Month

Year to
Date Budget

% of
Budget

REVENUES
Landowner contribution 2,381$     8,057$       98,790$        8%

Total revenues 2,381       8,057         98,790          8%

EXPENDITURES
Professional & administrative
Management/accounting/recording** 2,000       6,000         48,000          13%
Legal 438          2,746         25,000          11%
Engineering -               -                2,000            0%
Audit -               -                5,500            0%
Arbitrage rebate calculation* -               -                500               0%
Dissemination agent* -               -                2,000            0%
Trustee* -               -                5,500            0%
Telephone 17            50              200               25%
Postage -               73              500               15%
Printing & binding 42            125            500               25%
Legal advertising -               -                1,750            0%
Annual special district fee -               175            175               100%
Insurance -               5,250         5,500            95%
Contingencies/bank charges 104          310            750               41%
Website hosting & maintenance -               -                705               0%
Website ADA compliance -               -                210               0%

Total expenditures 2,601       14,729       98,790          15%

Excess/(deficiency) of revenues
over/(under) expenditures (220)         (6,672)       -                    

Fund balances - beginning (6,987)      (535)          -                    
Fund balances - ending (7,207)$    (7,207)$     -$                  

GREENBRIAR
COMMUNITY DEVELOPMENT DISTRICT

STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES,

FOR THE PERIOD ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2024

AND CHANGES IN FUND BALANCES
GENERAL FUND

**WHA will charge a reduced management fee of $2,000 per month until bonds are issued.
*These items will be realized when bonds are issued.

2



Current
Month

Year To
Date

REVENUES -$            -$            
Total revenues -              -              

EXPENDITURES -              -              
Total debt service -              -              

Excess/(deficiency) of revenues
over/(under) expenditures -              -              

Fund balances - beginning (18,991)   (18,991)   
Fund balances - ending (18,991)$ (18,991)$ 

AND CHANGES IN FUND BALANCES
DEBT SERVICE FUND

FOR THE PERIOD ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2024

GREENBRIAR
COMMUNITY DEVELOPMENT DISTRICT

STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES,
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Current
Month

Year To
Date

REVENUES -$              -$              
Total revenues -                -                

EXPENDITURES
Capital outlay 8,140        8,140        

Total expenditures 8,140        8,140        

Excess/(deficiency) of revenues
over/(under) expenditures (8,140)       (8,140)       

Fund balances - beginning (352,461)   (352,461)   
Fund balances - ending (360,601)$ (360,601)$ 

GREENBRIAR
COMMUNITY DEVELOPMENT DISTRICT

STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES,
AND CHANGES IN FUND BALANCES

CAPITAL PROJECTS FUND 
FOR THE PERIOD ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2024

4
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MINUTES 



DRAFT 

1 

MINUTES OF MEETING 1 
GREENBRIAR COMMUNITY DEVELOPMENT DISTRICT 2 

 3 
The Board of Supervisors of the Greenbriar Community Development District held a 4 

Regular Meeting on October 30, 2024 at 3:00 p.m., at the offices of Regional Development, 50 5 

Silver Forest Drive, Suite 203, St. Augustine, Florida 32092 6 

 7 

Present at the meeting were: 8 
 9 
Joshua Breakstone Chair 10 
Noah Breakstone Assistant Secretary 11 
Kevin Kramer Assistant Secretary 12 
 13 
Also present: 14 
 15 
Ernesto Torres District Manager 16 
Mike Eckert District Counsel 17 
Peter Ma District Engineer 18 
Samantha Breakstone Supervisor-Appointee 19 
 20 
 21 

FIRST ORDER OF BUSINESS Call to Order/Roll Call 22 
 23 

Mr. Torres called the meeting to order at 3:00 p.m. Supervisors Kramer, Joshua 24 

Breakstone and Noah Breakstone were present. Supervisors Mays and Onorato were not 25 

present. 26 

Mr. Torres asked to modify the agenda and consider the acceptance of the resignation of 27 

Kevin Mays after public comments.  The Board agreed to the request. 28 

 29 

SECOND ORDER OF BUSINESS Public Comments 30 
 31 

There were no members of the public present. 32 

▪ Acceptance of the Resignation of Kevin Mays from Seat 2 & Appointment to Fill Seat 2 33 

This item was an addition to the agenda. 34 

Mr. Torres presented Mr. Kevin Mays’ resignation letter.  35 

 36 
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On MOTION by Mr. Joshua Breakstone and seconded by Mr. Kramer, with all in 37 
favor, the resignation of Kevin Mays from Seat 2, was accepted.  38 

 39 
 40 
Mr. Joshua Breakstone nominated Ms. Samantha Breakstone to fill Seat 2. No other 41 

nominations were made. 42 

 43 

On MOTION by Mr. Joshua Breakstone and seconded by Mr. Noah Breakstone, 44 
with all in favor, the appointment of Ms. Samantha Breakstone to Seat 2, was 45 
approved.  46 

 47 
 48 

▪ Administration of Oath of Office to Samantha Breakstone (Seat 2) 49 

This item was an addition to the agenda. 50 

Mr. Torres, a Notary of the state of Florida and duly authorized, administered the Oath of 51 

Office to Ms. Samantha Breakstone. Mr. Eckert gave a brief overview of the contents of the new 52 

Supervisor’s packet, including the Sunshine Law and the public records laws.  53 

  54 

THIRD ORDER OF BUSINESS  Review of Responses to RFP for Pinewalk 55 
Phase 1 Collector Road Project 56 

 57 
A. Respondents 58 

 I. A.J. Johns, Inc. 59 

 II. C.W. Matthews Contracting Co., Inc. 60 

 III. Vallencourt Construction Company, Inc. (Vallencourt) 61 

Mr. Ma stated that five companies attended the mandatory pre-bid meeting and, of the 62 

five, three responded. 63 

B. Evaluation/Ranking 64 

Mr. Ma reviewed a prepared bid summary and concluded that, based on the base bid of 65 

approximately $11 million, Vallencourt Construction Company, Inc. (Vallencourt) appears to be 66 

the lowest bidder and Vallencourt was the only respondent that submitted bid alternates and an 67 

amount for the cascading rear walls. 68 
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 Mr. Eckert explained the Evaluation Criteria and coordinated completion of the ranking 69 

sheets. Mr. Torres tabulated the results of the Evaluation Criteria, as follows: 70 

#1  Vallencourt Construction Company, Inc. 98.5 points 71 

#2 A. J. Johns, Inc. 96.2 points 72 

#3 C.W. Matthews Contracting Co., Inc. 87.3 points 73 

C. Award of Contract 74 

On MOTION by Mr. Kramer and seconded by Mr. Joshua Breakstone, with all in 75 
favor, ranking Vallencourt Construction Company, Inc., as the #1 ranked 76 
respondent to the RFP Pinewalk Phase 1 Collector Road Project, with  98.5 77 
points; A. J. Johns, Inc., as #2 respondent, with 96.2 points; and C.W. Matthews 78 
Contracting Co., Inc., as #3 respondent, with 87.3 points; awarding the Pinewalk 79 
Phase 1 Collector Road Project contract to Vallencourt; and authorizing District 80 
Staff to negotiate a form of agreement and for the Chair or Vice Chair to execute, 81 
was approved. 82 

 83 
 84 
FOURTH ORDER OF BUSINESS Review of Responses to RFQ for Continuing 85 

Construction Engineering & Inspection 86 
Services 87 

 88 
Mr. Torres stated only three responses were received to the Request for Qualifications 89 

(RFQ) for Continuing Construction Engineering & Inspection Services.  90 

 Mr. Eckert recalled that, when the Board agreed to publicize the RFQ, it was amenable to 91 

engaging multiple companies, depending on the projects and the expertise of the companies.    92 

A. Respondents 93 

I. England, Thims & Miller, Inc. 94 

II. Matthews|DCCM 95 

III. Prosser|Prime AE 96 

B. Evaluation/Ranking 97 

Mr. Eckert reviewed the Evaluation Criteria and coordinated completion of the rankings. 98 

Mr. Torres tabulated the results of the Evaluation Criteria, as follows:  99 

#1  England, Thims & Miller, Inc. 95 points 100 

#2 Prosser|Prime AE 95 points 101 

#3 Matthews|DCCM 84 points 102 
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 103 

On MOTION by Ms. Breakstone and seconded by Mr. Joshua Breakstone, with 104 
all in favor, ranking England, Thims & Miller, Inc., and Prosser|Prime AE as the 105 
#1 and #2 respondents to the RFQ for Continuing Construction Engineering & 106 
Inspection Services, each with 95 points, and Matthews|DCCM as the #3 107 
respondent, with 84 points, was approved. 108 

 109 
 110 

C. Award of Contract 111 

On MOTION by Mr. Kramer and seconded by Mr. Joshua Breakstone, with all in 112 
awarding the Master Engineering Services Continuing Construction Engineering 113 
& Inspection Services contract to England, Thims & Miller, Inc., and to 114 
Prosser|Prime AE; authorizing District Staff to negotiate a form of agreement 115 
and for the Chair or Vice Chair to execute, was approved. 116 

 117 
 118 
FIFTH ORDER OF BUSINESS Consideration of Resolution 2025-01, 119 

Designating Dates, Times and Locations for 120 
Regular Meetings of the Board of 121 
Supervisors of the District for Fiscal Year 122 
2024/2025 and Providing for an Effective 123 
Date 124 

 125 
This item was deferred.  126 

 127 

SIXTH ORDER OF BUSINESS Acceptance of Unaudited Financial 128 
Statements as of September 30, 2024 129 

 130 

On MOTION by Mr. Kramer and seconded by Mr. Joshua Breakstone, with all in 131 
favor, the Unaudited Financial Statements as of September 30, 2024, were 132 
accepted. 133 

 134 
 135 
SEVENTH ORDER OF BUSINESS Approval of September 12, 2024 Public 136 

Hearing and Regular Meeting Minutes 137 
 138 

On MOTION by Mr. Joshua Breakstone and seconded by Mr. Kramer, with all in 139 
favor, the September 12, 2024 Public Hearing and Regular Meeting Minutes, as 140 
presented, were approved. 141 

 142 
 143 
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EIGHTH ORDER OF BUSINESS Staff Reports 144 
 145 
A. District Counsel: Kutak Rock LLP 146 

Mr. Eckert stated Ms. Breakstone does not have to complete the required four hours of 147 

ethics training for 2024 but she will need to do so by December 31, 2025. All other Supervisors 148 

must complete their training by December 31, 2024.   149 

Mr. Eckert stated that, going forward, every contract that the CDD enters into, amends or 150 

extends must be accompanied by an anti-trafficking affidavit, executed by the contractor.  151 

B. District Engineer (Interim): England-Thims & Miller 152 

There was no report.   153 

C. District Manager: Wrathell, Hunt and Associates, LLC 154 

• NEXT MEETING: November 14, 2024 at 3:00 PM 155 

o QUORUM CHECK 156 

The next meeting will be held on November 14, 2024 at 3:00 p.m. 157 

 158 

NINTH ORDER OF BUSINESS Board Members’ Comments/Requests 159 
 160 

There were no Board Members’ comments or requests. 161 

 162 

TENTH ORDER OF BUSINESS Public Comments 163 
 164 

No members of the public spoke. 165 

 166 

ELEVENTH ORDER OF BUSINESS Adjournment 167 
 168 

On MOTION by Mr. Kramer and seconded by Mr. Joshua Breakstone, with all in 169 
favor, the meeting adjourned at 3:48 p.m. 170 

 171 
 172 
 173 

[SIGNATURES APPEAR ON THE FOLLOWING PAGE] 174 
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 175 
 176 
 177 
 178 
___________________________ ____________________________ 179 
Secretary/Assistant Secretary Chair/Vice Chair 180 
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